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SOUTH CAROLINA 
TRADITIONS 

South Carolina is a place where tradition provides a conspicuous 
daily influence on the lives, values, and culture of its people. As one 
of the original thirteen colonies, the State traces its settlement back 
more than 325 years and treasures the historic role it has played in the 
founding and strengthening of the American nation. 

In recent years, the faithful management of public moneys and the 
rigorous process of financial accountability have become South 
Carolina traditions of the highest order. The State treasures its AAA 
bond rating as symbolic of that historic fiscal integrity. The pages of 
this report offer detailed insight into the financial activities of the 
1998-1999 fiscal year. 

Interspersed with the financial information are glimpses of another 
South Carolina tradition-the fair-minded dispensing of justice 
through the court system. Pictures of South Carolina's courthouses 
are thoughtful reminders of the State's past and living indicators of 
how the State is adapting to meet its current and future needs. 

Thank you for taking a few minutes to learn about our State, its 
traditions, and its financial record for the most recently completed 
fiscal year. 

Sincerely, 

am:.A.i~ 
Comptroller General 



COURTHOUSES, THE ESSENCE 
OF A STATE'S PAST 

South Carolina's history is stored in many places. It is contained on 
bookshelves and battlefields, and it resides in school buildings and 
quiet country churches. 

It also occupies the chambers and corridors of the State's remarkably 
eclectic collection of county courthouses, the structures whose grace 
has symbolized the solemnity with which South Carolinians treat 
their judicial activities. Courthouses are the places where 
democracies dispense justice. They are the places where the fragile 
balance between the orderliness of society and the unfettered rights of 
the individual citizen is constantly being defined and redefined by the 
outcomes of adversarial proceedings. In courthouses, Americans 
come face to face with the realities of their delicately tooled process 
of self-government. 

Courthouses have also been meeting places. In the days when South 
Carolina was largely a state of rural interests, courthouse squares 
were places where farmers gathered on Saturdays, sold crops, bought 
provisions, and exchanged the news of the day. The political regulars 
of every county became known as "courthouse gangs," and their 
members became identified in an uncomplimentary way with insiders 
and the manipulation of influence and favors. 

In the days before office buildings and shopping malls dominated the 
landscape, courthouses were places of architectural nobility and 
community pride. No less a figure than Robert Mills, the nineteenth 
century South Carolinian who designed the Washington Monument 
and the United States Treasury Building in Washington, drew up 
plans for as many as seventeen county courthouses in South Carolina, 
as well as many other public buildings in the State. 
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Courthouses designed by Mills were built between 1821 and 1828 at a time 
when there were twenty-nine counties, known as "districts." Their 
construction was authorized and funded by the State's Public Works 
Commission. The State's second major courthouse construction era came 
between 1878 and 1919, when the General Assembly authorized the 
formation of fourteen counties. 

Most of South Carolina's older courthouses survive today, and some are 
still used for their original purpose. The buildings, many bearing 
characteristics of Greek Revival or Georgian Revival styles, have 
undergone renovation and modernization to meet the growing and changing 
needs of an expanding state. In other counties-Richland, Dorchester, 
Kershaw, Florence, Greenwood, and Pickens among them-courthouses 
have been erected in the latter half of the twentieth century, and some of 
them reflect more contemporary design styles and features. 

Whatever their age or design, South Carolina's courthouses represent an 
important link between the State's traditional past and its restless present. 
As South Carolina enters the new millennium, its values-like its 
courthouses-reflect both a reverence for its storied past and energy for its 
ambitious future. 

Throughout the pages of this report, you will see photographs of South 
Carolina's county courthouses. Descriptions and histories of these 
courthouses are found beginning on page 181. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

Ql)ffirr nf Qinmpfrnllrr ~rnrral 

JAMES A. LANDER 

COMPTROLLER GENERAL 

December 2, 1999 

To the Citizens, Governor and 
Members of the South 
Carolina General Assembly 

305 WADE HAMPTON OFFICE BUILDING 

POST OFFICE BOX 11228 

COLUMBIA, S.C. 29211 

TELEPHONE: (803) 734·2121 

FAX: (803) 734·2064 

It is my pleasure to present to the citizens of South Carolina this 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1999. The report provides financial information about the State's 
operations during the year and describes its financial position at the end of the year. 

The report includes information for the use of all parties who are interested in 
the State's finances. This includes the State's taxpayers, members of the General 
Assembly, and directors of State agencies as well as the State's investors and 
creditors. 

Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data in this report as well 
as the completeness and fairness of the presentation. To the best of our knowledge 
and belief, this information is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a 
manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of operations of the 
various funds, account groups, and component units of the State of South Carolina. 
The report includes all disclosures that readers need to gain an understanding of the 
State of South Carolina's activities. 

For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three sections as 
follows: 

• The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal, the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 
the June 30, 1998 report, a list of State officials, and an organizational 
chart of State government. 

• The Financial Section, consisting of the general purpose financial 
statements (combined statements, component unit combining 
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statements, and notes), required supplementary information, other 
combining financial statements, and schedules. 

• The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data and other 
non-financial data. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

Legislative Initiatives 

The South Carolina General Assembly made two major down payments on the 
new millennium during its 1998-1999 session: it increased annual funding of the 
State's public school system by more than $180.000 million, and it authorized 
$1.000 billion in general obligation bonds, most of which will be allocated to 
educational needs. 

Two major educational initiatives received priority attention. One of them, 
known as the First Steps to School Readiness program, provided first-year funding of 
$20.000 million to support-through statewide grants for early childhood 
education-efforts to strengthen children's readiness for first grade. The initiative 
creates county partnerships to provide support to local communities. 

Education-related legislation also targeted alternative school programs. 
Additional funds amounting to $5.600 million were designated to support programs 
that will offer separate instruction for students whose behavior disrupts the learning of 
others or who, for other reasons, need attention and assistance beyond the traditional 
classroom experience. 

In its capital bond legislation, the General Assembly provided that 
$750.000 million ($250.000 million in 1999-2000) in general obligation State school 
facilities bonds be issued for permanent school facilities and school equipment. 
Additionally, $250.000 million in general obligation capital improvement bonds was 
authorized primarily to fund projects at State universities and other educational 
institutions and to pay for school buses and maintenance vehicles. 

The legislature continued its efforts to provide tax relief, increasing the senior 
citizen income tax exemption from $11,500 to $15,000 and offering voters the 
opportunity to approve through referendum a phased-in reduction of the assessment 
rate on automobiles and other vehicles from 10.5% to 6.0% over a six-year period. 

In other actions, the General Assembly increased Interstate highway speed 
limits to 70 miles per hour, established uniformity in the manner by which 
municipalities charge telecommunications companies for use of public rights-of-way, 
and set limitations on business licenses that municipalities impose on 
telecommunications companies. 

The General Assembly also approved a November 2000 vote to determine 
whether the State should be permitted to establish a lottery to generate revenue for 
public education purposes. A public vote scheduled for November 1999 to decide the 
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fate of video poker cash payouts was ruled unconstitutional by the South Carolina 
Supreme Court in a decision which also banned video poker gambling in the State as 
of July 1, 2000. 

Projects to Implement New Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Requirements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 33, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, in 
December 1998 and Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's 
Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments, in June 1999. To 
comply with generally accepted accounting principles for governments, the State of 
South Carolina must implement Statement 33, except for the accrual-basis revenue 
recognition provisions of that Statement, beginning July 1, 2000. Beginning 
July 1, 2001, the State must implement the accrual-basis revenue recognition 
provisions of Statement 33 as well as Statement 34, except for the provisions of 
Statement 34 that relate to retroactive reporting of major general infrastructure assets. 
Beginning July 1, 2005, the State must implement the provisions of Statement 34 that 
relate to retroactive reporting of major general infrastructure assets. Management 
intends to implement these statements no later than the dates specified by the GASB. 

Management anticipates that compliance with GASB Statements 33 and 34 
will significantly affect the content and format of the State of South Carolina's 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFRs) for fiscal years ending after the 
implementation dates described above. However, the State's management has not yet 
determined the extent of those effects on specific account balances, financial 
statements, notes to the financial statements, or other presentations within the CAFR. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

Over the last three decades, the economy of South Carolina has grown faster 
than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from all over the 
world to take advantage of the State's skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower
priced land, excellent port facilities, accessibility to markets, and in recent years, 
substantial tax incentives. Since 1970, industry has made $65 billion of investments 
in plants within the State. 

The State's recreation and retirement industries have also been rapidly 
growing economic sectors over the last three decades. Each year more retirees move 
here to take advantage of the area's mild climate, lower cost of living, and special tax 
incentives for people over 65 years of age. The number of individuals receiving 
Social Security retirement pay has grown at a rapid average annual rate of 4.2% since 
1970. The annual income from retirement now exceeds an estimated $7 billion. 

The State's coastal areas have emerged as one of the leading recreation centers 
on the east coast, providing even more stimulus to South Carolina's growing 
economy. Personal income in Harry County, which includes the Myrtle Beach area, 
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has grown at an extraordinary 10.2% per year over the last two decades and exceeds 
$3.5 billion. 

Since 1970, over 500,000 people have migrated to the State to take advantage 
of a growing economy and to retire here. Total personal income of South Carolina 
has grown over ten-fold, one-fifth faster than growth in personal income in the United 
States. During the high inflationary 1970's, personal income grew at an average 
annual compound rate of 11.8% compared to a much lower 10.7% nationwide. Even 
in the lower inflationary 1980's, personal income in South Carolina grew a healthy 
8.5% per year, compared to a lesser 7.6% nationwide. Employment in South Carolina 
over the last two decades has grown one-fifth faster than in the United States as a 
whole. 

Although South Carolina has been one of the poorer states in the nation since 
the War Between the States, the State is closing the gap in wealth between it and the 
rest of the country. In 1970, per capita income of South Carolina was only 74% of 
the national average, but has since increased to 81% of the national average. 

The State's economy has begun fiscal year 1999-2000 on a positive footing. 
Funds are available to help prevent budgetary reductions in the event of an economic 
slowdown during the fiscal year. Employment in the State was up by 300,000 in 
September 1999 versus its level during the recession of 1991. Although statistics for 
the fiscal year were not yet available from the Department of Commerce, the State's 
Board of Economic Advisors estimated that personal income growth was in the 
healthy range of 5% to 6%. 

In recent years, the State passed economic development legislation to further 
enhance the attractiveness of businesses to locate in rural sections of the State by 
substantially increasing the tax incentives that companies may be eligible to take. 
Through September 1999, over 500 companies have taken advantage of the tax 
incentive package offered by the State. Global companies such as BMW, Honda of 
America, Bridgestone/Firestone, Michelin, and Hoffman-LaRoche have located 
corporate headquarters or have constructed multi-million-dollar manufacturing 
facilities within the State. In addition to these projects, there have been other 
announcements of new plants or additions to existing plants in the State which will 
contribute to the State's continued growth. 

The State's Board of Economic Advisors (BEA) met on November 10, 1999, 
and reported that the State's Budgetary General Fund revenue collections at the end 
of the first four months of fiscal year 1999-2000 were greater than anticipated. As a 
result, the BEA raised the General Fund revenue estimate for fiscal year 1999-2000, 
anticipating a revenue excess of $233 million in fiscal year 1999-2000 over the 
estimated revenue amounts included in the Appropriation Act. The Income Tax and 
Sales Tax, the State's two leading sources of revenues, were both healthy, indicating 
that the State's economy was not showing signs of an economic slowdown. 
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FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Internal Controls 

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS) is the State's 
budgetary-basis operating accounting system. This double-entry system, installed in 
1981-1982, processes cash and budgetary transactions and maintains records for all 
budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The State's higher education institutions 
and most of the enterprise entities maintain separate accrual-basis accounting 
systems. 

The Comptroller General's Office maintains an automated annual financial 
reporting system as well as an automated interface between STARS and that system. 
The Comptroller General's Office uses these automated systems to prepare this report 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). State agencies 
that use STARS prepare year-end forms to report amounts needed to adjust their 
budgetary-basis balances to conform with GAAP. The Comptroller General's Office 
then enters into its GAAP financial reporting system the data from these forms as 
well as data from audited financial statements for the higher education institutions, 
component units, and most State enterprise entities. 

The State's internal controls, designed by the management of the State, 
provide reasonable assurance that the following objectives are achieved: 

• Reliability of financial reporting, 

• Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and 

• Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control 
should not exceed the resulting benefits. 

The Comptroller General's Office has completed the remediation and testing 
work needed to allow all statewide accounting and financial reporting systems under 
its supervision to operate properly after January 1, 2000. 

Budgetary Controls 

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted budgets 
for the Budgetary General Fund and for aggregated Other Budgeted Funds. Except 
for the Retail Sales Tax and selected other taxes estimated on a modified accrual 
basis, the State estimates revenues on a cash receipts basis. Appropriations for 
1998-1999 covered all expenditures deemed applicable to that year and paid on or 
before July 20, 1999. Agencies may carry forward up to 10.0% of unexpended 
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to the next year. Any remaining unexpended 
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse unless the Appropriation Act 
specifically authorizes agencies to carry them forward to the next fiscal year. 
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State law does not require encumbrance accounting. Accordingly, the State 
(except for some higher education institutions) does not record encumbrances. The 
State currently maintains budgetary control for expenditures at the level of summary 
object category within each program of each organizational unit. Except for accounts 
of higher education institutions, STARS verifies that an account has sufficient 
remaining appropriations before it will charge an expenditure to that account. 
Organizational units may request transfers of appropriations among object categories 
and/or among programs within the same budgetary fund. The Budget and Control 
Board has authority to approve these appropriation transfers within certain limits. 

The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act. The Budget and 
Control Board reduces the Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the year if 
it anticipates a year-end operating deficit. Likewise, the State Board of Economic 
Advisors (BEA) may approve revisions of estimated revenues of the Budgetary 
General Fund during the year. The BEA approved such upward revisions on 
November 10, 1998, and June 18, 1999. 

During 1997-1998, the General Assembly approved a Supplemental 
Appropriation Act that added $86.158 million of additional appropriations to the 
Budgetary General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Of this amount, 
$7.270 million was used to fund the General Reserve, and the remaining 
$78.888 million was appropriated to various state agencies on September 1, 1998. 
Late in 1998-1999, the General Assembly approved $82.122 million of additional 
supplemental appropriations. Of this amount, $16.000 million was expended during 
1998-1999, and the remaining $66.122 million was appropriated and reserved as 
Appropriations to be Carried Forward to 1999-2000. 

State law specifies procedures for processing requested budget changes in 
Other Budgeted Funds and for permanent improvement projects. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 

The State's reporting entity includes all of the funds and account groups that 
make up the primary government of the State of South Carolina as well as its 
component units. The funds and account groups of the primary government are under 
the oversight of the State's General Assembly and the Budget and Control Board. The 
primary government consists of agencies, departments, funds, and institutions that are 
not legally separate from the State. 

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State and its 
elected officials are financially accountable. Criteria to determine financial 
accountability include the ability of State officials to appoint a voting majority of the 
entity's governing body, the ability of the State to impose its will on the entity, and 
the potential for the entity to provide a financial benefit to the State or impose a 
financial burden upon the State. The State's discretely presented component units are: 
the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper); South Carolina State 
Ports Authority; Connector 2000 Association, Inc.; and the Savannah Lakes Regional 
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Loan Fund. Note 1a in the Notes to the Financial Statements provides a more 
complete description of the State's reporting entity. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

The following sections detail revenues and expenditures of the State's General 
and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, 
other financing uses exceeded other financing sources for these funds by 
$304.207 million. 

Revenues 

The State's most significant sources of revenue are its 5.0% retail sales tax, its 
individual income tax (2.5% to 7.0% tax rates), and Federal grants. The following 
schedule summarizes revenues of the General and Special Revenue Funds for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 (expressed in thousands) and the amounts (expressed 
in thousands) and percentages of increases (decreases) in relation to prior year 
revenues: 

Increase Percentage 
1998-1999 Percent of (Decrease) Increase 

Revenues Amount Total from 1997-98 (Decrease) 

Individual income tax .............................. $ 2,282,509 21.1% $ 178,710 8.5% 
Retail sales and use tax ......................... 2,521,264 23.3% 217,260 9.4% 
Other taxes ............................................ 1,274,366 11.8% 83,761 7.0% 

Licenses, fees, and permts .................. 290,530 2.7% 9,288 3.3% 
Interest and other investment income .... 122,002 1.1% (8,153) (6.3%) 
Federal. .................................................. 3,445,858 31.9% 232,854 7.2% 
Departmental services ........................... 539,863 5.0% (184) 0.0% 
Contributions .......................................... 192,852 1.8% 37,715 24.3% 

Fines and penalties ................................ 69,862 0.6% 8,118 13.1% 

Other ...................................................... 80,220 0.7% (847) (1.0%) 

Totals ............................................ $ 10,819,326 100.0% $ 758,522 7.5% 
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REVENUES 1998-99 
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Revenue in the Contributions category increased as a result of the activities of 
the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank. The amount of Contributions 
revenue that the Bank received during 1998-1999 increased in response to an increase 
in the Bank's road-building activities. 

The increase in Fines and Penalties revenue primarily resulted from a situation 
whereby several companies agreed to provide more than $8.000 million to the State 
for environmental clean-up. 

Expenditures 

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 (expressed in 
thousands), and the amounts (expressed in thousands) and percentages of increases 
(decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures: 

17 
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Increase Percentage 
1998-1999 Percent of (Decrease) Increase 

Expenditures Amount Total from 1997-1998 (Decrease) 
CUrrent: 
General governrrent. ............................. $ 355,558 3.7% $ 3,493 1.0% 
Education ............................................... 355,927 3.7% 37,369 11.7% 
Health and environrrent. ........................ 3,443,809 35.3% 321,922 10.3% 
Social services ...................................... 648,689 6.6% (14,223) (2.1%) 
Adrrinistration of justice ........................ 632,872 6.5% 40,316 6.8% 
Resources and econorric developrrent 159,546 1.6% (696) (0.4%) 
Transportation ....................................... 303,824 3.1% 22,803 8.1% 

Gap ita I outlay ........................................... 453,708 4.6% 56,907 14.3% 
Debt service: 

A'"incipal retirerrent. ............................... 90,786 0.9% (19,290) (17.5%) 
nterest and fiscal charges .................... 55,193 0.6% 4,061 7.9% 

lntergovernrrental .................................... 3,262,640 33.4% 230,622 7.6% 

Totals ............................................. $ 9,762,552 100.0% $ 683,284 7.5% 

EXPENDITURES 1998-99 
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Expenditures in the Education category increased as a result of the the State's 
commitment to improving education through State-supported scholarship programs 
and aid to school districts to reduce class size. 

The increase in the Health and Environment category resulted primarily from 
increases in the quantity of pharmaceuticals used by Medicaid clients and increases in 
the cost of such pharmaceuticals. 

An increase in State road and bridge construction projects led to an increase in 
expenditures for Capital Outlay. 

Debt service expenditures for retirement of principal decreased during the 
1998-1999 fiscal year because the State paid off an unusually large amount of bonds 
during the preceding fiscal year. 

Status of Fund Balances 

GAAP-basis fund balances for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds 
at June 30 (expressed in thousands) for the last five years were: 

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 
General Fund 

Reserved ................................................. $ 335,038 $ 286,945 $ 450,686 $ 545,796 $ 461,303 
l.klreserved, Designated .......................... 31,360 
l.klreserved, l.kldesignated ...................... (109,468) (294,233) (261,065) (202,981) 

Total General Fund ............................ $ 366,398 $ 177,477 $ 156,453 $ 284,731 $ 256,322 

Special Revenue Funds 
Reserved ................................................. $ 350,722 $ 204,427 $ 205,377 $ 202,628 $ 172,487 
l.klreserved, designated .......................... 338,826 165,328 128,840 112,144 73,948 
l.klreserved, undesignated ...................... 1,015,125 775,557 541,769 386,726 383,955 

Total Special Revenue Funds .......... $ 1,702,873 $ 1,145,312 $ 875,786 $ 701,498 $ 830,388 

The reserved component of fund balance represents amounts legally required 
to be segregated and amounts that cannot be appropriated for future expenditure. The 
unreserved component of fund balance is computed as total fund balance less reserved 
amounts. 

The designated portion of unreserved fund balance reflects tentative plans for 
future use of available financial resources. At June 30, 1999, the State had tentative 
plans to use $91.766 million ofthe fund balance in its Budgetary General Fund to pay 
for selected recurring and nonrecurring items. Of that amount, only $31.360 million 
in net financial resources was available in the General Fund at June 30, 1999, to 
finance those tentative plans. 

For 1995 through 1998, the General Fund's reserve requirements exceeded its 
total fund balance. This created a negative unreserved component of fund balance in 
the General Fund, even though the total fund balance was positive in those years. In 
those years, the General Fund did not have an unreserved designated fund balance 
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because it had no net financial resources to finance any tentative future spending 
plans. 

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS 

Primary Government 

There are several proprietary segments of South Carolina's primary 
government. Significant segments among these include the State Housing Finance 
and Development Authority, which provides low-cost housing to the State's citizens 
by issuing bonds/notes and by administering Federal contracts and grants, and the 
Education Assistance Authority, which issues bonds for the purpose of making loans 
to eligible students. 

Financial highlights of these segments (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1999, are as follows: 

Operating revenues ... . 
Net income .................. . 
Total assets ................ . 
Total fund equity ......... . 

Housing 
Authority 

$ 47,643 
15,436 

664,579 
177,185 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

$ 45,159 
15,698 

526,384 
123,141 

The State's two largest proprietary operations are discretely presented 
component units. 

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) is South Carolina's State
owned public power resource. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) 
produces and sells electric power and wholesale water to individuals, businesses, 
electric cooperatives, and municipal power departments. The Public Service 
Authority (Santee-Cooper) made payments to the State's General Fund of 
$7.605 million during its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. The distribution to 
the General Fund is based primarily on operating cash flows and mandatory reserve 
requirements. 

The State Ports Authority develops and maintains State harbors and seaports 
and handles the commerce through these ports. 

Highlights of segment financial information (expressed in thousands) for 
discretely presented component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, follow: 
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Operating revenues ... . 
Net incorre .................. . 

Total assets ................ . 

Total fund equtty ......... . 

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS 

Public 
Service 

Authority 
(Santee
Cooper) 

$ 775,639 
31,740 

3,322,310 

828,870 

State 
Ports 

Authority 

$ 84,801 
16,072 

520,502 

322,096 

The most significant of the State's Fiduciary Funds are the four retirement 
plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Those plans include: 
the South Carolina Retirement System, the Police Officers' Retirement System, the 
Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly, and the Retirement 
System for Judges and Solicitors. The State has funded all four of these plans in 
accordance with recommendations of the consulting actuaries, both in the current 
period and in past periods. The State has no pension liability for those plans at 
June 30, 1999. 

The South Carolina Adjutant General's Office administers the National Guard 
Pension System. The State recorded a $4.202 million pension liability for that plan in 
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1999. See Note 7, 
"Retirement Plans," in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The State finances many of its major capital needs by issuing bonds. Some of 
this debt is general obligation debt backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of 
the State. Much of the debt, however, is revenue bonds and notes associated with 
specific State agencies and discretely presented component units. Specific revenue 
flows of particular agencies and discretely presented component units service revenue 
debt. 

Moody's Investors Service has rated South Carolina's general obligation bonds 
as "Aaa," and Standard & Poor's and Fitch Investors Service, Inc., rate these bonds as 
"AAA," the highest ratings that these services award. The Comptroller General's 
Office annually furnishes the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and 
related information to the bond rating firms. This process is critical to ensuring that 
the State maintains its current high bond ratings. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, South Carolina issued 
$275.000 million and retired $87.765 million in general obligation bonds payable by 
governmental funds. Of the bonds issued, $200.000 million were State highway 
bonds. The State budgets and pays principal and interest on capital improvement 
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bonds from current resources of the Budgetary General Fund. The Department of 
Transportation Special Revenue Fund pays the debt service on highway bonds. At 
June 30, 1999, the Higher Education Funds reported State institution general 
obligation bonds outstanding of $78.305 million. 

State law limits annual debt service expenditures rather than directly limiting 
the amount of outstanding debt for general obligation bond and notes. The annual 
debt service margin at June 30, 1999, was $138.765 million in total for all institution 
bonds, $38.325 million for highway bonds and $100.554 million for general 
obligation bonds excluding institution and highway bonds. 

Net general obligation bonds/notes outstanding per capita (which excludes 
general obligation bonds payable from Higher Education Funds) is an indicator of the 
State's debt position that citizens, investors, and management may find useful. The 
following table shows this amount at June 30 for the last three years: 

1999 1998 1997 
Net general obligation bonds/notes 

outstanding ................................. $1.141 billion $952 million $967 million 
Net general obligation bonds/notes 

outstanding per capita ................ $293 $248 $255 

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service Fund, had $38.206 million of 
limited obligation lease revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1999. 

The primary government's entities had revenue and Infrastructure Bank bonds, 
notes, and certificates ofparticipation of$1.566 billion outstanding on June 30, 1999. 
Revenue and Infrastructure Bank bonds, notes, and certificates of participation 
outstanding (expressed in thousands) by agency were: 

South Carolina Housing Authority ....................................................... . $ 467,531 
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority ................................. . 385,448 
Transportation Infrastructure Bank bonds ......................................... . 275,000 
Various higher education institutions ................................................. . 435,187 
Other State agencies .......................................................................... . 2,529 
Total--primary government ....................................................... . $ 1,565,695 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the Education Assistance 
Authority advance refunded $43.570 million in revenue bonds to gain flexibi1ities 
provided by the 1993 bond resolution and obtained an economic gain (difference 
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of 
$685 thousand. For additional details on this refunding as well as advance refundings 
in the Higher Education Funds, see Note 10 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

In addition, discretely presented component units had the following amounts 
of bonds and notes outstanding (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1999: 
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South Carolina Public SenAce Authority (Santee-Cooper) .......... . 
South Carolina State Ports Authority ....................................... . 
Connector 2000 Association, Inc ............................................. . 

Total-discretely presented component units. .................. . 

$ 1,801,660 
182,434 
204,701 

$ 2,188,795 

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, the Public Service Authority 
(Santee-Cooper) advance refunded $117.378 million in revenue bonds to reduce its 
total debt service payments over the next twenty-six years by approximately 
$62.548 million and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $16.846 million. 
For additional details on this refunding and other discretely presented component unit 
debt transactions, see Note 10 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances. 
Agencies and component units may have collateralization policies that differ from 
those of the State Treasurer. 

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but generally include 
obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, obligations 
of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of 
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements and certain obligations of United States 
corporations. Under State law, the State Retirement Systems Investment Panel may 
make limited investments in equity securities for the State's Pension Trust Funds. 
For additional details, see Note 1g in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

As provided by law, the State Treasurer deposits money in a general deposit 
account. The State records earnings of the general deposit account as revenue of the 
General Fund. The Treasurer deposits other monies into various special deposit 
accounts, each of which retains its own earnings. 

State agencies that issue their own checks participate in pooled bank accounts. 
These agencies issue checks against the pooled bank accounts. Meanwhile, the State 
Treasurer invests account balances until the checks clear. 

Investment income for the General Fund totaled $68.730 million for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1999. This income includes realized and unrealized gains and 
losses. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The State generally does not purchase commercial insurance for the risks of 
loss to which it is exposed. Instead, State management believes it is more economical 
to manage its risk internally. Accordingly, the State sets aside assets for claim 
settlement in its Internal Service Funds-specifically, in the Insurance Reserve Fund 
(IRF), the Health and Disability Insurance Fund, and the State Accident Fund. 
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The IRF services claims for many of the risks of loss to which the State is 
exposed, including the following: property insurance on government-owned 
buildings, the contents of such buildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile 
liability insurance on government-owned vehicles and school buses; tort liability 
insurance for government premises and operations; and medical professional liability 
for hospitals. The IRF purchases aircraft and ocean marine insurance, areas in which 
the IRF has limited expertise. Further, the IRF purchases reinsurance to limit losses 
in the areas of property, boiler and machinery, automobile liability, and medical 
professional liability. Reinsurance permits partial recovery of losses from reinsurers; 
but the IRF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily liable. 

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund was established to provide health 
and dental insurance coverage for eligible employees and retirees of State agencies 
and school districts and group life and long term disability insurance coverage to 
eligible active State and public school employees. The State, the predominant 
participant, retains the risk of loss. Under the health insurance program, participants 
elect coverage through either a health maintenance organization or the State's self
insured plan. All dental, group life, and long-term disability coverage is through the 
State's self-insured plan. 

Section 42-7-1 0 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, established 
the State Accident Fund to provide a program of workers' compensation insurance 
coverage to State entities. The State assumes the full risk for covered claims. The 
Fund purchases reinsurance to reduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on insured 
events; however, as direct insurer of the risk, the Fund remains primarily liable. 

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize losses. For 
example, the health insurance program conducts extensive wellness education 
programs for covered employees that promote development and maintenance of 
healthful lifestyles. 

The State also administers the Patients' Compensation Fund, an insurance 
enterprise, which provides medical malpractice insurance to participating licensed 
health care providers within the State of South Carolina. 

AUDIT 

An independent audit of the general purpose financial statements was 
performed jointly by the State Auditor and the independent certified public 
accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP. This report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999, includes an unqualified opinion, the best possible result of the audit 
process. 

The audit described above is not intended to meet the requirements of the 
Federal Single Audit Act as amended. The Single Audit reports for the State are 
issued separately. 
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report 
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. In order to be awarded a Certificate 
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized CAFR whose contents conform to rigorous program standards. Such 
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable 
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year 
only. 

The State of South Carolina has received a Certificate of Achievement for the 
last eleven consecutive years (1987-1988 through 1997-1998). Again this year, the 
State will submit its CAFR to the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting program of the GFOA. I firmly believe that South Carolina's 
report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, meets the requirements to receive the 
Certificate of Achievement. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

Production of this report would not have been possible without the support of 
all State agencies and component units that supplied GAAP closing data on a timely 
basis. As we strive to produce this report in future years and to improve its quality 
and content, continued support of these parties is essential. 

We extend special thanks to the staff of the South Carolina Association of 
Counties and to the county managers, supervisors, and administrators for providing 
photographs and information regarding the county courthouses. We also extend our 
appreciation to Dr. William C. Gillespie, Chief Economist of the State of South 
Carolina, and to Philip G. Grose, Jr., Director of the State Budget and Control Board's 
Executive Institute, for providing invaluable assistance in producing the report. 

Sincerely, 
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Principal State Officials 

LEGISLATIVE-THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
Robert L. Peeler, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor 
John Drummond, President Pro Tempore of the Senate 
David H. Wilkins, Speaker, House of Representatives 

EXECUTIVE 
STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD 

James H. Hodges, Chairman, Governor 
James A. Lander, Comptroller General 
Grady L. Patterson, State Treasurer 
John Drummond, Chairman, Senate Finance Committee 
Robert W. Harrell, Jr.,* Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee 

James M. Miles, Secretary of State 
Charles M. Condon, Attorney General 
Inez Tenenbaum, State Superintendent of Education 
Major General Stanhope S. Spears, Adjutant General 
D. Leslie Tindal, Commissioner of Agriculture 

JUDICIAL 
Ernest A. Finney, Jr.,** Chief Justice, South Carolina Supreme Court 

Term 
of Office 

1999-2003 
1997-2001 
1999-2001 

1999-2003 
1999-2003 
1999-2003 
1997-2001 
1999-2001 
1999-2003 
1999-2003 
1999-2003 
1999-2003 
1999-2003 

1994-2004 

All of the legislative and executive officials are elected by the State's citizens in general elections. Members of the Supreme Court 
are elected by the General Assembly. 

*Representative Robert W. Harrell, Jr., became Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee, in September 1999 after 
Representative Henry E. Brown, Jr., stepped down from that position. 

**Jean H. Toal, Chief Justice-Elect, South Carolina Supreme Court, will become Chief Justice in March 2000 when the Honorable 
Ernest A. Finney, Jr., retires from that position. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable James H. Hodges, Governor 
and 

Members of the General Assembly 
State of South Carolina 
Columbia, South Carolina 

We have jointly audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of 
South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the accompanying table of 
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the State's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial statements of certain blended 
component units and agencies of the primary government, which statements reflect the indicated 
percent of total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of the Special Revenue 
(56% and 18%), Enterprise (99% and 92%), Internal Service (74% and 87%), Pension Trust 
(100% and 100%), Investment Trust (100% and 100%), Higher Education (100% and 100%), and 
Agency (13% of assets and other debits) Funds, General Fixed Assets Account Group (12% of 
assets and other debits), and the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (38% of assets 
and other debits). We also did not jointly audit the financial statements of the discretely presented 
component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, including the Office 
of the State Auditor and Deloitte & Touche LLP acting separately, whose reports have been 
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component 
units and agencies, is based solely upon the reports of other auditors. Deloitte & Touche LLP 
acting separately has examined 100% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues of the 
Investment Trust Fund. The Office of the State Auditor, acting separately, has examined 30% and 
34% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of the Higher Education 
Funds. 

We conducted our audit in accordance \\ith generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely 
presented component units identified in Note 1(a) were not audited in accordance \\ith Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, e\ idence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

Delaitte Touche 
Tahmatsu 
lntemltianll 



In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
State of South Carolina, as ofJune 30, 1999, and the results ofits operations and the cash flows of 
its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust fund and discretely presented component units 
for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The year 2000 supplementary information is not a required part of the basic financial statements, 
but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and 
we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to 
apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the 
unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue and its effects, and the fact that authoritative 
measurement criteria regarding the status of remediation efforts have not been established. In 
addition, we do not provide assurance that the State of South Carolina is or will become year 2000 
compliant, that the State of South Carolina's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in 
whole or in part, or that parties with which the State of South Carolina does business are or will 
become year 2000 compliant. 

Our joint audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose 
financial statements taken as a whole. The required supplementary information pertaining to the 
National Guard Pension System and the combining financial statements and schedules listed in the 
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the general purpose financial statements of the State of South Carolina. These 
financial statements and schedules are also the responsibility of the management of the State of 
South Carolina. Except as described above, such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the joint audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our 
opinion, based upon our joint audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in all 
material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. 

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report, and 
accordingly, express no opinion thereon. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 2, 1999 on our consideration of the State of South Carolina's internal control over 
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering 
the results of our audit. 

Columbia, South Carolina 
December 2, 1999 

~ i rfrf) ~c:Lo/M--
~umbia~ South Carolina f 
December 2, 1999 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Balance Sheet 
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 

Special Capital Internal Trust and 

General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

Cash and cash equivalents .................................... $ 730,872 $ 1,334,764 $ 93,577 $ 163,101 $ 291,761 $ 2,142,341 

Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ......................... 28,638 763,293 

Investments ........................................................... 6,168 384 4,970 242,871 17,946,870 

Invested securities lending collateral. ...................... 7,160 2,155 286 966 30,509 1,439,254 

Receivables, net: 

Accounts .............................................................. 51,674 109,542 1,807 18,558 44,157 310,763 

Taxes ................................................................... 375,635 129,173 42,779 

Patient and student .............................................. 

Student loans ....................................................... 15,510 13 

Loans and notes .................................................. 182 250,709 394,130 95 

Due from Federal government and other grantors .. 6,153 403,356 1,212 499 2,161 

Due from other funds ............................................. 12,584 33,183 1,147 33,214 6,519 

Due from component units ...................................... 4,114 

lnterfund receivables .............................................. 4,778 1,622 423 

Advances to other funds ........................................ 8,221 4,245 16,444 

Inventories ............................................................. 13,704 17,584 2,214 6,643 

Prepaid long-term operating lease .......................... 

Servicing rights, net... ............................................. 1,840 

Interest in license agreement... ............................... 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents .................................. 279,871 

Investments ......................................................... 29,173 

Loans receivable .................................................. 421,575 

Other ................................................................... 8,279 

Other assets .......................................................... 1,124 809 2,280 

Deferred charges ................................................... 1,059 

Investment in joint venture ...................................... 

Property, plant, and equipment, net ....................... 26,415 162,280 4,528 

Amount to be provided for retirement of long-term 

obligations ........................................................... 

Total assets and other debits .................... $ 1,249,883 $ 2,303,351 $ 98,029 $ 1,353,472 $ 830,582 $ 22,658,603 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ACCOUNT GROUPS 
General 

Fixed 

Assets 

2,406,819 

2,406,819 

$ 

$ 

General 

Long-Term 

Obligations 

1,644,608 

1,644,608 

HIGHER 
EDUCATION 

FUNDS 

$ 453,898 

108,785 

2,981 

14,023 

118,200 

47,434 

52,573 

53,835 

17,221 

24,949 

16,314 

34,383 

3,936 

3,113,667 

$ 4,062,199 

Totals Primary 
Government 

(Memorandum 
Only) 

$ 5,210,314 

791,931 

18,310,048 

1 ,483,311 

550,524 

547,587 

118,200 

62,957 

697,689 

467,216 

103,868 

4,114 

6,823 

28,910 

65,094 

16,314 

1,840 

279,871 

29,173 

421,575 

8,279 

38,596 

1,059 

3,936 

5,713,709 

1,644,608 

$ 36,607,546 

$ 

$ 

COMPONENT 
UNITS 

76,011 

192,864 

103,856 

96,107 

34,678 

270,329 

218,185 

3,027 

438,680 

6,328 

2,614,531 

4,054,596 

State of South Carolina 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

$ 5,286,325 

791,931 

18,502,912 

1 ,483,311 

654,380 

547,587 

118,200 

62,957 

697,689 

467,216 

103,868 

4,114 

6,823 

28,910 

161,201 

16,314 

1,840 

34,678 

550,200 

247,358 

421,575 

8,279 

41,623 

439,739 

10,264 

8,328,240 

1,644,608 

$ 40,662,142 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

ACCOUNT GROUPS Totals Primary Totals 
General General HIGHER Government Reporting Entity 
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION (Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 

Assets Obligations FUNDS Only) UNITS Only) 

$ $ 1,392 $ 98,765 $ 965,611 $ 107,773 $ 1,073,384 
6,734 24,280 3,877 28,157 

381,890 381,890 
7,430 194,542 194,542 
3,056 183,985 183,985 

7,090 103,868 103,868 
238 6,823 6,823 

1,866 29,110 29,110 

41,428 346,898 60,987 407,885 

3,675 5,967 5,967 

4,069 493,301 493,301 
2,981 1,483,311 1,483,311 

70,746 70,746 

785 166,782 169,311 169,311 

1 '139,782 78,305 1,218,087 1,218,087 
275,000 275,000 275,000 

247,707 1,100,686 2,188,795 3,289,481 

38,206 38,206 

20,698 20,698 20,698 

12,482 33,201 48,794 35,692 84,486 

456,100 456,100 
180,637 91,828 278,699 12,735 291,434 

24,044 6,731 47,199 37,342 84,541 
1,644,608 812,098 7,487,012 2,903,301 10,390,313 

102,271 211,797 314,068 
2,406,819 2,612,636 5,019,455 5,019,455 

257,925 257,925 

(127) (127) 
332,325 939,625 1,271,950 

326,096 21,498,954 21,498,954 
124,430 584,123 584,123 
186,939 1,325,481 1,325,481 

2,406,819 3,250,101 29,120,534 1,151,295 30,271,829 

~ 2.406.819 ~ 1.644.608 ~ 41062.199 ~ 36.607.546 ~ 4.054.596 ~ 40.662.142 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Special 
Revenues: General Revenue 
Taxes: 

Individual income ........................................ . $ 2,282,249 $ 260 
Retail sales and use ................................... . 1,864,756 656,508 
Other. ......................................................... . 750,710 523,656 

Licenses, fees, and permits .......................... . 178,634 111,896 
Interest and other investment income ........... . 68,730 53,272 
Federal. ........................................................ . 84,630 3,361,228 
Departmental services .................................. . 323,330 216,533 
Contributions ................................................ . 374 192,478 
Fines and penalties ...................................... . 16,581 53,281 
Other ............................................................ . 20,674 59,546 

Total revenues ........................................ . 5,590,668 5,228,658 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government.. ................................. . 246,506 109,052 
Education ................................................... . 210,486 145,441 
Health and environment... .......................... . 1,111,940 2,331,869 
Social services ........................................... . 108,964 539,725 
Administration of justice ............................. . 548,978 83,894 
Resources and economic development... ... . 71,223 88,323 
Transportation ............................................ . 303,824 

Capital outlay ............................................... . 453,708 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement. ................................... . 85,622 5,164 
Interest and fiscal charges .......................... . 42,065 13,128 

Intergovernmental ........................................ . 2,106,860 1 '155,780 

Total expenditures ................................. . 4,532,644 5,229,908 

Revenues over (under) expenditures .......... . 1,058,024 (1 ,250) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from bonds and notes ................... . 419 484,076 
Lease and installment debt proceeds ........... . 7,412 36 
Operating transfers in ................................... . 15,215 78,900 
Transfers from component units ................... . 7,886 
Operating transfers out... .............................. . (881 ,661) (490) 
Transfers to component units ....................... . (16,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) .... . (866,729) 562,522 

Revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses ..................... . 191,295 561,272 

Fund balances at beginning of year ............ . 177,477 1,145,312 
Decreases in reserve for inventories .......... . (1,038) (3,911) 
Residual equity transfers out. ..................... . (1,336) 

Fund balances at end of year ...................... . $ 366,398 $ 1,702,673 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

Capital 
Projects 

312 
24,210 

1 
7,534 
6,650 

466 

39,173 

51' 106 

51,106 

(11 ,933) 

76,332 

13,325 

(47,294) 
(3,182) 

39,181 

27,248 
64,290 

(31) 

91,507 



State of South Carolina 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Totals 
Expendable (Memorandum 

Trust Onl~l 

$ $ 2,282,509 
2,521,264 

171,854 1,446,220 
487 291,017 

56,166 178,480 
7,467 3,477,535 

539,864 
8,710 209,096 

76,512 
1,547 82,233 

246,231 11,104,730 

195,887 551,445 
355,927 

141 3,443,950 
7 648,696 

11 632,883 
159,546 
303,824 
504,814 

90,786 
55,193 

4 3,262,644 

196,050 10,009,708 

50,181 1,095,022 

560,827 
7,448 

107,441 
7,886 

(12,714) (942,159) 
(19,182) 

(12,713) (277,739) 

37,468 817,283 
886,708 2,273,787 

(4,949) 
(1,367) 

$ 924,176 $ 3,084,754 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 
Admissions tax ........................................................... . $ 7,500 $ 6,469 $ (1,031) 
Aircraft tax .................................................................. . 3,434 3,064 (370) 
Alcoholic liquors tax ................................................... . 47,677 47,170 (507) 
Bank tax ..................................................................... . 10,879 13,062 2,183 
Beer and wine tax ...................................................... . 84,574 84,834 260 
Business license tax .................................................. . 30,754 30,151 (603) 
Coin-operated device tax ........................................... . 45,000 63,093 18,093 
Commercial nuclear waste tax ................................... . 
Contractors' license tax ............................................. . 
Corporation income tax .............................................. . 208,050 215,275 7,225 
Corporation license tax .............................................. . 40,897 38,111 (2,786) 
Department of Agriculture .......................................... . 
Departmental revenue (primarily grant revenues 
and fees for services) .............................................. . 49,043 63,930 14,887 

Documentary tax ........................................................ . 30,166 30,272 106 
Earned on investments .............................................. . 70,000 73,062 3,062 
Education Improvement Act-1% sales tax ................ . 
Education Improvement Act-investment earnings .... . 
Education Improvement Act-other ............................ . 
Electric power tax ...................................................... . 21,261 20,856 (405) 
Estate tax ................................................................... . 52,000 57,077 5,077 
Excise tax-casual sales ............................................. . 14,202 16,089 1,887 
Fertilizer inspection tax .............................................. . 205 232 27 
Gift tax ....................................................................... . 113 113 
Individual income tax ................................................. . 1,937,928 1 ,986,165 48,237 
Insurance tax ............................................................. . 98,621 99,100 479 
Miscellaneous sources .............................................. . 78,775 78,916 141 
Motor transport fees ................................................... . 6 10 4 
Motor vehicle licenses .............................................. .. 88,458 83,142 (5,316) 
Petroleum inspection tax ........................................... . 7,559 7,554 (5) 
Private car lines tax .................................................. .. 2,447 2,451 4 
Public service assessment. ....................................... . 50 50 
Public Service Authority ............................................ .. 7,794 7,886 92 
Retail sales tax (4%) .................................................. . 1,861,021 1,873,526 12,505 
Retailers' license tax .................................................. . 1,042 1,103 61 
Savings and loan association tax .............................. . 4,024 3,484 (540) 
Soft drinks tax ............................................................ . 14,695 15,508 813 
Workers' compensation insurance tax ...................... .. 8,272 8,792 520 

Total revenues ....................................................... . 4,826,284 4,930,547 104,263 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS 
Variance Variance 

Final Favorable Final Favorable 
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 28,295 $ 28,621 $ 326 $ 35,795 $ 35,090 $ (705) 
3,434 3,064 (370) 

47,677 47,170 (507) 
10,879 13,062 2,183 
84,574 84,834 260 
30,754 30,151 (603) 

7,262 7,262 45,000 70,355 25,355 
26,604 51,841 25,237 26,604 51,841 25,237 

1,677 2,554 877 1,677 2,554 877 
208,050 215,275 7,225 
40,897 38,111 (2,786) 

3,310 2,620 (690) 3,310 2,620 (690) 

7,185,072 6,907,030 (278,042) 7,234,115 6,970,960 (263, 155) 
407 216 (191) 30,573 30,488 (85) 

63,303 52,131 (11,172) 133,303 125,193 (8, 11 0) 
468,806 472,220 3,414 468,806 472,220 3,414 

2,500 2,572 72 2,500 2,572 72 
6,266 623 (5,643) 6,266 623 (5,643) 

21,261 20,856 (405) 
52,000 57,077 5,077 
14,202 16,089 1,887 

205 232 27 
113 113 

260 260 1,937,928 1,986,425 48,497 
3,455 608 (2,847) 102,076 99,708 (2,368) 

173,283 74,381 (98,902) 252,058 153,297 (98,761) 
2,608 2,608 6 2,618 2,612 

26,273 31,943 5,670 114,731 115,085 354 
7,559 7,554 (5) 
2,447 2,451 4 

5,830 5,509 (321) 5,830 5,559 (271) 
7,794 7,886 92 

600 640 40 1,861,621 1,874,166 12,545 
1,042 1,103 61 
4,024 3,484 (540) 

14,695 15,508 813 
8,272 8,792 520 

7,995,681 7,643,639 (352,042) 12,821,965 12,574,186 (247,779) 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Expenditures: 
Legislative ................................................................... $ 33,657 $ 29,823 $ 3,834 
Judicial. ....................................................................... 44,434 39,532 4,902 
Executive and administrative ...................................... 175,550 140,334 35,216 
Educational. ................................................................ 2,412,228 2,371,366 40,862 
Health ......................................................................... 880,106 846,468 33,638 
Social rehabilitation services ...................................... 132,676 124,930 7,746 
Correctional and public safety .................................... 543,014 510,513 32,501 
Conservation, natural resources, and development. .. 137,523 121 '143 16,380 
Regulatory .................................................................. 58,763 56,245 2,518 
Transportation ............................................................. 579 571 8 
Debt service ................................................................ 152,392 147,283 5,109 
Miscellaneous ............................................................. 233,204 233,004 200 
Enterprise agencies .................................................... 16,000 16,000 

Total expenditures .................................................. 4,820,126 4,637,212 182,914 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ....... 6,158 293,335 287,177 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in ................................................. 
Operating transfers out. .............................................. (86,920) (86,920) 

Total financing sources (uses) .............................. (86,920) (86,920) 

Excess of revenues and other sources over 
(under) expenditures and other uses ...................... (80,762) 206,415 287,177 
Budgetary fund balance at beginning of year ......... 516,462 516,462 

Budgetary fund balance at end of year .................... $ 435,700 $ 722,877 $ 287,177 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS 
Variance Variance 

Final Favorable Final Favorable 
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 1,660 $ 1,258 $ 402 $ 35,317 $ 31,081 $ 4.236 
875 306 569 45,309 39,838 5,471 

400,039 289,634 110,405 575,589 429,968 145,621 
2,669,643 2,507,705 161,938 5,081,871 4,879,071 202,800 
2,990,630 2,912,150 78,480 3,870,736 3,758,618 112,118 

638,079 585,196 52,883 770,755 710,126 60,629 
211,945 167,905 44,040 754,959 678,418 76,541 
213,802 165,655 48,147 351,325 286,798 64,527 
179,050 158,218 20,832 237,813 214,463 23,350 

1,025,604 906,162 119,442 1,026,183 906,733 119,450 
152,392 147,283 5,109 
233,204 233,004 200 

19,182 7,282 11,900 35,182 23,282 11,900 

8,350,509 7,701,471 649,038 13,170,635 12,338,683 831,952 

(354,828) (57,832) 296,996 (348,670) 235,503 584,173 

86,920 86,920 86,920 86,920 
(86,920) (86,920) 

86,920 86,920 

(267,908) 29,088 296,996 (348,670) 235,503 584,173 
1,136,332 1,136,332 1,652,794 1,652,794 

$ 868,424 $ 1,165,420 $ 296,996 $ 1,304,124 $ 1,888,297 $ 584,173 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services .................................................................................. . 
Contributions ............................................................................................ . 
Interest and other investment income ........................................................ . 
Licenses, fees, and permits ....................................................................... . 

Total operating revenues ...................................................................... . 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ...................................................... . 
Benefits and claims ................................................................................... . 
Interest. ..................................................................................................... . 
Depreciation and amortization ................................................................... . 
Other operating expenses ......................................................................... . 

Total operating expenses ..................................................................... . 

Operating income (loss) ...................................................................... . 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income .......................................................................................... . 
Federal revenue ........................................................................................ . 
Costs to be recovered from future revenues .............................................. . 
Interest expense ........................................................................................ . 
Other nonoperating expenses .................................................................... . 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ............................................ . 

Income (loss) before operating transfers and 
extraordinary items ........................................................................... . 

Operating transfers in .................................................................................. . 
Transfers from primary government. ............................................................ . 
Operating transfers out.. .............................................................................. . 
Transfers to primary government. ................................................................ . 

Income (loss) before extraordinary items .......................................... . 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt... ................................... . 

Net income (loss) ................................................................................. . 

Retained earnings/fund balances at beginning of year .......................... . 

Retained earnings/fund balances at end of year ..................................... . 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ................................................ .. 
Additions to contributed capital.. ............................................................ .. 
Deductions from contributed capital... .................................................... . 

Fund equity at end of year ........................................................................ . 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

Internal 
Enterprise Service 

76,296 $ 936,418 
2,974 

52,880 26,326 
1 

129,176 965,719 

43,714 284,935 
11,972 700,880 
49,608 

1,402 14,785 
3,195 4,022 

109,891 1,004,622 

19,285 (38,903) 

2,061 4,933 
23,776 

(1,248) (4,908) 
(16,574) (1,556) 

8,015 (1,531) 

27,300 (40,434) 

478 425 

(5,025) 

27,778 (45,034) 

(748) 

27,030 (45,034) 

298,510 309,744 

325,540 264,710 

20,279 78,272 
31 6,561 

(2,872) 

345,850 $ 346,671 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

$ 

$ 

(22) 
99 

77 

2 

2 

75 

75 

75 

75 

1,649 

1,724 

1,724 



State of South Carolina 

Totals Primary Totals 
Government Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 
On I~) UNITS On I~) 

$ 1,012,714 $ 860,455 $ 1.873,169 
2,974 2,974 

79,184 79,184 
100 100 

1,094,972 860,455 1,955,427 

328,651 488,542 817,193 
712,852 712,852 

49,608 49,608 
16,187 133,255 149,442 
7,217 2,134 9,351 

1,114,515 623,931 1,738,446 

(19,543) 236,524 216,981 

6,994 22,181 29,175 
23,776 23,776 

(46,216) (46,216) 
(6, 156) (159,530) (165,686) 

(18,130) (16,826) (34,956) 

6,484 (200,391) (193,907) 

(13,059) 36,133 23,074 

903 903 
19,182 19,182 

(5,025) (5,025) 
(7,605) (7,605) 

(17,181) 47,710 30,529 

(748) (748) 

(17,929) 47,710 29,781 

609,903 891,788 1,501,691 

591,974 939,498 1,531,472 

98,551 209,524 308,075 
6,592 2,273 8,865 

(2,872) (2,872) 

$ 694,245 $ 1,151,295 $ 1,845,540 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 PROPRIETARY 

(Expressed in Thousands) FUND TYPES 

Internal 
Enterprise Service 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) ................................................................ . $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization ............................................... .. 
Change in the fair value of investments .................................... . 
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts .................................. . 
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback ........ . 
Issuance of loans and notes ..................................................... . 
Collection of loans and notes .................................................... . 
Interest payments ................................................................... . 
Interest on investments and interfund loans .............................. . 
Amounts received for payment of claims .................................. . 
Payment of claims .................................................................... . 
Deferred coal contract buy-out costs ........................................ . 
Impact of transactions involving joint venture ............................ . 
Other nonoperating revenues ................................................... . 
Other nonoperating expenses ................................................... . 
Other ........................................................................................ . 

Change in assets-decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. .......................................................... . 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ..................... . 
Due from other funds ................................................................ . 
Inventories ................................................................................ . 
Other current assets ................................................................. . 
Deferred charges ...................................................................... . 

Change in liabilities-increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................................... . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ............................... . 
Due to other funds .................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues ................................................................... . 
Deposits ................................................................................... . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .................................. . 
Compensated absences payable ............................................. . 
Other current liabilities .............................................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ........... . 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds ................................ . 
Principal payments received from other funds .......................... . 
Principal payments made to other funds ................................... . 
Receipt of interest from other funds .......................................... . 
Interest payments made to other funds ................................... .. 
Loans made to other funds ....................................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ....................................... . 
Principal payments on notes payable ....................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds ....................................... . 
Principal payments on revenue bonds ...................................... . 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .............................................. . 
Federal revenue ....................................................................... . 
Payments from Federal grants .................................................. . 
Operating transfers in .............................................................. . 
Operating transfers out ........................................................... . 
Transfers from primary government ........................................ . 
Transfers to primary government ........................................... . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities ........................................... . 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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19,285 

1,402 
1,516 

(161 ,688) 
158,857 

49,468 
(20,675) 
55,994 

(58,359) 

710 

(232) 

83 
(341) 

3 
(333) 

(59) 

5,590 
189 

(186) 
1,828 

966 
(619) 

62 
(15) 

53,446 

2,424 

(201) 

26 
(26) 

242,335 
(224,420) 
(52,266) 

(2,399) 
23,776 

(21 ,397) 
478 

(31,670) 

$ (38,903) 

14,785 
5,325 

247 
(163) 

(25,943) 

165 
(12) 
(72) 

3,361 

(8,967) 
(199) 
121 

6,524 
11,914 

866 
(5,899) 

455 
180 

(36,215) 

20,564 
(11,174) 

4,327 
(2,337) 
(2,423) 

425 
(5,025) 

4,357 

$ 

FIDUCIARY 

FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

75 

22 

(30) 

68 



State of South Carolina 

Totals Primary Totals 
Government Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 
Only) UNITS Only) 

$ (19,543) $ 236,524 $ 216,981 

16,187 133,255 149,442 
6,841 6,841 

247 247 
(163) (163) 

(161 ,688) (161,688) 
158,857 158,857 
49,468 49,468 

(46,596) (46,596) 
55,994 55,994 

(58,359) (58,359) 
6,300 6,300 

(2,268) (2,268) 
875 218 1,093 
(12) (19,215) (19,227) 

(334) 128 (206) 

3,445 (17,105) (13,660) 
(341) (341) 

(8,964) (8,964) 
(532) (6,556) (7,088) 

62 2,052 2,114 
(5,049) (5,049) 

12,114 10,056 22,170 
12,103 12,103 

680 680 
(4,071) (4,071) 

966 966 
(619) (619) 
517 517 
165 12,596 12,761 

17,299 350,936 368,235 

2,424 2,424 
20,564 20,564 

(11 ,375) (11 ,375) 
4,327 4,327 

(2,337) (2,337) 
(2,423) (2,423) 

26 26 
(26) (26) 

242,335 242,335 
(224,420) (224,420) 

(52,266) (52,266) 
(2,399) (2,399) 
23,776 23,776 

(21 ,397) (21 ,397) 
903 903 

(5,025) (5,025) 
19,182 19,182 
(7,605) (7,605) 

(27,313) 11,577 (15,736) 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment .......................... . 
Principal payments on notes payable ...................................... .. 
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds .............. . 
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds .............. . 
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds ........................ .. 
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds ........................ .. 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .............................................. . 
Increase in commercial paper notes ........................................ .. 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets .................................. . 
Principal payments on capital leases and installment 
debt obligations payable ........................................................ . 

Contributions of capital ............................................................ . 

Net cash used in capital and 
related financing activities ................................................ .. 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Payment for interest in license agreement. ............................... . 
Proceeds from sale of investments .......................................... . 
Purchase of investments ......................................................... . 
Interest on investments ............................................................ .. 
Issuance of loans ..................................................................... . 
Collection of loans ................................................................... . 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ........... . 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .............. . 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...................... . 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .................................. . 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance 
sheet: 

Cash and cash equivalents for Fiduciary Funds ...................... .. 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for Expendable Trust 

Funds, Pension Trust Funds, Investment Trust 
Fund, and Agency Funds .............................................. . 

Cash and cash equivalents Nonexpendable Trust Fund .......... .. 

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities: 
Equity losses related to interest in joint venture ........................ . 
Acquisition of property and equipment through: 
Accrual of liabilities ................................................................ .. 
Transfers from other funds ...................................................... . 

Long-term interfund loan payments forgiven ............................ .. 

Total noncash capital1 investing, 
and financing activities ...................................................... .. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PROPRIETARY 
FUND TYPES 

Enterprise 

(1 ,694) $ 

7 

(1,687) 

$ 
41,781 
(9,086) 
26,337 
(2,354) 

214 

56,892 

76,981 

365,991 

442,972 $ 

$ 

$ 

Internal 
Service 

(26,006) 
(751) 

4,789 
(2, 170) 
(2,553) 

12 

(6,792) 

(33,471) 

67,764 
(111 ,405) 

26,599 

(17,042) 

(82,371) 

374,132 

291,761 

2,168 
1,336 

3,504 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

8 

8 

76 

1,626 

1,702 

2,142,341 

(2, 140,639) 

1,702 



Totals Primary 
Government 

(Memorandum 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Only) 

(27,700) 
(751) 

4,789 
(2,170) 
(2,553) 

19 

(6,792) 

(35,158) 

109,545 
(120,491) 

52,944 
(2,354) 

214 

39,858 

(5,314) 

741,749 

736,435 

2,168 
1,336 

3,504 

COMPONENT 
UNITS 

$ (1 03,460) 

476,899 
(468,436) 

(151 ,262) 
(9,487) 

214,450 

(3,655) 
2 273 

(42,678) 

$ (28,041) 
58,193 

(275,287) 
24,030 

(221,105) 

98,730 

247,610 

$ 346,340 

$ 171 

223 

$ 394 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 
(Memorandum 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Only) 

(131,160) 
(751) 

476,899 
(468,436) 

4,789 
(2,170) 

(153,815) 
(9,487) 

214,450 
19 

(10,447) 
2,273 

(77,836) 

(28,041) 
167,738 

(395,778) 
76,974 
(2,354) 

214 

(181,247) 

93,416 

9891359 

1,082,775 

171 

223 
2,168 
1,336 

3,898 

State of South Carolina 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Additions: 
Retirement contributions: 

Employer .................................................................. . 
Employee ................................................................. . 

Transfers from other retirement systems .................... . 

Total retirement contributions ................................ . 

Deposits, pool participants ......................................... . 

Investment income .................................................... .. 
Investment expense ................................................... . 

Net income from investing activities .............. .. 

Securities lending income ........................................... . 
Securities lending expenses: 

Borrower rebates ................................................... . 
Management fees .................................................. . 

Total securities lending expenses ...................... . 

Net income from securities lending activities .. . 

Total net investment income ........................ . 

Operating transfers in (for supplemental 
retirement benefits) ............................................... .. 

Total additions ................................................. . 

Deductions: 
Regular retirement benefits ........................................ . 
Supplemental retirement benefits ............................... . 
Refunds of retirement contributions to members ........ . 
Group life insurance claims ........................................ . 
Accidental death benefits ........................................... . 
Withdrawals, pool participants ................................... .. 
Distributions to pool participants ................................ .. 
Depreciation ............................................................... . 
Administrative expense .............................................. . 
Transfers to other retirement systems ........................ . 

Total deductions ...................................•........... 

Net increase in plan and pool 
net assets ..........•......................................... 

Net assets held In trust for pension benefits and 
pool participants: 

Beginning of year .................................................. . 
End of year ............................................................ .. 

$ 

South 
Carolina 

Retirement 
System 

419,918 
353,119 

773,037 

391,954 
816 

391,138 

70,232 

67,514 

67,514 

2,718 

393,856 

4,356 

1,171,249 

715,878 
4,356 

84,536 
7,873 

107 
11,746 

1,806 

826,302 

344,947 

16,391,596 
$ 16,736,543 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Police 
Officers' 

Retirement 
System 

$ 69,541 
45,146 

1,721 

116,408 

52,990 
134 

52,856 

8,278 

7,830 

7,830 

448 

53,304 

124 

169,836 

77,654 
124 

10,940 
644 
699 

11 
1,321 

91,393 

78,443 

1,843,156 
$ 1,921,599 

$ 

$ 

PENSION 

General 
Assembly 
Retirement 

System 

2,768 
772 

11 

3,551 

1,178 
1 

1,177 

125 

122 

122 

3 

1,180 

4,731 

3,941 

49 
9 

28 
37 

4,064 

667 

39,214 
39,881 



State of South Carolina 

INVESTMENT 
TRUST TRUST 

Judges' 
and National 

Solicitors' Guard Local Government 
Retirement Pension Investment 

System System Eliminations Totals Pool 

$ 5,485 $ 2,499 $ $ 500,211 $ 
1,253 400,290 

111 (1 ,843) 

6,849 2,499 (1 ,843) 900,501 

2,978,389 

2,344 253 448,719 43,583 
3 954 

2,341 253 447,765 43,583 

316 78,951 37 

305 75,771 33 

305 75,771 34 

11 3,180 3 

2,352 253 450,945 43,586 

4,480 

9,201 2,752 (1,843) 1,355,926 3,021,975 

6,813 1,858 806,144 
4,480 

51 95,576 
6 8,532 

699 
2,856,969 

42,944 
1 120 

59 13,154 112 
(1 ,843) 

6,930 1,859 (1,843) 928,705 2,900,025 

2,271 893 427,221 121,950 

82,215 6,600 18,362,781 772,663 

$ 84,486 $ 7,493 $ $ 18,790,002 $ 894,613 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Changes . Fund Balances Ill 

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

CURRENT FUNDS ENDOWMENT 
LOAN AND SIMILAR 

Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS 
Revenues and other additions: 

Unrestricted Current Fund revenues ........................ $ 1,293,104 $ $ $ 
Restricted student tuition and fees ........................... 
Federal grants and contracts-restricted ................... 329,374 775 
State and local grants-restricted .............................. 7,759 73 
Private gifts, grants, and contracts--restricted .......... 80,526 2,348 
Investment income-restricted ................................... 6,094 267 3,322 
Realized investment gains-restricted ....................... 74 
Interest earned .......................................................... 1 '119 
Expended for plant facilities (including $64,256 
charged to current funds expenditures) .................. 

Retirement of indebtedness (including $2,615 
charged to current funds expenditures) .................. 

Retirement of indebtedness-defeased bonds .......... 
Proceeds of refunding bonds ................................... 
Capitalization of interest cost. ................................... 
Sale of property ........................................................ 
Foundations and institutes ........................................ 
Other revenues and additions ................................... 1,061 229 10 

Total revenues and other additions ................. 1,293,104 424,814 2,463 5,754 

Expenditures and other deductions: 
Educational and general ........................................... 1,410,298 442,242 
Auxiliary enterprises ................................................. 194,461 2,962 
Hospital. ................................................................... 399,187 
Foundations and institutes ........................................ 
Indirect costs recovered ........................................... 34,711 
Loan cancellation and bad debt write-offs ................. 1 '191 
Administration and collection costs .......................... 97 252 
Expended for plant facilities (including 
noncapitalized expenditures of $22,865) ................ 

Retirement of indebtedness ...................................... 
Interest on indebtedness .......................................... 
Disposal of plant facilities ......................................... 
Refunding bonds issued ........................................... 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent... .............. 
Refunds to grantors .................................................. 434 24 26 
Other expenditures and deductions .......................... 2,283 33 67 

Total expenditures and other deductions ....... 2,006,229 480,479 1,534 26 

Transfers in (out): 
Transfers among Higher Education Funds: 

Mandatory transfers for: 
Principal and interest... ......................................... (39,011) 
Renewals and replacements ................................. 
Loan fund matching grants ................................... (344) 344 
Other .................................................................... (58) 41 17 

Non mandatory transfers ......................................... (59,029) (4,280) 68 2,093 
Operating transfers in ............................................... 770,546 56,331 207 
Operating transfers out ............................................. !39,581) !81) 

Total transfers in (out) ....................................... 632,523 52,011 619 2,110 

Net increase (decrease) in fund balances ............. (80,602) (3,654) 1,548 7,838 
Fund balances at beginning of year (restated) ..... 283,296 56,854 52,117 101,109 
Fund balances at end of year ................................. $ 202,694 $ 53,200 $ 53,665 $ 108,947 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

PLANT FUNDS 
Retirement Foundations 

of Investment and 
Unexl:!ended Indebtedness in Plant Institutes Totals 

$ $ $ $ $ 1,293,104 
5,070 20,777 25,847 

13,385 270 343,804 
15 7,847 

7,836 40 7,493 98,243 
4,631 2,006 16,320 

74 
1,119 

225,918 225,918 

595 31,375 31,970 
15,575 15,575 

15,959 15,959 
149 1,389 1,538 
33 33 

252,314 252,314 
995 791 293 3,379 

32,694 39,843 282,058 252,314 2,333,044 

1,852,540 
197,423 
399,187 

260,186 260,186 
34,711 

1,191 
349 

184,527 184,527 
29,355 29,355 
20,177 20,177 

44,178 44,178 
16,060 16,060 

16,579 16,579 
484 

187 228 1,854 4,652 

184,714 66,339 62,092 260,186 3,061,599 

102 38,909 
30 (30) 

92,319 (10,488) (17,927) (2,756) 
47,282 874,366 

(344) (40,006) 
139,389 28,391 !17,9271 !2,7561 834,360 

(12,631) 1,895 202,039 (10,628) 105,805 
164,648 33,476 2,410,597 42,199 3,144,296 

$ 152,017 $ 35,371 $ 2,612,636 $ 31,571 $ 3,250,101 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Other Changes 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees ........................................................................ . 
Federal grants and contracts .................................................... . 
State grants and contracts ....................................................... . 
Local grants and contracts ....................................................... . 
Private gifts, grants, and contracts ........................................... . 
Endowment income .................................................................. . 
Sales and services of educational departments ....................... . 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises ............................... . 
Sales and services of hospitals ................................................ . 
Other ........................................................................................ . 

Total current revenues ................................................. .. 

Expenditures, mandatory and operating transfers: 
Educational and general: 
Instruction .............................................................................. . 
Research ................................................................................ . 
Public service ......................................................................... . 
Academic support .................................................................. . 
Student services ..................................................................... . 
Institutional support ................................................................ . 
Operation and maintenance of plant... .................................... . 
Scholarships and fellowships ................................................. . 

Educational and general expenditures .................................. . 

Mandatory transfers for: 
Principal and interest. ........................................................... . 
Loan fund matching grants ................................................... . 
Other .................................................................................... . 

Total educational and general.. ........................................... . 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Expenditures .......................................................................... . 
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest... ..................... . 

Total auxiliary enterprises ................................................... . 

Hospitals: 
Expenditures .......................................................................... . 
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest ........................ . 

Total hospitals .................................................................... . 

Operating transfers in .............................................................. . 
Operating transfers out. ........................................................... . 

Total expenditures, mandatory and operating 
transfers ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••.•..•••.........•••••..•••.••••••••••••••••• 

other additions (deductions): 
Excess of restricted receipts over transfers to revenues .......... . 
Refunds to grantors ................................................................. . 
Other deductions ...................................................................... . 

Total net deductions •••••••••••..•••••.....•••••••••••.•.•••••••••••••.•.• 

Net decrease in fund balances •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••. 

Unrestricted 

$ 

$ 

449,064 
40,570 

33,216 
29,138 

631 
33,091 

213,782 
442,099 

51,513 

1,293,104 

674,899 
83,359 
86,824 

159,251 
88,139 

153,714 
122,697 
41,415 

1,410,298 

2,502 
344 
58 

1,413,202 

194,461 
23,731 

218,192 

399,187 
12,778 

411,965 

(770,546) 
39,581 

1,312,394 

(61 ,312) 

(61,312) 

(80,602) 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

Restricted 

3,427 
292,707 

10,558 
2,664 

74,341 
2,187 

3,029 

388,913 

26,343 
137,067 
55,682 

5,803 
10,326 
4,073 
3,537 

199,411 

442,242 

(41) 

442,201 

2,962 

2,962 

(56,331) 
81 

388,913 

1,190 
(434) 

~4,410) 

{3,654) 

p,654) 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

452,491 
333,277 

10,558 
35,880 

103,479 
2,818 

33,091 
213,782 
442,099 

54,542 

1,682,017 

701,242 
220,426 
142,506 
165,054 
98,465 

157,787 
126,234 
240,826 

1,852,540 

2,502 
344 

17 

1,855,403 

197,423 
23,731 

221,154 

399,187 
12,778 

411,965 

(826,877) 
39,662 

1,701,307 

1,190 
(434) 

~65,722) 

{64,966) 

{84,256) 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Connector Savannah 
Public State 2000 Lakes 

Service Ports Association, Regional 
Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................... $ 53,398 $ 22,284 $ 7 $ 322 $ 76,011 

Investments ....................................................... 49,689 143,035 140 192,864 

Accounts receivable, net .................................. 90,476 13,360 103,856 

Inventories ......................................................... 94,568 1,539 96,107 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................. 128,827 635 129,462 

Investments ..................................................... 27,866 27,866 

Other current assets .......................................... 671 2,356 3,027 

Total current assets ....................................... 417,629 39,559 171,543 462 629,193 

Long-term assets: 
Interest in license agreement... ......................... 34,678 34,678 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................. 34,925 105,942 140,867 

Investments ..................................................... 183,692 6,627 190,319 

Deferred charges ............................................... 430,917 2,662 5,101 438,680 

Investment in joint venture ................................. 6,328 6,328 

Total long-term assets .............. .................... 655,862 115,231 39,779 810,872 

Property, plant, and equipment: 

Land and improvements ....................... 250,793 250,793 

Buildings and improvements .............. 207,183 207,183 

Utility plant. ........................................................ 3,398,897 3,398,897 

Machinery, equipment, and other. ..................... 1,893 47,832 49,725 

Construction in progress .................................... 51,411 54,125 105,536 

Less: accumulated depreciation ....................... (1,203,382) (194,221) (1,397,603) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net. ..... 2,248,819 365,712 2,614,531 

Total assets .....•.••.............................•....... s 3,322,310 s 520,502 s 211,322 s 462 s 4,054,596 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Connector Savannah 

Public State 2000 Lakes 

Service Ports Association, Regional 

Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

Liabilities: 

Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ......... $ 90,577 $ 11,703 $ 5,487 $ 6 $ 107,773 
Retainages payable ......................................... 2,616 1,261 3,877 

Revenue bonds payable .................................. 81,910 1,459 83,369 

Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable ........................................ 3,322 60 3,382 

Commercial paper notes ................................. 456,100 456,100 

Compensated absences payable .................... 1,536 1,536 

Other current liabilities ..................................... 19,289 19,289 

Total current liabilities .................................... 651 '198 17,374 6,748 6 675,326 

Long-term liabilities: 

Deferred revenues and deferred credits .......... 60,987 60,987 

Revenue bonds payable .................................. 1,719,750 180,975 204,701 2,105,426 

Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable ........................................ 32,253 57 32,310 

Compensated absences payable .................... 11,199 11,199 

Other long-term liabilities ................................. 18,053 18,053 

Total long-term liabilities ................................ 1,842,242 181,032 204,701 2,227,975 

Total liabilities ............................................ 2,493,440 198,406 211,449 6 2,903,301 

Fund Equity: 

Contributed capital... ......................... 34,438 176,339 1,020 211,797 

Retained earnings (deficit): 

Unreserved, accumulated deficit-

development stage ..................................... (127) (127) 

Unreserved .................................................... 794,432 145,757 (564) 939,625 

Total fund equity (deficit) .......................... 828,870 322,096 (127) 456 1,151,295 

Total liabilities and fund equity .............. $ 3,322,310 $ 520,502 $ 211,322 $ 462 $ 4,054,596 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes . Fund Equity In 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Savannah 

Connector Lakes 

Public State 2000 Regional 

Service Ports Association, Loan 

Authority Authority Inc. Fund Totals 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ......................................................... $ 775,639 $ 84,801 $ $ 15 $ 860,455 

Total operating revenues ............................................. 775,639 84,801 15 860,455 

Operating expenses: 

General operations and administration .................... 436,574 51,958 10 488,542 

Depreciation and amortization ............... ·························· 116,665 16,590 133,255 

Other operating expenses ....... ·························· 2,134 2,134 

Total operating expenses ............................................. 555,373 68,548 10 623,931 

Operating income ........................................................ 220,266 16,253 5 236,524 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Interest income .................................................................. 19,948 2,213 20 22,181 

Costs to be recovered from future revenues ..................... (46,216) (46,216) 

Interest expense ................................................................ (157,088) (2,442) (159,530) 

Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) ......................... 2,435 (19,134) (127) (16,826) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ................... (180,921) (19,363) (127) 20 (200,391) 

Income (loss) before operating transfera ................. 39,345 (3,110) (127) 25 36,133 

Transfers from primary government .................................... 19,182 19,182 

Transfers to primary government ........................................ (7,605) (7,605) 

Net Income (loss) ........................................................ 31,740 16,072 (127) 25 47,710 

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year ............ 762,692 129,685 (589) 891,788 

Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year ....................... 794,432 145,757 (127) (564) 939,498 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ........................ 34,438 174,066 1,020 209,524 

Additions to contributed capital... ................................... 2,273 2,273 

Fund equity (deficit) at end of year .................................. $ 828,870 $ 322,096 $ (127) $ 456 $ 1,151,295 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Operating income . . . . . .............. ... . . .. .. .. .. ....... ........... .. .. . .. $ 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization ............................................. . 

Deferred coal contract buy-out costs .................................... . 

Impact of transactions involving joint venture ........................ . 

Other nonoperating revenues ................................................ . 

Other nonoperating expenses ................................................ . 

Other ..................................................................................... . 

Change In assets-decreases (Increases): 

Accounts receivable, net. ........................................... . 

Inventories .............................................................................. . 

Other current assets ............................................................... . 

Deferred charges ................................................................... . 

Change In liabilities-Increases: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............................... . 

Public 

Service 

Authority 

220,266 

116,665 

6,300 

(2,268) 

(33) 

(15,217) 

(6,405) 

1,032 

(5,049) 

9,403 

Other current liabilities............................................................ 12,596 

Net cash provided by operating activities......................... _ __;;3..;.,37~,:;::.29;..;0;,.. 

Cash flows from noncapltal financing activities: 

Transfers from primary government... .................................... . 

Transfers to primary government... ........................................ __ _:(~7,..;_60;..;5~) 

Net cash provided by (used In) noncapital 

financing activities............................................................ __ ...:<7....:''-60_5-'-) 

$ 

State 

Ports 

Authority 

16,253 

16,590 

218 

(19,182) 

128 

(1,888) 

(151) 

1,020 

652 

13,640 

19,182 

19,182 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Connector Savannah 

2000 Lakes 

Association, Regional 

Inc. Loan Fund Totals 

$ $ 5 $ 236,524 

133,255 

6,300 

(2,268) 

218 

(19,215) 

128 

(17,105) 

(6,556) 

2,052 

(5,049) 

10,056 

12,596 

6 350,936 

19,182 

(7,605) 

11,577 

Continued on Next Page 



Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Connector 

Public State 2000 

Service Ports Association, 

Authority Authority Inc. 

Cash flows from capital and related financing 

activities: 

Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ...................... $ (68,043) $ (35,417) $ 

Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds ........... 131,083 151,105 194,711 

Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds ........... (442,306) (26,130) 

Interest payments ................................................................... (142,567) (7,223) (1,472) 

Payment of bond issuance costs ............................................ (5,020) (2,109) (2,358) 

Increase in commercial paper notes ...................................... 214,450 

Principal payments on capital leases and installment 

debt obligations payable ...................................................... (3,610) (45) 

Contributions of capital .......................................................... 2,273 

Net cash provided by (used In) capital and 

related financing activities ................................................ (316,013) 82,454 190,881 

Cash flows from Investing activities: 

Payment for interest in license agreement. ............................. (28,041) 

Proceeds from sale of investments ......................................... 32,687 25,226 

Purchase of investments ........................................................ (51,381) (35,234) (188,392) 

Interest on investments ........................................................... 16,680 6,362 968 

Net cash provided by (used In) 

Investing activities ............................................................. (34,701) 3,815 (190,239) 

Net Increase (decrease) In cash and 

cash equivalents ....................................................................... (21,029) 119,091 642 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..................... 238,179 9,135 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ................................ s 217,150 s 128,226 s 642 

Noncash capital, Investing, and financing activities: 

Equity losses related to interest in joint venture ...................... $ 171 $ $ 

Acquisition of property plant and equipment through 

accrual of liabilities ............................................. .................. 223 

Total noncash capital, Investing, 
and financing activities ..................................................... s 171 s 223 s 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

State of South Carolina 

Savannah 

Lakes 

Regional 

Loan Fund Totals 

$ $ (103,460) 

476,899 

(468,436) 

(151,262) 

(9,487) 

214,450 

(3,655) 

2,273 

(42,678) 

(28,041) 

280 58,193 

(280) (275,287) 

20 24,030 

20 (221,105) 

26 98,730 

296 247,610 

s 322 s 346,340 

$ $ 171 

223 

s s 394 
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State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI
CANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

a. Scope of Reporting Entity 

The State of South Carolina is governed by the 
South Carolina General Assembly, an elected 
le..gislative body, and several elected executives. 
Tliese general purpose financial statements present 
the Stafe and its component units-entities for which 
the State and its elected officials are considered to be 
financially accountable. 

Blended component units, although legall~ 
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the Sfate s 
operations. Accordingly, data from these component 
units are combined with data of the primary 
government. Each discretely presented component 
unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate 
column in the combined financial statements to 
emphasize that it is legally separate from the State. 

As explained more fully below, the State's 
prirp.ary gQvernment and its component units inch,1de 
vanous -state funds, account groups, agencies, 
depaJ1mepts, instituttons, authonties, and other 
orgamzatwns. 

Primary Government 

All constitutional offices, departments, agencies, 
commissions, and authorities have been incfuded in 
the State's reporting entity as part of the primary 
government unless otherwise noted. Most of these 
fiave executives or boards appointed by the 
Governor, the General Assembly, or a combmation 
thereof. These entities are financially accountable 
to, and fiscally dependent on, the State. 

Although they OP.erate somewhat autonomous!~, 
the entities listed below are included in the State s 
primary government because they lack full corporate 
powers. 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1999: 
State Housing Finance and Development 

Authority 
South Carolina Education Assistance 

Authority 
Jobs-Economic Development Authority 
Patriots Point Development Authority 

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1998: 
The Public Railw~s Division of the 

Department of Commerce 

The State's five retirement systems are 
considered_part of the State's P.rimaty government. 
The State Budget and Control Board, consisting of 
five elected officials, serves as trustee of the 
~stems, and the State Treasurer is custodian of the 
tunds. 

The ten State-supported universities and the 
sixteen area technical colleges and their blended and 
discrete component units are reported within the 
State's Higher Education Funds as part of the 
primary government. Although the universities and 
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colleges operate somewhat autonomously, they lack 
full corporate powers. In addition, the Governor 
and/or the General Assembly appoints most of their 
boards and budgets a sigmficant portion of their 
funds. 

Note 1 u provides further information concerning 
component units of the universities and colleges. 
The component units of the universities and colleges 
are: 

Blended Component Units: 
The Citadef Trust 
IPTA Y Scholarship Fund 
The Faculty House of Carolina, Inc. 

Blended Component Units Discretely Presented: 
Clemson Research Facilities Corporation 
Lander Foundation 
Lander Universicy Alumni Association 
University of South Carolina School of 

Medicine Educational Trust 
Clinical Faculty Practice Plan (University 

of South Carolina) 
Charleston Memorial Hospital 
University Medical Associates of the 

Medical University of South Carolina 
(including its three for-profit 
subsidianes) 

Medical University Facilities CofP.oration 
Pharmaceutical Education and Develop

ment Foundation of the Medical 
Universicy of South Carolina 

Medical University of South Carolina 
Foundation for Research 
Development 

Blended Component Units 

The State's financial statements include the 
Governor's School for the Arts Foundation, Inc., a 
blended component unit. The Foundation exists 
solely to support the South Carolina Governor's 
School for the Arts and Humanities. Complete 
financial statements for the Foundation may be 
obtained from its office as follows: 

Governor's School for the Arts 
Foundation Inc. 

Post Office Box 2848 
Greenville, South Carolina 29602 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

The State's financial statements include the 
discretely presented component units listed below. 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1999: 
South Carolina State Ports Authority 
Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund 

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1998: 
South Carolina Public Service Authority 

(Santee-Cooper) 

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, 
development stage enterprise: 

Connector 2000 Association, Inc. 



Notes to the Financial Statements 
The South Carolina Public Service Authority, a 

Q_ublic utility company, was created b~ the S"tate 
General Assembly m 1934. The Authori 's rimar:y 
purpose is to provide electric power an wCoiesale 
water to the people of South Carolina. The 
Governor a_ppoints the Authority's Board of 
Directors. By law, the Authoricy must annually 
transfer to the State General Fund any net earnings 
not necessary for prudent business operations. 

The South Carolina State Ports Authority was 
created in 1942 by the State General Asseml:ily for 
the purposes of developin_g_ and improving the State's 
harBors and seaports. The State Ports Authoricy 
owns and operates seven ocean terminals that handle 
import and export cargo. The Governor appoints the 
members oftlie Authority's governing boaro. 

Connector 2000 Association, Inc. a 
development stage enterprise was created in 1996 to 
assist the Department of Transportation in the 
financing, acguisition, construction, and operation of 
turnpik~s and other transportation projects, primari!y 
the pro.tect known as the Southern Connector m 
Greenville County. The Association is considered to 
be in the develo~ment stage during the construction 
of the Southern Connector. The project is e~pected 
to be completed and in full operation in 2002". The 
Department of Transportation initially set the toll 
rates for the Southern Connector and -has the right, 
but not the obligation, to revise the rates as long as 
they are within 90% to 120% of the optimum toll 
rates as estimated by an independent traffic 
consultant retained by the Association. The rates 
also must be in comp1iance with revenue covenants 
of the Association's financing agreements. The 
Association issued its first financial statements for 
its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, because it 
did not have any financial activity before 1998. 
Thereforei the Association's financial statements for 
the fisca year ended December 31, 1998, also 
represent the cumulative amounts from the 
entemrise's inception. 

The Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund was 
established in 1990. It maintains a revolving loan 
fund to promote economic development m the 
State's Savannah Lakes Region. The Fund's Board 
of Directors consists of three members from each of 
two State agencies, the Department of Commerce 
and the Jobs-Economic Development Authority. 

ComP.lete financial statements for each of fhese 
individual component units may be obtained from 
the entity's admmistrative office as follows: 

State of South Carolina 

South Carolina Public Service Authority 
(Santee-Cooper) 

One Riverwoocf Drive 
Moncks Corner, South Carolina 29461-2901 

South Carolina State Ports Authority 
Post Office Box 22287 
Charleston, South Carolina 29413-2287 

Connector 2000 Association, Inc. 
c/o Sinkler & Boyd, P.A. 
15 South Main Street, Suite 500 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601 

Savannah Lakes R~ional Loan Fund 
1201 Main Street, Suite 1750 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

These financial statements exclude the related 
foundations listed in Note 14 because the State does 
not significantly influence operations of the related 
foundations nor are the related foundations 
accountable to the State for fiscal matters. 

Related Organizations 

A related organization is one for which the 
Jlrimary government is accountable but not 
}l_nancwlly accountable. The South Carolina 
Children's Trust Fund and the Gift of Life Trust 
Fund of South Carolina are related organizations 
because the State is not financially accountable for 
them despite the fact that the Governor appoints all 
of their trustees. County boards of mental 
retardation are related organizations if their members 
are aP.pointed by the Governor but are not related 
organiz;ations if their members <;tre appointed by th~ir 
respective county councils. Enterpnse 
Development, Inc., of South Carolina is a related 
organization because the State created the 
organization and could abolish it, but the State is not 
financially accountable for it. 

Jointly Governed Organizations 

The Governor, in conjunction with officials of 
certain local governments, aP.points the board 
members of two militarY facihty redevelopment 
authorities. The State does not have an ongoing 
financial interest in these authorities. The Governor 
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~!]?points one out of seven board members of the 
Cliarleston Naval Complex Redevelopment 
Authority and three out of nine board members of 
the MY.rtle Beach Air Force Base Redevelopment 
Authority. 

Contingent Future Change in Entity 

The Medical University of South Carolina 
(MUSC)

1 
including its Medical Center, are reported 

within tne State's Higlter Education Funds. In 
June 1999, the South "Carolina General AssemblY. 
p~ssed legislation to establish the Medical 
University Hospital Authority to operate the Medical 
Center. The legislation would take effect upon 
~pp_roval of the Governor or upon adoption by the 
MUSC Board of Trustees of a resolution endorsing 
the provisions of the legislation_. .. whichever occurs 
later. Under the legislation, MUSC's Board of 
Trustees would be the governing body for the 
Medical University Hospital Authonty. 

b. Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting 

The State uses fund accounting under which it 
segregates its resources and accounts for them in 
various individual funds. Each individual fund is an 
accounting enti~ with a self-balancing set of 
accounts. Individual funds that have similar 
characteristics are combined into fund types. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental Funds finance most of the State's 
governmental functions. The measurement focus of 
the Governmental Funds is on sources, uses, and 
balances of financial resources. 

The General Fund is the State's general 
operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund 
tlie servtces South Carolina's State government 
traditionally has provided to its citizens, except those 
required to-be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific 
revenue sources (other than for Capital Projects, 
Trust, and Higher 'Education Funds) that are legally 
restricted for specified purJ>oses. 

Capital Projects Funds account for resources to 
acquire ml!ior capital facilities for use by the General 
Fund and Specia Revenue Funds. 

Debt Service Funds are not used because the 
State does not accumulate resources to pay future 
years' general long-term obligations. Instead, the 
State finances such payments directly from the 
current year's resources. 
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Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary Funds account for activities similar 
to those found in the _private sector. The Financial 
Accounting Standaros Board (F ASB) and its 
predecessor organizations have issued accounting 
and reporting standards for activities in the private 
sector. The State's Proprietary Funds have elected 
not to apply standards issued oy those organizations 
after November 30, 1989. These funds, however 
have applied all applicable pronouncements issued 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

The measurement focus of the Proprietary Funds 
is upon determination of net income, financial 
positiOn, and cash flows. 

Enterprise Funds account for business-like State 
activities that provide goods/services to the public 
financed primarily through user charges. 

Internal Servtce Funos provide goods/services to 
other funds, agencies,. C!)mpon~nt units, or 
governments on a cost-ahocattonoasts. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private 
organizations, or other governmental units. Both 
pnnctpal and earnings oT Expendable Trust Funds 
may oe used for purposes allowed under the trust 
agreements. Only l:he earnings, but not the principal, 
ofNonexpendabfe Trust Funos may be expended. 

Expendable Trust Funds nave the same 
measurement focus as Governmental Funds. 
Nonexpendable Trust, the Investment Trust Fund, 
and Pension Trust Funds have the same 
measurement focus as Proprietary Funds. Agency 
Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. 

Account Groups 

The General Fixed Assets Account Group 
includes all fixed assets of the primary government 
other than those accounted for in the Proprietary, 
Fiduciary and Hig_her Education Funds. 

The General-Long-Term Obligations Account 
G~oup accounts for air long-term obligations. of the 
pnmarY government not accounteo for m the 
Proprietary and Higher Education Funds. 
Significant long-term obligations include bonds, 
capital leases, compensated absences, and claims 
ana judgments. 
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Discretely Presented Component Units 

The State's discretely presented component units 
conduct business-like activities that _provide 
goods/services to the public and are financed 
Qrimarily through user charges. The measurement 
locus of these entities is upon determination of net 
incotpe, fina_ncial position, and cash flows. The 
Pubhc Service Authori!)' and the State Ports 
Authority have elected to apply all F ASB 
Qronouncements that are not mconsistent with 
GASB pronouncements. The remaining discretely 
presented coll}ponent units have elected not to apply 
standards Issued by the F ASB after 
November 30, 1989. 

c. Basis of Accounting 

The basis of accounting determines when the 
State recognizes revenues ana expenditures/expenses 
and related assets and liabilities, regardless of 
measurement focus. 

Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency 
Funds 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used 
in Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency 
Funds. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues 
are recorded when theY. become susceptible to 
accrual (i.e., both measurable anc;I available). Except 
for entitlements, unemployment msurance taxes, and 
mterest on mvestments, revenues are deemed 
available at year-end only if received within one 
month following year-end. Unem_ployment 
insurance taxes in the Expendable Trust Funas are 
deemed available at year-end only if received within 
forty-five days following year-end. Interest on 
mvestments IS recorded as earned because it is 
deemed available when earned. Deferred revenue is 
recorded for receivables that are measurable but not 
availab\e ,ilt year-end. . 

Individual and corporate mcome taxes in the 
hands of employers or COfPOrations, sales and 
similar taxes (mcfuding gasoline taxes) in the hands 
of merchants or otlier State collection agents 
delinquent taxes, charges for services and 
commodities, and interest income are accrued at 
year-end. Fines, forfeitures, licenses and fees and 
other miscellaneous taxes and revenues are recorded 
as revenues when received in cash because they are 
generally nqt measurable until actually received. 

Exp~nditures gent:rally are recorded ~hen goods 
or services are received. An exceP-_tion is that 
Qrincipal and interest on obligations rellected in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are 
record~d as expenditures when due. AdditiOnal 
exceptions are. that expeqditures for compensated 
absences, clam;ts . and judgments, and special 
employee termmation benefits reflected in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are 
recorded when paid. 

State of South Carolina 

Pro~r.ietary Funds, Similar Trust Funds and 
Discretely Presented Component O'nits 

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting to 
report activity of the Proprietary Funds 
Nonexpendable Trust Fund, PensiOn Trust Funds' 
Investment Trust Fun~~ and the discretely P.resented 
component units. under the accrual basis of 
accounting, funds recognize revenues when earned 
and expenses .when incurred. The Public Service 
Authonty, a di~c;retely presented component.unit, is 
a regl;llated utihcy tliaf uses accounfing_prmciples 
estaoh~he.d by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission. The Connector 2000 Association 
Inc., uses accounting principles established for 
development stage enterpnses. 

GranUEntitlement Revenues 

The State recognizes grants, including non-cash 
support, as revenue when the State has incurred 
grant costs and has met all related grant 
requirements (such as matching requirements). In 
contrast, the State recognizes entitlements as 
revenue at the beginning of the entitlement period. 

Non-cash supP.Ort in the form of food 
commodities totaleo $15.821 million for the fiscal 
year ended June 30l 1999. The State recognizes the 
lace value of fooo stamp benefits distributed as 
revenue and expenditures in the Departmental 
General Operating Fund (a Special Revenue Fund) 
at the date of distribution to individual recipients. 
Food stamp revenues and expenditures for the fiscal 
year el_lc;ied June 30, 1999, totaled $255.051 million. 
In additiOn, the State has recorded $54 thousand for 
food stamp coupons on hand at June 30, 1999 as 
part of Otlier Assets and Deferred Revenue. ' 

Th~ ~tate normally does not. account for any 
grants m Its Agency Funds. Pendmg determination 
of which funas are to be financed, however 
grant/entitlement monies to be distributed to other 
State agencies are accounted for in A_gency Funds. 
At Jun~ 30, 1999,. assets totaling $909 thousand 
were ~emg held m Agency Funos pending such 
determmation. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The amounts shown on the Combined Balance 
Sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents represent pet!)' 
casp., cas.h on deposit in banks, and cash invested in 
vanous mstruments as a part of the State's cash 
management pool, an internal investment pool. 
Because the cash management pool operates as a 
demand deposit account, amounts invested in the 
Q_ool are classified as Cash and Cash Equivalents. 
The State Treasurer administers the cash 
management pool. The pool includes some long
term mvestments such as obli~tions of the United 
States and certain agencies of the United States, 
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obligations of domestic corporations, certificates of 
deposit, and co.ll.ateraJized repurcpase agreements. 

Most entities m the pnmary government 
participate in the cash managemettt pool. Significant 
exceptiOns, howeveri are: retirement plans, the 
Local Government nvestment Pool (an external 
investment_pool), the Housing Authority Fund (an 
Enterprise Fund}, and certain activities of the Higher 
Education Funos. Of the discretely presented 
component units, only the State Ports Authority 
P.articipates in the pool. For activities excluded from 
the pool, Cash EqJ.Iivalents include investments in 
short-term!- highly liquid securities having an initial 
matunty or three months or less. 

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest 

The State's cash management pool consists of a 
general deposit account and several SJ?ecial deposit 
accounts. The State records each fund's equity 
interest in the general deposit account. All earnmgs 
on that account, however, are recorded in tlie 
General Ful)d. . In contra~t, each special deposit 
account retams Its own earnmgs. 

f. Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents 

The Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents in the 
Trust and Agency Funds consists of amounts 
associated with die unemploYI]lent compensation 
Q_rogram that are on deposi with the United States 
Treasury. The amount recorded in the General Fund 
represents a state-specific interest-bearing escrow 
account connected with the gain from a multi-state 
legal settlement with the tobacco industry as 
discussed in Note 19b. 

g. Investments 

The State Treasurer is authorized by_ statute to 
invest all State funds. The State Treasurer's 
investment objectives are preservation of capital, 
maintenance or adequate liquidity, and obtaining the 
best yield possiqle ':"ithin prescribed Q_arameters. To 
meet those obJectives, the State Treasurer uses 
various resources including an investment advisoiY. 
service, electronic financial quotation ano 
information services, various economic reports, and 
daily communication with brokers and financial 
institution investment officers. 

To insure safety of principal, the State 
Treasurer's policy,i~ to limit liquid ,investments J .. e., 
those with matunties not exceedmg one year to 
cash, reJ?urchase agreements (when collateralize by 
United States TreaSUJY.~ Federal a_gency or other 
Federally guaranteed oohgations witli a market value 
in excess of 100% of funds advanced), United States 
Treasury bills, Federal agency discount notes, and 
commercial paper. The State Treasurer further 
preserves rrincipal by investing in only the highest 
mvestmen grade securities (i.e., those rated at least 
A by two leading national rating services). In order 
to diversify investment holdings, asset allocation 
P.Olicies are utilized for investments having more 
than one year to maturity. Overall credit exposure is 
managed by asset allocation policies and by 
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additional constraints controlling risk exposure to 
individual corporate issuers. 

Under State law, the State Retirement Systems 
~nvestment P,iinel (tpe Panel} .may make limited 
mve~tments m eqmty secunties for the State's 
PensiOn Trust Funcls. Each member of the State 
Budget and Control Board appoints one member of 
the five-member Panel. The Panel's objective is to 
optimize the long-term P.erformance of equity 
investments consistent with a P.rudent lever of 
portfolio risk, considering the liabilities and liquidity 
needs of the State's Pension Trust Funds. Note 4c, 
State Retirement Systems Investment Panel, 
includes specific details related to the Panel's 
investment plan for the current fiscal year. 

Substantially all of the State's mvestments are 
presented at fair value; securities are valued at the 
last reported sales price as provided by an 
independent pricing service. In contrast, however, 
the State has presented at historical cost the 
investment secunties and other instruments that the 
Chief Insurance Commissioner holds for insurance 
companies in lieu of surety bonds. These 
instruments are recorded in tbe State's Agency 
Funds and are not held for investment pul])oses. 

The State sponsors the Local Government 
Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool 
reported in the Fiduciary Funds as a separate 
Investment Trust Fund. The LGIP's separate 
financial report may be obtained by writing to the 
following address: 

The State Treasurer's Office 
Local Government Investment Pool 
Post Office Drawer 11778 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

h. Receivables 

Receivables are stated net of allowances for 
uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are 
estimated based upon past collection experience. 

i. Inventories 

Inventories of the Governmental Funds are 
valued at cost using predominantly the avera~ cost 
methodology. Inventories of the Proprietary-Funds 
and the discretely presented component units are 
valued at cost usmg_ the average cost methodology. 
The Governmental Funds use the purchases metliod 
while the Proprietary F~nds and the discret~ly 
presented component umts use the consumption 
method. 

j. Servicing Rights 

The Public Railways Division of the Department 
of Commerce (reported in the Other Enterprise 
Funds) entered into a servicing a_greement during its 
fiscal year ended December 3 I, l995. The Division 
reJ?orts servicing rights as an intangible asset which 
will be amortizeo to operating exP,enses over the life 
of the agreement. The servicmg rights are stated net 
of accumulated amortization. 
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k. Interest in License Agreement 

The Connector 2000 Association, Inc., a 
development stage enterpris~ reported as a dis~retely 
P.resented comP.onent umt, IS a party to a License 
Agreement with the State's Department of 
Transportation (DOT). The Association is financing 
and constructing the Southern Connector toll roao 
under the terms of the Agreement. The Agreement 
grants to the .Association vario.us rigllt~ . 11nd 
obligations pertammg to the financmg, acqUisitiOn, 
construction and o_peration of the Southern 
Connector. However, DOT retains fee simple title to 
the Southern Connector, all real property and 
improvements thereon, and all rights-of-way 
acquired during construction. following CO!llpletion 
of the Soutliern Connector s constructiOn and 
commencement of toll road operations the 
Association will be entitled to collect the tolls and 
will be required to paY. mopthly licerse fees to pOT. 

The AssociatiOn's mterest m the License 
Agreement is an intangible asset that will generate 
revenues for the Association upon completion of the 
Southern Connector's construction and 
commencement of toll road operations. In order to 
account for its interest in the License Agreement, the 
Association is capitalizing all costs oT acquisition 
and construction of tlie Southern Connector, 
including interest e~pense attributable to the 
construction period. Unce the toll road is open to 
the public, the Association's interest in the License 
Agreement will be amortized on a straight-line basis 
over the remaining term of the Agreement through 
2038. 

I. Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or at 
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data 
are not available. Donated fixed assets are recorded 
at fair market value on the donation date. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental Funds record expenditures when 
they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those assets 
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The 
General Fixed Assets Account Group records neither 
depreciation nor capitalization of interest 
expenditures duril)g construc.tion. The State dot;s 
not record its pubhc domam (mfrastructure) assets m 
the General Ftxed Assets Account Group. 

Pro~rietary Funds, Similar Trust FundO's ~nd 
Discretely Presented Component mts 

Proprietary_ Funds Nonexpendable Trust Funds 
Pension Trust runds, the Investment Tf4st Fun9, ll;nd 
the discretely presented. componen~ umts capttahze 
fixed assets when acqmred. Net mterest costs are 
capitalized on projects during the construction 
period. Depreciation is provided using the straight
line methoo over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

State of South Carolina 

Asset Years 
Wando River channel dredging project............... ~ 
Other land improvements................................... 3-60 
Residential buildings.......................................... 20-30 
Office and other buildings................................... 5-50 
Naval museum exhibits...................................... 1 0-25 
Hydro-electric utility plants . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . 55 
Other utility plants .. . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 22-37 
Automobiles, vans, light trucks........................... 5-8 
Heavy trucks and buses..................................... 8-15 
Airplanes and helicopters................................... 3-8 
Other furnishings and equipment ....................... 2-25 

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired from 
Contril5uted Capital is closed to Retained Earnings. 

m. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable 
from Restricted Assets 

Most of the amounts reported as Restricted 
Assets in the Enterprise .Funds and in the discretelY. 
presented component umts represent assets reqmrea 
to be held and/or used .as specified in bopd 
indentures and bond resolutiOns. In the Enterpnse 
Funds, Restricted Assets also include amounts 
collected by the Second Injury Fund to pay claims 
for which tlle Fund has no risk. The amounts held 
by the Second Injury Fund are offset by Liabilities 
Payable from Restricted Assets to demonstrate that 
the Fund has not assumed any risk for the payment 
of claims. 

Restricted assets are classified into four 
categories: Cash and Cash Equivalents, 
Investments, Loans Receivable, and Otfier. The 
State's restricted assets consist primarily of United 
States government secunttes~ repurchase 
agreements, and mortgage loans receivable. 

n. Deferred Charges 

Deferred costs to be recovered from future 
revenues of the South Carolina Public Service 
Authority (a regulated utility which is a discretelY. 
presented component unit) are recorded as Deferrea 
Charges. The Authority's rates are based upon debt 
service and operating fund requirements. The 
Authority recognizes differences between debt 
principaf maturities and straight-line depreciation as 
costs to be recovered from future revenue. The 
recovery of outstanding amounts associated wi~h 
costs to be recovered from future revenue will 
coincide with the retirement of the outstanding long
term debt of the Authority. 

Deferred charges also include the cost of a buy
out option on a coal contract exercised by tfie 
Authority. The cost is being amortized as a 
component of fuel costs over the remaining life of 
the termer contract. 
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o. Tax Refunds Payable 

Most of the Tax Refunds Payable balance in the 
General Fund relates to Indivtdual Income Tax. 
During the calendar year, the State collects 
employee withholdings and taxpl!)'ers' payments. 
Taxpayers file returns~by April 15 tor the,preceding 
calendar year. At June 30 the State estimates the 
amount it owes taxpaY-ers for ovet:payments durm_g 
the preceding six months. This estimated pay~ble ts 
recorded as Tax Refunds Payable and a reductton of 
Tax Revenues. 

p. Long-Term Obligations 

The State records long-term debt of 
governmental funds in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group. Other governmental 
fund obligations not expected to be financed wtth 
current available financial resources al.so . are 
recorded in the General Long-Term Obhgattons 
Account Group. Long-term . debt and other 
obligations financed by propnetary funds are 
recorded as liabilities in the appropriate funds. 

The State's debt in the Ge1,1eral Long-Tt::rm 
Obligations Account Group mcludes ~apttal 
appreciation (deep-discount) bonds that were tssued 
a stated interest rates significan.tly b.elow t~e 
effective interest rate. The resultmg dtscount ts 
systematically reduc.ed an<~ the carrying amo4nt of 
the debt is systematically mcreased over the hfe of 
the bonds. . 

For Governmental Fund Types, bond premtums 
and discounts, . as well as tssuanc~ costs...,. are 
recognized durmg the current penod. nond 
proceeds are reported as Other Financing Sources 
net of the applicable premium or discount. Issuance 
costs whether or no withheld from the actual net 
proceeds received, are reP.orted as exP.enditures. 

For Proprietary Funo. Types ana the .discretelY. 
P.resented component umts, bond premtums ano 
Cliscounts as well as issuance costsbare deferred and 
amortized over the life of the onds usmg . the 
effective interest method. For current refunamgs 
and advance refundings resulting in de.f~~sance . of 
debt the difference between the reacgutsttion pnce 
and the net carrying amount of the oiO debt is also 
deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the 
old debt or the life of the new debt, wnichever is 
shorter. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond P.remium or dtscount and deferred 
amount on refunaing. Unamortized issuance costs 
are reported as deferred charges. 

A component unit of an institution reported in 
the State's Higher Education Funds ~nte~s into 
interest rate swap agreements to modtfy !nterest 
rates on outstanding debt. Other than the net mterest 
expenditures resulting from these agreements, no 
amounts are recorded m the financial statements. 

q. Compensated Absences 

During their first ten years of service, most full
time permanent State emplo:xees annuallY earn 
15 days of vacation leave and 15 days of sick ,l~ave. 
After ten years, most employees earn an addttional 
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1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of service 
over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 days 
P.er year. Employees may c~ forward QP to 
i:l-5 days of vacation leave and 180 oays of sick reave 
from one calendar year to the next. Upon 
termination of emP.lOYlflent, the State pays 
employees for accumulated vacation leave at the pay 
rate then in effect. Employees do not receive pay for 
accumulated sick leave when they terminate. 
However, at retirement, employees participating in 
the South Carolina Retirement System and fhe South 
Carolina Police Officers' Retirement System ma:x 
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of 
accumulated unused sick leave. 

When emQloyees earn vacation leave, the 
Governmental Fund Types record a liabili!Y m the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for 
the amount expected to be used or paid in cash. The 
General and Special Revenue Funds record 
expenditures when employees use leave. 

The Proprietary Funds and the discretely 
presented component units record ~n expense and a 
liability when employees earn vacatton leave. 

Tlie State does not record a liability for unpaid 
accumulated sick leave. 

r. Accumulated Deficit-Development Stage 

The Connector 2000 Association, Inc., is a 
development stage enterprise reported ~s a discretely 
presented component umt. Cumulative net losses 
are reported as Accumulated Deficit-Development 
Stage on the Combined Balance Sheet and on the 
Combining Balance Sheet, Discretely Presented 
Component Units. 

s. lnterfund Transactions 

The State accounts for the following types of 
interfund transactions: 

Interfund loans may occur between two State 
funds. Short-term interfund loans outstanding. at 
year-end are recorded as Interfund Recetv
ables/Payables. Advances To/From Other Funds 
represent long-term interfund loans receivable and 
payable. 

Reimbursements result when one fund makes. an 
expenditure on behalf of another fund. Reim
bursement transactions. reduce expend!tures !n the 
reimbursed fund and mcrease expendttures m the 
reimbursing fund. 

Quasi-external transactions involve charges for 
goods or services that one fund delivers or provides 
to another. These transactions may resurt in the 
recording of short-term receivables or payables (Due 
From or To Other Funds, Primary Government, or 
Com_ponent Units) at year-end. . 

Residual equi!Y transfers are nonroutme or 
nonrecurring transfers betwe.en funds. . 

Operating transfers mclude all mterfund 
transactions that are qot loans, reitp.bursemen~s, 
quasi-external transactiOns, or restdual eqmty 
transfers. . . "' d 

The State eliminates matenal mtratun 
transactions and interfund transactions that occur 
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within a single combined financial statement fund 
type. 

t. Escheat Property 

The State accounts for its escheat property in the 
Geperal Fund, the fund to which the property 
ultimately escheats_. To the ext~nt it is probable that 
suc.h property wtll be reclatmed and paid to 
clatmant~, the State records a liability and reduces 
revenue m the General Fund. 

u. Higher Education Funds 

Fit].anci.al . ac!ivities of the ~tate's higher 
educatt_on mstttutwns .ar~ reported m the Higher 
Educatton Funds wtthm lhe State's primary 
govel1l11.lent. .Th~se funds use generally accepteo 
acc;oun~tl].g prmctple.s thl:!t apply to colleges and 
umverstttes as contamed m Audzts of Col/eKes and 
Univ_ersities p).lblished by the Ameri~an Institute of 
Certtfied Publtc Accountants. The Htgher Education 
Funds. are _presented in a separate column on the 
Combmed Ba!ance Sheet. The Combined Statement 
of Changes m Fund Balances-Higher Education 
Funds presents the following fund types: 

C~rrenr Ft!nd~ account lor resources that higher 
educl:!tton mstltu~wns . may use. fo~ any purpose in 
c~mg out t~etr pnmary obJectives. Restricted 
Cu~enfFund~ mcluoe resol!rces that donors or other 
outstd~ agenctes have restrtcted for specific current 
9perattJ!g pu!J)oses. All other current funds are 
Unrestnctea Current Funds. 

Loan Funds account for resources available for 
loans . to . stu.deJ!tS, faculty, or staff of higher 
education mstitutlons. 

Endowment and Similar Funds account for 
endowment and quasi-endowment transactions 
These funds are .similar to trust funds. The State 
must comply With the terms of any applicable 
agreements. 

~lant Funds ~ccount for trans~ctions involving 
phy~Ic~l properttes of the htgher education 
mstttutwns. The Unexpended Plant subgroup 
accounts for monies that institutions have available 
!O finance the a~quisition, construction, or 
!mprov.ement of phystcal properties. Resources that 
mstttutlons have set aside for the renewal and 
replacement of institutional eroperties are also 
recorded in this subgroup. The Retirement of 
Inde~tedness subgr_oup_ includes monies to pay debt 
service and to retire mdebtedness on institutional 
properties. The Investment in Plant subgrouP. 
accounts for funds that institutions have expendeo 
for (and thus have invested in) their properties and 
any related outstanding debt. 

Agency Funds within the Higher Education 
funps .account for amounrs that higher education 
mstttutwns hold as custodtans or fiscal agents for 
others. 

J:oundations and .Institutes Funds account for 
cet:tam .c!Jmponent umts of the State's colleges and 
umverstttes. Most of these component units have 
fiscal years ended June 30, but some have fiscal 
years ended December 31. All component units in 
th~ J:oundations. and Institutes Funds meet the 
cntena for blendmg but are presented in a separate 
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c9lumn because they use a basis of accountin~ 
dtfferent from the one followed by the State s 
co!leges and l!niversities. l\:fost of tf\e component 
umts of higher educatiOn mstltutions are 
governmental entities that follow one of the two 
accounting and financial reporting models defined 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's 
Statement. 29, rhe Use of Nf:!t-for-Profit Accounting 
and Fmanczal Reportmg Prmciples by 
Goyernmental Entities. A few of the component 
umts, however, are non-governmental entities that 
follow g_eneralJY. accepte<f ac<;ounting principles for 
non-prol}t enttfies as ~rescnbed by the Fmancial 
Accountmg Standards Board. 

The Combined Statement of Current Funds 
Revenl!es, Expen~itures, and Other Changes-Higher 
Education Funds ts a statement of financial activtties 
related to the current reporting period. It does not 
purport to present the results of operations or the net 
!ncome or loss for the period as would a statement of 
mcome or a statement of revenues and expenses. 
. .Ca~h transfers between the higher education 
mstltutlons and the General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds appear as revenues and expenditures 
on the Combmed Statement of Revenues 
Expenditures\ and Chan~s in Fund Balances~ 
Buaget ano Actual t~udgetary Basis}-All 
Budgeted Funds. On all other combined operating 
~tat~m~nts, howev~r, such transfers to (from) the 
mstltut~ons appear m the Higher Education Funds as 
Operatmg Transfers In (Out): 

The measurement focus in the Higher Education 
Funds is upon determination of resources received 
and used. The Higher Education Funds use the 
accrual basis. Althoug!l certain not-for-profit 
component units in the 1-"oundations and Institutes 
Fl!nd record qepreciation of fixed assets, other 
Higher Education Funds do not. In addition 
revepues from tuition and student fees of a summer 
sessiOn are reported totally within the fiscal year in 
which the session is predominantly conaucted. 
Current Funds used to finance plant assets are 
accounted for as ( 1) expenditures for normal 
replacement of movaole equjpment and library 
book.s,. (2) mandatory transters for requireo 
provisiOns for debt amortization/interest and 
t3) transfers of a nonmandatory nature for all other 
cases. 

Higher Education Funds record exP.enditures 
when they acquire fixed assets and caQitalize those 
ass~ts . wit)lin their Plant Funds. These funds 
capitahze mterest expenditures during construction 
but do not rec;ord depreci~tion. 

Unamortized pond dtscounts are netted against 
the . related portiOn of bonds payable in the 
~ettrement of Inpebtedness subgrouP.. The 
discounts ~re amortized to interest on inoebtedness 
over the hfe of the bonds using the straight-line 
method. 

Inventories of the Higher Education Funds are 
yalued at the lower of cost or market using the first
m, first-out method. These funds use the 
consumption method of recording inventories. 

Th~ State's c9ll~ges .and umversities record an 
expenditure and habiiity m the Unrestricted Current 
Funds when employees earn credits toward future 
compensated absences. 
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v. Totals (Memorandum Only) Columns 

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only" 
columps for ~he primary government ~nd for the 
reportmg entity represent an aggregation of the 
combineo financial statement line-Items to facilitate 
financial analysis. Amounts in the "Totals
Memorandum Only" columns are not comparable to 
a consolidation. 

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY ACCOUNT
ING AND REPORTING 

a. Budgetary Funds 

South Carolina's AQPropriation Act does not 
present budgets by GAAP fund. Instead, it presents 
budg_ets for: 

General Funds. These funds are general 
operating funds. The resources in these funds are 
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to 
~rovide traditional State government services. The 
General Funds column m the A_ppropriation Act 
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund. 

Total Funds. The Total Funds column in the 
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources. 
Amounts in this column include General Funds as 
well as most Federal and department-generated 
resources. Total Funds include certain Proprietary 
and Capital PrQject Fund activities but exclude 
Pension Trust Funds and most other Trust and 
Agency Fund activities. 

The accompanying financial statements include 
a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expendituresi 
and Changes in Fund Balances-Budg_et and Actua 
(Budgetary Basis }-All Budgeted Funds. The 
Budgetary Generaf Fund categ_ory on that statement 
corresponds to the General Funds column in the 
Appropriation Act. The Other Budgeted Funds 
category re_presents the difference between the Total 
Funds ana the General Funds columns in the 
Appropriation Act. 

b. Budgetary Basis of Accounting 

Current legislation states that the General 
Assembly intends to approP.riate all monies to 
operate State government for the current fiscal year. 
Agencies may carry forward UP. to I 0% of 
unexpended Bud_getary General Fu.ng appropriations 
to the next fiscaryear. Any remammg unexpended 
Budg_etary General Fund appropriations l!ipse. on 
July~ I unless the department or agency IS given 
specific authorization lo carry them forward to the 
next fi~cal y~ar. C!ish-basis accounting for payroll 
expenditures IS required. 

State law does not_precisely define the budgetary 
basis of accounting. fn J?ractlce, however, it IS the 
cash basis with the following exceptions: 
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(i) Departments. and agencies charge . certain 
vendor and mterfuno payments agamst the 

P.receding fiscal year's appropriations 
through July 20. 

(ii) Certain revenues collected in advance are 
recorded as liabilities (deferred revenues) 
rather than as revenues. 

(iii) The following taxes in the Combined 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and 
Actual (Budgetary Basis) are recorded on 
the modified accrual basis: Admissions 
Tax, Alcoholic Liquors Tax, Beer and Wine 
Tax, Business License Tax....._ Electric Power 
Tax Gasoline Tax, Sales 1 axes (including 
the Education Improvement Act-I% Sales 
Tax, Excise Tax...:....Casual Sales, and Retail 
Sales Tax-4%), Soft Drinks Tax, and 
Commercial Nuclear Waste Tax. 

(iv) All other revenues are recorded only when 
the State receives the related cash. 

c. Budgetary Policies 

State law does not require the use of 
encumbrance accounting. Neither the General Fund 
nor the Budgetary General Fund,_ therefore, records 
encumbrances or a reserve ror encumbrances. 
Instead, the General Fund records the authorized 
appropriations to be carried forward as a reserve of 
fund Balance. 

The State maintains budgetary control at the 
level of summary object category of expenditure 
within each program of each department or agency. 
All budgeted departments and agencies except tlie 
higher education institutions process their 
disbursement vouchers through a central budgetary 
accounting s_ystem maintaineo by the Compfroller 
General's Otlice. Departments and agencies rna~ 
process disbursement vouchers in the State s 
budgetary accqu11ting systept only if enougl! cash 
and appropnatwns exist. The State's 
I998-I999 Appropriation Act has approximately 
2,920 appropnated line items. These line items 
constitute the level of legal control over 
expenditures. The level of legal control for all 
(!gencies is reported in a Qublication of the State 
Comptroller General's Office titled "A Detailed 
~eport of AP.propriations and Expenditur~s," not 
mcluded herem. Departrn':!n~s ana agencies may 
re~uest transfers of appropnatwns among programs 
within the same budgetary fund. No sucli transfer 
request, however, ma_y exceed twenty percent of the 
~rogram budget. fn addition, tlie Budget and 
Control Board. composed of five key executive and 
legislative offlcials1 has the authority to restrict 
transfers of app~opnations between personal service 
and other operatm_g accounts. 

Each year, tlie General Assembly enacts an 
AppropriatiOn Act that includes initial estimated 
revenue and appropriation figures for the Budgetary 
General Fund. Tlie I998-I999 Appropriation Act 
directs the Budget and Control Board to reduce the 
Budgetary General Fund's appro~ri!ltion~ dur~ng the 
year If necessary to prevent a delicit. Likewise, the 
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State Board of Economic Advisors may approve 
revisions of estimated revenues for the Budgetary 
General Fund duriQg the year. 

For Other ffudgeted Funds, the annual 
Appropriation Act Qresents estimated revenue 
amounts only for the Education Improvement Act;. 
revenues earmarked for tax relief, and revenues or 
the Defartment of Transportation. The Budget and 
Contra Board, however, provides estimated revenue 
amounts for the other resources in these funds. The 
Appropriation Act includes all appropriation 
amounts for these funds. 

As op~rating conditions cl'l~nge, deparJ:ments 
and agencies may request revlSlons of estimated 
revenues and expenditures in Other Budgeted Funds. 
Such changes require the Budget and Control 
Board's approval: . Departme11ts and agencies also 
may reguest revlSlons of estimated revenues and 
appropnations for permanent imP.rovement projects 
tfiat the General Assembly diG not specifically 
authorize. The Budg~t and Control Board and the 
Joint Bond Review ""Committee must approve and 
review these changes. During the current fiscal year, 
the State's budget was amenoed in accordance with 
the 12rocedures outlined above. 

During 1997-1998, the General Assembly 
a1mroved a SupP,lemental Appropriation Act that 
aooed $86.158 million of additional appropriations 
to the Budgetary General Fund for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1999. Of this amount, 
$7.270 million was used to fund the General 
Reserve, and the rem~ining $78.888 milli_on was 
~ppropnated to vanous state agencies on 
September 1, 1998. Late in 1998-1999, the General 
Assembly afproved $82.122 million of additional 
sup_plementa appropriations. Of this amount, 
$16-.000 million was expended during 1998-1999 
and the remaining $66.122 million was appropriated 
and reserved as Appropriations to oe Carried 
Forward to 1999-2000. 

A new law, which became effective on 
July 1, 1998, required certain amounts of income 
taxes to be considered as resources of the State's 
unbudgeted Tax Relief Trust Fund rather than as 
revenues of the Budgetary General Fund. 
ConsequentlY, both revenues ana expenditures of the 
Budgetary General Fund were smaller in 1998-1999 
than one might otherwise have expected. In 
1997-1998, the Budgetary General Fund recorded all 
state income tax revenues and all expenditures for 
tax relief. In 1998-1999, the State deducted 
$337.728 million of income tax revenues from the 
Budgetary General Fund and recorded them instead 
in unbudgeted funds. Likewise the State paid 
$353.459 million of expenditures for tax relief from 
unbudg_eted funds rather than from the Budgetary 
General Fund. Accordingly, amounts of revenues 
and expenditures for the -Budgetary General Fund 
and for Total Budgeted Funds !or 1998-1999 are not 
comparable to those of previous years. 

d. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 the 
Educational function within Other Budgeted Funds 
had $16.982 million of expenditures in excess of 
appropriations at the level of legal control. These 
overexpenditures were associateo with the State's 
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technical colleges. The technical colleges maintain 
their own accounting systems. The colleges had 
sufficient budgetary-basis revenue and cash to 
provide for their budgetary-basis expenditures. 

e. Excess of Revenues Earmarked for Public 
Education Over Expenditures for Public 
Education 

Tl'le 1998-1999 Appropriation Act and the South 
Carolina Code of Laws require that certain portions 
of selected Budgetary General Fund revenue sources 
be expended exclusively to support specified 
educatiOn agencie~ and for other school P.Urposes. 
These legar regmrements are considered to be 
satisfied if tlie Budgetary General Fund's 
ex;penditures for these particular agencies and for 
otfier schoolJ2urposes exceed the specified revenues. 
For the liscal .,Year ended June 30, 1999 
expenditures were $23.576 million less than the 
required spending level. 

f. Legal Limit On Appropriations 

State law imposes a ceiling on appropriations for 
general, school, and hi_ghway pu!1Joses. The limit 
equal~ the greater of : t l) the hmif for the last fiscal 
year mcreased by the average percentage rate of 
growth in State personal income for the ~revious 
three completed. calendar years, or (2) 9.5 ~ of the 
total personal mcome of the State for the last 
comQleted calendar year. 

The 1998-1999 Appropriation Act included 
apP,ropriations of $5.792 bilhon for general, school, 
ana h~gh,way purposes-$1.594 billion less than the 
legal hmit. 

g. Legal Limit on Number of State Employees 

The State's Constitution and statutes limit the 
number of emploxees that the Budgetary General 
Fund may funa. The number of these emploxees 
may not mcrease faster than the State's population. 
On June 30 1999 38,327 employees were funded 
by the State1s Budgetary General-Fund-9,199 fewer 
tlian the legal limit. 

h. Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Reporting 
Differences 

The Combined Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Buoget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)-:All Budgeted 
Funds presents comparisons of the State's legally 
adopted budget with actual data on the budget~ 
basis of accounting. Bud_getary accounting 
principles, however, differ significantly from GAAP 
ac~ol!nting principles. .These different acqounting 
P.ri!1Ciple~ result m. basis, perspective, entity, ana 
timmg differences m the excess of revenues and 
other sources of financial resources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses of financial resources. 
Tliese differences (expressed in thousands) for the 
fiscal year ended June30, 1999, were: 
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Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 

Budgetary Balances Classified Into GAAP 
Fund Structure 

Budgetary Other Total 
General Budgeted Budgeted 

GAAP Fund Type Fund Funds Funds 

General Fund ........................... $ 206,415 $ 2,134 $ 208,549 

Special Rewnue Funds ............. 124,236 124,236 
Capital Projects Fund ................ (11,056) (11,056) 

Enterprise Funds ...................... 3,793 3,793 

lntemal Ser.1ce Funds ............... (647) (647) 

Expendable Trust Funds ............ 73 73 
Nonexpendable Trust Fund ........ 97 97 

Pension Trust Funds ................. 12 12 
lnwstment Trust Fund ............... 
Agency Funds .......................... (210) (210) 
Higher Education Funds ............ (101,244) (101,244) 
Component Units ...................... 11,900 

Totals (Memorandum Only) .... $ 206,415 $ 29,088 $ 

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTING AND 
REPORTING CHANGES 

a. Deferred Compensation Plans 

Effective July 1, 1998, the State adopted the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's 
(GASB) Statement 32 entitled Accounting and 
Financzal Re12orting for Interna? Revenue Co_de 
Section 457 Deferred' Compensatzon Plans, which 
established reporting requirements for IRC 
Section 457 plans. As a result of implementing this 
statement, the State removed the Deferred 
Compensation Plans from the Trust and Agency 
Fun<fs. Assets and liabilities of approximately 
$1.165 billion each as of June 30, 1998, were 
omitted, with no effect on fund equity. 

b. Changes in Capitalization Policy 

Certain higher education institutions~ accounted 
for within the State's Higher EducatiOn Funds 
increased their caQitalization thresholds for fixed 
assets during the tiscal year ended June 30, 1999. 
These changes, recognizeo retroactively, resulted in 
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11,900 

235,503 

Entity 
Differences 

Timing Basis (Unbudgeted GAAP 
Differences Differences Funds) Balances 

$ $ (18,498) $ 1,244 $ 191,295 
420,442 16,594 561,272 

7,306 30,998 27,248 
11,547 11,690 27,030 
13,850 (58,237) (45,034) 

(1) 37,396 37,468 
(14) (8) 75 

427,209 427,221 
121,950 121,950 

210 
3,303 (13,082) 216,828 105,805 

35,810 47.710 

$ 3,303 $ 421,760 $ 841,474 $ 1,502,040 

an approximately $87.887 million decrease in the 
$2.498 billion fund balance of the Higher Education 
Investment in Plant Fund as previously reported at 
June 30, 1998. Accordingly, the fund oalance of the 
Higher Education Investment in Plant Fund was 
approximately $2.411 billion at July 1, 1998. 

c. Change in Entity 

In the Q..ast, the State reporting enti!)' included 
Ente!]Jrise ·Development, Inc., ot- Soutfi Carolina 
(EDI) as a discretely presented component unit. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 
however, ED I' s relationship with the State changed 
in such a way that EDI now is a related organizatiOn 
(see Note 1a) rather than a component unit. 

EDI was created to provide contractual services 
to the State. EDI provided no services to the State 
during the fiscal year ended June 30\ 1999..,_ and the 
State does not expect to contract with Eul in the 
future. EDI currently is affiliated with, and 
effectively controlled by, a nonprofit organization 
that has no relationship with the State. 

At June 30, 1998, the following balances were 
included in the State's financial stafements for EDI: 
assets of $1.3 84 million, liabilities of $823 thousandi 
and retained earnings of $561 thousand. AI 
amounts for EDI have been removed from the 
State's financial statements for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999. 
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NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVEST
MENTS 

By law, all deP-osits and investments are under 
the control of the State Treasurer except for those 
which by specific authority are under die control of 
other agencies or discretely presented component 
units pnmarily the Public Service Authori!)'. 

Tlie following display reconciles tlie details 
included within this lootnote to the Combined 
Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999 (expressed in 
thousands): 
Combined Balance Sheet 

Cash and cash equivalents... $ 
Cash on aeposit with fiscal agents .... 
Less: Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund 

deposits with United States Treasury ..... 
Investments ... 
Invested securities lending collateral. ... 
Restricted assets: 

5.286,325 
791.931 

(763,293) 
18,502,912 

1,483,311 

Cash and cash equivalents... 550,200 
Investments.. ..... . ................. 247,358 

Total................................................................................. "'t"$---:;:26;-;,0;-;;:98;;-:;, 7;..-44• 

Disclosure regarding deposita and lnvestmenta plus 
reconciling Items 

Carrying value of deposits... $ 120,661 
Reported amount of investments... 25,977,017 

Cash on hand... ...----""""'~1,066..,..,.... 
Total................................................................................. $ 26,098,744 

Amounts on deposit with the United States 
Treasury that relate to the UnemploYJI.lent 
Compensation Benefits Fund are not cat~orized 
~eCl;lUSf? they ~re neither deposits with financial 
mshtutiOns nor Investments. 

a. Deposits 

Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on 
deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of 
deposit. At June 30, 19991 the deposits of the State's 
pnmary government ana its discretelY. fresented 
component units (expressed in thousanos were as 
follows: 

Total 
Category Bank Carrying 

2 3 Balance Amount 
Primary 
Government ... $ 236,948 $ 21,534 $ 47,429 $ 305,911 $ 92,753 

Component 
Unls ... 1,675 358 25,875 27,908 27,908 

Totals ............. $ 238,623 $ 21,892 $ 73,304 $ 333,819 $ 120,661 

State of South Carolina 

Category 1 deposits are those covered by 
Federal depository msurance or by collateral held by 
a State entity (i.e., primary governm~nt or disqretely 
presented comQ_onent umt) or by Its agent m the 
entity's name. Category 2 deposits are cOllateralized 
~it4 ~ecurities held by the pledging financial 
mstitutwn's trust department or agent m a State 
entity's name. Category 3 deposits are 
uncollateralized. All deposits under the control of 
the State Treasurer are fully insured or 
collateralized. 

b. Investments 

Legally authorized investments v~ by fund 
but generally include obligations of the United 
States and certain agencies of the United States1 obligations of the State of South Carolina ana 
certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of 
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, 
certain corporate bonds}. and commercial paper. 

Substantially all or the State's investments are 
presented at fair value. Securities are valued at the 
!ast reP.orted .s~les pric;e as provided py an 
mdependent pncmg service. Investment mcome 
consists of realizeo and unrealized appreciation 
{ depreci~tion) in the fair value of investments and 
mterest mcome earned. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the 
State's primary government and its discretely 
presented component units have classified their 
mvestments into three risk categories. Category 1 
includes investments that were insured or registered 
or for which the securities were held bY. a State 
entity (i.e., primary g_overpment qr oiscre~el>-' 
presented component umt) or Its agent m the entity s 
name. Category 1 also includes investments for 
which a Stat~ entity has safeJ<.eeping responsibilities 
but no egm!)' or ownership mterest or control. 
Category 'I includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments for which the securities were held by the 
counterparty's trust department or agent in a State 
entity's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investments for which the securities are 
held oy the countei:party, or by its trust department 
or agent but not in a State entity's name. The 
investments of the State's primary government and 
its discretely presented component units by risk 
category (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1999, 
were: 

75 



State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Primary Government 

U.S. government securities.................. $ 
Corporate bonds .................................. . 
Repurchase agreements ..................... . 

Collateralized rmrtgage obligations ..... . 

Asset-backed securities ..................... . 

Commercial paper ................................ . 

Securities lending program 

Investments from cash collateral 
Corporate bonds .............................. . 

Repurchase agreements ................. . 
Commercial paper ............................ . 

Other .................................................... . 

Subtotals ............................................ . 
Not categorized: 

11.\Jtual funds ...................................... . 

Securities lending program 

U.S. government securities ............. . 

Corporate bonds .............................. . 
Unsettled investment transactions .... . 

1 

8,610,031 
8,652,006 

1,378,572 
776,963 
150,797 

1,207,032 

14,673 

Category 

2 

$ 274,924 
22,153 

2,119 

30,714 

$ 

3 

40,336 
3,932 

14,851 

620,714 
653,323 

209,274 

13,068 

Reported 

Amount 

$ 8,925,291 

8,678,091 
1,395,542 

776,963 
150,797 

1,207,032 

620,714 

653,323 
209,274 

58,455 

22,675,482 

1,001,825 

1,365,231 

71,689 

133,309 

Fair 

Value 

$ 8,934,304 

8,678,754 
1,395,542 

776,963 
150,797 

1,207,032 

620,714 
653,323 
209,274 

59,240 

22,685,943 

1,001,825 

1,365,231 

71,689 
133,309 

Totals--primarygovernment ........ $ 20,790,074 $ 329,910 $ 1,555,498 25,247,536 25,257,997 

Discretely Presented 
Component Units 

U.S. government securities.................. $ 253,798 $ $ 107,366 361 '164 
368,162 

361,164 

368,162 Repurchase agreements ..................... . 197,262 170,900 

Subtotals ............................................ . 
Not categorized: 

Investment in primary government's 
investment pool. ............................... . 

Mutual funds ...................................... . 

Totals-discretely presented 

729,326 

51 

104 

729,326 

51 

104 

component units.......................... $ 451,060 $ 170,900 $ 107,366 729,481 729,481 

Totals--reporting entity ................ . 

At June 30, 1999, the State held collateralized 
mortgage obligations primarily in its Pension Trust 
FundS. These securities were purchased to protect 
the State's Pension Trust Funds from pnncipal 
prepayment risk during an environment of declinmg 
mterest rates and to provide incremental yield above 
that available on coi:porate securities with similar 
terms. These securities also provide diversification 
in the Pension Trust Fund investment portfolios 
and maintain the high quality of government
sponsored instruments in the portfofios. It is 
estimated that these securities will provide future 
cash inflows on a time schedule that approximately 
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$ 25,977,017 $ 25,987,478 

matches the outflows associated with Pension Trust 
Fund liabilities. These highly marketable securities 
are rated AAA by the major rating agencies. 

The asset-backed securities lielcfby the State at 
June 30, 1999, were held by the State's Pension 
Trust Funds. These securities, with an average life 
of one to three years and a legal final matunty of 
five to six years, represented an undivided 
ownership interest in a trust consisting of credit
card; automobile loan, and utility receivables. Most 
of tnese securities were purchased in the current 
fiscal year when short-term interest rates were 
approximately 5.0% and they could provide 
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incremental yields above other securities with 
similar matunties without increasing the risk of the 
investment portfolios. These asset-Backed securities 
are rated AAA by the major rating agencies. 

The fiscal year for tlie Public Service Authority, 
a discretely presented comRonent unit, ends 
December 31. Included in the Public Service 
Authoricy's investments, carried at fair value~ are 
nuclear oecommissioning funds of $59.665 million 
with related unrealized holdin~ gains of 
$13.298 million. All ofthe Authority s investments, 
with the exception of decommissioning funds, are 
limited to a maturity of ten years or less. 

c. State Retirement Systems Investment Panel 

State law created the State Retirement Systems 
Investment Panel that may make limited investments 
in eguity securities for the State's Pension Trust 
Funds. The five-member investment panel, 
established by legislation} is responsible for 
developing investment goa s and oojectives and 
defining the tyQes of investments that the State's 
Pension Trust Funds can purchase. By law~ a 
maximum of I 0 percent of assets for each pensiOn 
system may be invested in eguities annually until a 
ma:x,i~um of 40 percent of assets is invested in 
eqmties. 

The annual investment plan adopted by the panel 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999~ provided for 
5 P,ercent of the assets to be invested m a Standard 
and Poor's 500 index fund. This initial investment 
is included as mutual funds in the Primary 
Government section of the table in subsection b 
(Investments) above. As of June 30, 1999, the 
balance held in mutual funds for the State's Pension 
Trust Funds was $938.460 million. 

d. Securities Lending Programs 

By law\ the State's primary government may 
lend securities from its investment P-Ortfolios on a 
collateralized basis to third parties, primarily 
financial institutions, with a simultaneous agreement 
to return the collateral for the same securities in the 
future. The State may lend United States 
Government securities corporate bonds, and other 
securities for collateraf in the form of cash or other 
securities. The contracts with the State's custodians 
require them to indemnify the State if the borrowers 
fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is 
inadequate to reP-lace the securities lent) or fail to 
pay the State for income distributions by the 
securities' issuers while the securities are on loan. 

The weighted average maturity of the State's 
collateral investments generally matched the 
maturit): of the securities loans dunng the fiscal year 
and at June 30, 1999. At June 30, 1999, the State 
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the 
amounts the State owed the borrowers exceeded the 
amounts the borrowers owed the State. Either the 
State or the borrower can terminate all securities 
loans on demand. There are no restrictions on the 
amount of the loans that can be made. For the fiscal 
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year ended June 30, 1999, the State experienced no 
losses on its securities lending transactiOns because 
of borrower defaults. 

The State receives primarily cash as collateral 
for its loaned securities. A small portion of the 
collateral received by the State at June 30, 1999, was 
in the form of securities. The market value of the 
required collateral must meet or exceed 102% of the 
market value of the securities loaned, providing a 
margin against a decline in the market value oflhe 
collateral. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999, the State met the 102% requirement. 
The State cannot pledge or sell collateral securities 
unless the borrower del~mlts. The lending agent, on 
behalf of the State, invests cash collateral received. 
Accordingly, at June 30, 1999, these investments of 
cash collateral were recorded as assets on the State's 
Combined Balance Sheet. Corresponding liability 
amounts also have been recorded oecause the State 
must return the cash collateral to the borrower UJ:20n 
expiration of the loan. At June 30, 1999, the fair 
value of the State's securities on loan was 
$1.437 billion and they are uncategorized as to 
custodial credit risk in the table in subsection b 
(Investments) above. for the State's cash collateral 
mvestments, the table mcludes the reP-orted amount, 
fair value, and custodial credit risk by investment 
type. 

NOTE 5: TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Taxes receivable (expressed in thousands) at 
June 30, 1999, were: 

General 
Fund 

Retail sales and use................. $ 216,604 
ndividual inCOil'"e............... ... .. .. . 153,779 
Corporate incoll'"e..................... 8,109 
lklel!llloYil'"ent. ........................ . 
Gasoline and motor vehicle...... 644 
Alcoholic beverages and 

tobacco .............. ·················· 15,021 
Other ................. ...................... 15,819 

Gross taxes receivable ....... 409,976 
Less: Allowance for uncollect-

ible taxes ............................. 34,341 

Net taxes receivable ............. $ 375,635 

Special Trust and 
Revenue Agency 

Funds Funds 

$ 78,637 $ 

37,079 
33,464 5,845 

20,940 

133,041 42,924 

3,868 145 

$ 129,173 $ 42,779 

A total of $417.463 million in net taxes 
receivable pertaining to the General Fund and 
Special Revenue Funds were current receivables as 
o June 30h1999, and were collected within thirty 
days after t at date. 

NOTE 6: FIXED ASSETS 

ProRerty, plant and equipment (expressed m 
thousands) at June 3'0, 1999, consisted of: 
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Primary Government 

Enter- Internal 
prise Service 

Land and improvements ..... $ 18,700 $ 5,662 
Buildings, improvements, 
and utility plant... ............... 3,930 147,556 

Machinery, equipment, 
and other ........................... 15,010 130,995 

Construction in progress ..... 6,796 

Property, plant and 
equipment before 
accumulated 
depreciation .................... 37,640 291,009 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation .................... (11,225) (128,729) 

Total property, plant 
and equipment, net. ........ $ 26,415 $ 162,280 

Changes in general fixed assets (expressed in 
thousands) for tlie fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, 
were: 

Land and irrproverrents ... 
Buildi'lgs, irproverrents 
and utility plant... .. . . 

l'lechinery. equipment, 
and other ..... 

Construction in progress .. 

Total General Axed 

July 1, 1998 
Balance 

$ 201.100 

1.077.044 

1,020,937 
57,824 

June 30, 1999 
Additions Retirements Balance 

$ 1.308 $ 6,935 $ 195.473 

61.119 15.695 1,122.468 

91,632 70,305 1.042.264 
51.383 62,593 46.614 

Assets.......................... $ 2,358,905 $ 205,442 $ 155,528 $ 2,406,819 

Construction in progress retirements are 
recorded as additions to other categories of assets. 

Outstanding commitments for construction of 
fixed assets and _public domain (infrastructure) assets 
at June 30, 1999, totaled $584.617 million for the 
primary government. Outstanding commitments for 
constructiOn of such assets for discretely presented 
component units were as follows: $19.045 million 
for the Public Service Authority at 
December 31, 1998; $38.762 million for the State 
Ports Authority at June 30A 1999; and $3.721 million 
for the Connector 20u0 Associates, Inc., at 
December 31, 1998. 

The primary government recorded capitalized 
constructiOn penocf interest of $1.538 million during 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. DiscretelY. 
presented component units recorded capitalizea 
construction period interest of $1.693 million during 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 
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$ 

$ 

Trust General Higher Com-
and Fixed Educa- ponent 

Agency Assets tion Units 

582 $ 195,473 $ 129,077 $ 250,793 

4,749 1,122,468 2,098,714 3,606,080 

5 1,042,264 761,364 49,725 
46,614 143,181 105,536 

5,336 2,406,819 3,132,336 4,012,134 

(808) (18,669) (1,397,603) 

4,528 $ 2,406,819 $ 3,113,667 $ 2,614,531 

NOTE 7: RETIREMENT PLANS 

Note 1 c describes the basis of accounting that 
the State's ftve defined benef1t pension plans use to 
report PensiOn Trust Fund activity. Note 4 specifies 
!he method used to value Pension Trust Fund 
mvestments. 

a. Plan Descriptions 

The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the 
System), a p~rt of the State Budget and Control 
Board, admmtsters four defined benefit retirement 

~
ans: the South Carolina Retirement S_ystem 

SCRS), the South Carolina Police Otllcers' 
etirement System (PORS), the Retirement System 

for Members of the General Assemblv of the State 
of South Carolina (GARS)~ and tne Retirement 
System for Judges and Solicitors of the State of 
Soutp Caro!ina (JSRS). T~e System issues a 
publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Re_port that includes required supplementary 
information for all four plans. The report may be 
obtained by writing to: 

The South Carolina Retirement System 
Fontaine Business Center 
202 Arbor Lake Drive 
Columbia, South Carolina 29223 

SCRS, established b_y Section 9-1-20 of the 
South Carolina Code or Laws is a cost-sharing 
multiple-emP.loyer defined benefit pension_plan that 
benefits employees of public schools, the ~late and 
its political suodivisions. Membership is required as 
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a condition of employment. Both employers and 
employees must contnbute. Benefits vest after five 
years of service. Vested members who retire at age 
sixty-five or with thirt).: years of service at any age 
receive an annual benefit, payable monthlyd for life. 
The benefit is based on lengtli of service an average 
final compensation, an annualized average of tfie 
employee's highest twelve consecutive quarters' 
compensation. -The annual benefit amount is 1.82% 
of average final compensation times Y.ears of service. 
Reducecf benefits are payable as early as age fifty
five. 

PORS, established by Section 9-11-20 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan thal 
benefits police officers and fire fighters employed by 
the State or its political subdivisions. Membershjp ts 
required as a condition of employment. Roth 
employers and employees must contribute. Benefits 
vest alter five years of service. Vested members 
who retire with twenty-five years of service receive 
an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The 
benefit is based on length of servtce and average 
final compensation, an annualized average of tfie 
employee's highest twelve consecutive quarters' 
compensation. -The annual benefit amount is 2.14% 
of avera_ge final compensation times years of service. 

GARS, establisfied by Section 9-9-20 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws is a single-employer 
defined benefit pension plan that benefits members 
of the Soutli Carolina General Assembly. 
Membership is required as a condition of taking 
office as a member of the General Assembly. Botfi 
the members of the General Assembly and the State 
must contribute. Benefits vest after eight years of 
service. Vested members who retire at age sixty or 
at anY. age with thirty years of service receive an 
annual Benefit, payable monthly_. for life. The 
annual benefit amount is 4.8L.% of earnable 
compensation times years of service. Earnable 
compensation is defined as forty dl!)'s' pay at the rate 
currently paid to members of the General Assembly 
plus $12 thousand. 

JSRS, established by Section 9-8-20 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a sin_gle-employer 
defined benefit pension plan that benetrts the JUdges 
of the State's SuP,reme Court, Court of ApJ?eals, 
circuit courts, family courts, and the State's circuit 
solicitors. Membership is required as a condition of 
taking office. Both judges and the State must 
contribute. Benefits vesl after twelve years of 
service in a position as a judge or solicitor. 
Members may retire ~t age seve~tv with fifteen years 
of s~rvtce, at age stxty-fiye wtth twenty years of 
service, or at any age wtth twenty-five Y.ears of 
service. Members receive a retirement benefit equal 
to 71 }% of th~ current active salary of the position 
occu_pted at retirement. 

fnformation regarding the number of 
Qarticipating employers at June 30, 1999, was as 
lollows: 

State of South Carolina 

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS 

State and school.. ......................... ----=-:98:- --1- --1- --1-

Other. .......................................... . 517 263 

Total participating e"llloyers ....... . 615 ----u4 --1- --1-

The plans provide retirement, death, and 
disability benefits to State employees; public school 
employees; employees of counties, municipalities, 
and certain other State political subdivisions. Each 
Qlan is independent. Assets may not be transferred 
lrom one plan to another or used for any purpose 
other than to benefit each plan's participants. 
b. Funding Policies 

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina 
Constitution req~ires that all State-operated 
retirement plans oe funded on a sound actuarial 
basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
(as amended) prescribes requirements relatin_g to 
membership, benefits, and emP,loyee/employer 
contributions for each plan. Tlie followmg 
para_graphs summarize those requirements. 

By law, employee contribution requirements for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, were as follows: 

Plan Rate 

SCRS 6% ofsalary 
PORS 6. 5% of salary 
GARS 1 0% of earnable 

compensation 
JSRS 7% of salary 

Actuarial!Y determined employer contribution 
rates for the four plans, expressed as percentages of 
compensation, for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999, were as follows: 

Plan Rate 
8CRS 7.70% 
PORS 10.70% 
JSRS 40.69% 
GARS 72.23% 

Under certain conditions, new employers 
entering the plans are allowed up to ten years to 
remit matchmg employer contributions resulting 
from their employees' purchase of prior service 
credits. Interest is assessed annually on the unpaid 
balance. The amounts outstanding at June 30, 1999d 
were $2.327 million for SCRS and $999 thousan 
forPORS. 
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c. Annual Pension Cost 
Annual pension cost (dollars expressed in 

thousands) and related actuanal data for the State's 
single-employer defined benefit pension plans were 
as follows: 

GARS JSRS 

Annual pension cost. .............. . $2,768 $5,485 
Employer contributions 

made ................... . $2,768 $5,485 
Actuarial ~o&luation date ........ . July 1, 1998 July 1, 1998 
Actuarial cost method ............ . Entry aga Entry age 
Amortization method .............. . Lewl percent, open Lewl percent. open 
Remaining amortization 

period ...................... . 
Asset ~o&lualion method .......... . 

Actuarial assumptions: 
lnwstment rate of return .... .. 
Projected salary increases .... . 
Assumed inftation rate. 
Assumea cost-of-liiAng 

edjustments ............ . 

SCRS-State: 
Primary government... .. 
Component units .......... 

PORS-State: 
Primary government.. ... 
Component units .......... 

26 years 28 years 
5 year smoothed 5 year smoothed 

ma!Xet ma!Xet 

7.25% 7.25% 
2.00% 5.25% 
4.25% 4.25% 

2.00% 4.25% 

June 30, 1999 

% 
Required Contributed 

$ 155,644 100.00% 

7,675 100.00% 

$ 30,892 100.00% 

18 100.00% 

The following table presents the Annual Pension 
Cost, percentage of Annual Pension Cost 
Contributed, anothe Net Pension Obligation for the 
three latest available years for the Slate's single
employer defined benetlt plans (dollars expresseo in 
thousands): 

Plan 

GARS 

JSRS 

80 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 

1997 
1998 
1999 

1997 
1998 
1999 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost 
(APC) 

$ 2,492 
2,796 
2,768 

$ 4,771 
4,991 
5,485 

Percentage Net 
ofAPC Pension 

Contributed Obligation 

100% $ 
100% 
100% 

100% $ 
100% 
100% 

$ 

$ 

d. Trend Information 

Trend information indicates the progress made 
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. 

For the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plans in which the State participates, 
the State's required contributions in cfollars 
(expressed in thousands) and the percentages of 
those amounts contributed for the three latest 
available years were as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 1998 June 30, 1997 

% % 
Required Contributed Required Contributed 

149,541 100.00% $ 142,607 100.00% 
7,397 100.00% 7,104 100.00% 

29,674 100.00% $ 27,851 100.00% 

17 100.00% 16 100.00% 

e. Funding Status and Progress 

The following schedule (dollars expressed in 
thousands) describes the funding progress for the 
State's single-employer defined l:ienefit plans for the 
three latest available years: 
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Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability 
Valuation Value of (AAL) 

Date Assets Entry Age 
Plan July1 (a) (b) 

GARS 1996 $ 31,702 $ 59,914 
1997 33,627 60,052 
1998 36,260 60,330 

JSRS 1996 $ 62,850 $ 101,020 
1997 68,980 112,185 
1998 75,699 124.756 

f. Receivables and Investments 

The principal components of receivables and 
investments (expressed in thousands) at 

SCRS 
Receivables: 
Contributions ............................. $ 81,813 $ 
Em pi oyer long-term .................. 2,327 
Accrued interest... ..................... 185,571 
Due from other funds ............... 14,344 

Total receivables ....................... $ 284,055 $ 

Investments: 
United States government 

securities .................................. $ 2,613,373 $ 
United States government 

agencies and government-
insured securities ................... 4,789,356 

Corporate bonds ....................... 4,604,890 
Financial and other ................... 2,968,751 
Mutual funds--equities ............. 838,258 
Invested securities lending 
collateral ................................... 1,276,672 

Total investments ...................... $ 17,091,300 $ 

g. National Guard Pension System 

Plan Description 

The National Guard Pension System (NGPS). is 
a single-emP.loyer defined benefit pension ..Qlan 
admimstered by the State Adjutant General's Otlice. 

UAALas a 
Percentage 

Unfunded of 
AAL Funded Covered Covered 

(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
(b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)/c) 

$ 28,212 52.9% $ 4,771 591.3% 
26,425 56.0% 4,721 559.7% 
24,070 60.1% 4,810 500.4% 

$ 38,170 62.2% $ 10.109 377.6% 
43,205 61.5% 11,221 385.0% 
49,057 60.7% 11.564 424.2% 

June 3~ 1999, for the four §lans administered by the 
South arolina Retirement ystems were as follows: 

PORS GARS JSRS Totals 

9,825 $ 17 $ 285 $ 91,940 
999 3,326 

20,266 440 912 207,189 
2,689 73 17,106 

33,779 $ 457 $ 1,270 $ 319,561 

260,078 $ 8,541 $ 3,973 $ 2,885,965 

457,613 8,228 22,851 5,278,048 
521,121 9,963 23,102 5,159,076 
354,679 4,583 9,568 3,337,581 

94,163 1,945 4,094 938,460 

151,844 7,195 3,149 1,438,860 
1,839,498 $ 40,455 $ 66,737 $ 19,037,990 

That office does not issue a separate financial report 
for the NGPS. 

The NGPS, established Q)' Section 25-1-3210 of 
the South Carolina Code of Laws, provides benefits 
to National Guard members who served in South 
Carolina prior to July 1, 1993. National Guard 
members are considered to be Federal government 
employees. The Federal government pays Guard 
members' drill pay and summer camp pay. In 
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accordance with State law, the State's General Fund 
Qays Guard members only if the Governor activates 
the National Guard for service to the State. 

The pension benefit that the State provides is 
intended only to supplement the retirement benefit 
that Guard members receive from the Federal 
government. Members who retire at age sixty with 
fwenty years of militarY service including at least 
fifteen years of South Carolina National Guard dutyd 
ten of which immediately precede retirement, an 
who have received an -honorable discharge, are 
entitled to monthly pension benefits. The pension 
amount is equal to $50 per month for twenty years 
of creditable service witli an additional $5 per month 
for each additional year of serviceA provided that the 
total_J?ension shall not exceed $1 Ou per month. 

The following table shows the number of 
employees by type of membership as of 
June 3U, 1998, the date of the latest actuarial 
valuation: 

Retirees and beneficiaries 

receiving benefits ........................ . 

Terminated e"llloyees 
entitled to benefits but not 

yet receiving them ....................... . 

Active e"llloyees .......................... . 

Total participants ........................... . 

Number of participating 

e"llloyers .................................... . 

NGPS 

1,801 

2,064 

9,604 

13,469 

National Guard members who served in South 
Carolina [)rior to July 1, 1993, are covered by the 
plan. NGPS is closed to new entrants. 

Receivables and Investments 
The assets of the NGPS consist of Cash and 

Cash Equivalents and Accounts Receivable. At 
June 30,1999, all of the $117 thousand in Accounts 
Receivable represented accrued interest. 

Contributions and Reserves 
Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina 

Constitution req~ires that all State-operated 
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial 
basis. Title 25 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
prescribes requirements relating to membership, 
benefits, and employer contributions for the NGPS. 

In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant 
General's Office administers the plan. 
Administrative char~? are financed through 
investment earnings. !he State funded the plan on 
an actuarial basts for the fiscal years ended 
June 30 1994, through June 30, 1996. From 
July 1, i 996, throug_h tne present time, however, the 
plan lias not been -ti.dly tunded in accordance with 
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actuarial recommendations. Members do not 
contribute. 

The net assets of the National Guard Pension 
System are required to be reserved for the PUt'P-OSe of 
paying the supplemental retirement benelits to 
eligible members. The balance in the reserve at 
June 30, 1999, was $7.493 million. 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost 

The following table provides information 
concerning funding policies and annual pension 
costs (dolfars expressed in thousands): 

Annual pension cost ................. . 
Employer contributions made ...... . 
Actuarial valuation date ............... . 
Actuarial cost method .............. . 
Amortization method ................... . 
Remaining amortization period ..... . 
Asset valuation method .............. .. 
Actuarial assumptions: 

lm.estment rate of return .......... .. 
Projected saiary increases ...... .. 
Assumed inflation rate ............ . 
Assumed cost-of-liloing 

adjustments .......................... . 

NGPS 

$3,164 
$2,499 

June 30, 1998 
Entry age 

Le~.el percent, open 
30 years 

Mari<ei 

7.25% 
Not applicable 

4.25% 

Not applicable 

The following represents the components of the 
net P.ension obhgatton (NPO) for the NGPS, at 
June 30, 1999 (expressed m thousands): 

NGPS 

Actuarially required contribution (ARC) .... .. $ 3,200 

Interest on the NPO .................................... . 256 

Adjustment to the ARC .............................. . (292) 

Annual pension cost... .............................. .. 3,164 

Contributions made .................................... . 2,499 

Increase in NPO ........................................ .. 665 

NPO beginning of year .............................. .. 3,537 

NPO end of year ........................................ . $ 4,202 

The State recognized $2.499 million of 
expenditures in the General Fund to pay a portion of 
the c;urr~nt fiscal years' actuarially determined 
contnbutton. 

The following schedule (dollars expressed in 
thousands) describes the funding progress for the 
NGPS for each of the three most recent actuarial 
valuations: 
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Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability 
Actuarial Value of (AAL) 
Valuation Assets Entry Age 

Date (a) (b) 

7/1/94 $ 3,760 $ 26,996 $ 
6/30/96 6,259 36,756 
6/30/98 8,640 41,478 

Trend Information 

Trend information indicates the progress made 
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. The following table presents th~ Annual 
Pension Cost, percentage of Annual. PeQSIOn Cost 
contributed, and the Net PensiOn Obligation for the 
latest three fiscal years for the plan (dollars 
expressed in thousands): 

Annual 
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage Net 

Ended Cost ofAPC Pension 
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation 

1997 $ 3,060 81.7% $ 2,981 
1998 3,055 81.8% 3,537 
1999 3,164 79.0% 4,202 

h. Supplemental Benefits Funded by General 
Fund 

The State General Assembly has directed the 
General Fund to pay supplemental (cost-of-livin..g) 
increases to retirees and has fully funded t-!le 
required amount annually on a pa_y-as-you-go basis. 
During the fiscal Y.ear ended June 30 1~9~, the 
State's General Fund transferred $4.480 milhon to 
the South Carolina ~etirement System and .the 
Police Officers' Retirement System for retiree 
supplemental benefits. 

i. Defined Contribution Plan 

Certain State employees may elect to participate 
in the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a 
defined contribution flan administered by the South 
Carolina Retiremen Systems. The ORP was 
established under Title 9, ChaP-ter 17A of the Squth 
Carolina Code of Laws. The uRP provides 
retirement and death benefits through ~he purchase 
of individual fixed or variable annmty contracts 
which are issued to, and become the property of, the 

UAALas a 
Percentage 

Unfunded of 
AAL Funded Covered Covered 

(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
(b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)/c) 

23,236 13.9% $ 50,766 45.8% 
30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4% 
32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4% 

participants. The State assumes no liabi!ity for this 
P.laQ other. than for paymet~t of contnbutwns to 
aesignated msurance companies. 

ORP P.articipation is limited to facul~ and 
administrative staff of the colleges presented m the 
State's Higher Education Funds who. m~et all 
eligibility reguirements for membershiP m the 
SC'RS. To elect participation in the ORP, elig!ble 
employees mus irrevocably waive SCRS 
membership within their first ninety days of 
emploY:t:Jlent. 

Under State law, contributions to the ORP are 
required at the same rates as for the SCRS (see 
Section b, "Funding Policies," above). Employer 
and employee contributions to the ORP were 
$7.8 milfion and $9.4 million;_ respectively, for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 199~. 

NOTE 8: POST-EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS OTHER THAN 
PENSIONS 

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of 
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State 
provides post-employment health and dental beqefits 
to certain ,fqrmer State employees and to c~rtam of 
their survivmg dependents. Generally, retirees are 
eligible for tlie benefits if they have established at 
least five years of retirement service credit, whereas 
other former employees are eligible onlY. ifth~y have 
established .at least twenty years o.f retirement 
service credit. Benefits become effective when the 
former employee retires under a state retirement 
system. Currently, approximately 20,076 retirees 
meet these eligibility requirements. 

Eligible retirees choose between two health 
insurance plans underwritten by the State, the 
Economy Plan and th~ ~tandard Pian. In acc9r~ance 
with contractual provisiOns of the P,lans, participants 
must meet specified annual deductible req_uirements. 
Thereafter the Standard Plan p~s 85% of allowable 
claims and the Economy Plan pays 80% of 
allowable claims. The State pays 100% of 
allowable claims, however, after .th~ participant has 
paid the annual out-of-pocket hmit prescnbed bY. 
each plan. Both plans disallow claims in excess of 
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SP.ecified annual and lifetime maximums. In 
aodition, State health benefits are reduced if the 
participant receives or qualifies to receive Medicare 
benefits. 

The State also underwrites a dental care plan. 
Contractual provisions of the plan SP.ecify deductible 
requjrements as well as annual and lifetime 
maxtmums. 

Both health plans and the dental P.lan are 
financed on a pay-as-you-_g_o basis. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1999_, the State recognized 
e~Qenses (net of partictpant contributions) of 
$75.869 million to provide liealth and dental benefits 
to State participants in post-employment status. 

NOTE 9: LEASES AND INSTALL
MENT PURCHASES 

a. Lease and Installment Purchase 
Commitments 

The State leases land, office facilities 
equipment,. and other assets under both capital and 
OQerating I eases. Some of these leases take the form 
or installment purchases of property. The present 
value of future minimum capttal lease and 
installment purchase payments and minimum annual 
lease payments for capital leases and installment 
purchases (expressed in thousands) follow: 

Primary Government 

General 
Long-Term 

Internal Obligations Higher 
Service Account Education Component 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Funds Group Funds Units Totals 

2000 $ 487 $ 3.499 $ 4.867 $ 4,861 $ 13,714 
2001 487 3,218 4,646 4,173 12,524 
2002 487 2,729 4,095 3,833 11 '144 
2003 487 1,319 3,734 3,818 9,358 
2004 486 1,271 3,136 3,819 8,712 

2005 and after 1,703 2,526 36,518 26,012 66,759 
Total minimum payments .................... 4,137 14,562 56,996 46,516 122,211 

Less: interest and executory costs ........ (1,026) (2,080) (23,795) (10,824) (37,725) 
Present value of net minimum 

payments ............................................ $ 3,111 $ 12,482 $ 33,201 $ 35,692 $ 84,486 

Assets under capital leases at June 30, 1999, were as follows (expressed in thousands): 

Primary Government 

Internal 
Service 

Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases Funds 

Land and improvements .......................................... $ 
Buildings, improvements, and utility plant. ............... 5,231 
Machinery, equipment, and other ............................. 
Assets acquired under capital leases before 

accumulated amortization .................................. 5,231 

Less: accumulated amortization ............................. (1,203) 
Assets acquired under capital leases, net. .......... $ 4,028 

Operating lease _payments durin_g the fiscal year 
ended June JO, 1999, totaled $65.753 million. At 
June 30, 1999, future minimum payments under 
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General 
Long-Tenn 
Obligations Higher 

Account Education Component 
Group Funds Units Totals 

$ $ 1,683 $ $ 1,683 
42,672 97,452 145,355 

19,378 12,529 293 32,200 

19,378 56,884 97,745 179,238 

(3,627) (68,713) (73,543) 

$ 19,378 $ 53,257 $ 29,032 $ 105,695 

OP.erating leases (expressed in thousands) were as 
follows: 
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Operating Leases 

Primary Component Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30 Government Units Totals 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 

2005 and after 

$ 

Total minimum payments.... S 

33,721 
28,878 
23,062 
17,283 
9,923 

20,123 

132,990 ---
b. Facilities Leased to Others 

$ 639 
370 
145 
50 

s 1,204 

$ 

s 

34,360 
29,248 
23,207 
17,333 
9,923 

20,123 

134,194 

Non-State parties lease land and facilities under 
operating leases from the State Ports Authority, a 
dtscretefy [>resented comP.onent unit and from 
Enterprise Funds (the Patriots Point Development 
Authoricy and the Other Enterprise Funds). At 
June 30, 1999, the State Ports Authority had leased 
to others certain land and facilities havmg_ a cost of 
aQproximately $279.977 million and $81.582 million 
of related accumulated depreciation. At 
June 30, 1999, the total cost of land and 
improvements leased to others by the Enterr.rise 
Funds was $9.434 million, with $817 thousand of 
related accumulated depreciation. Future minimum 
rental payments to be received at June 30, 1999, 
under these operating leases (expressed in 
thousands) were: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending Enterprise Component 
June 30 Funds Unit 

2000 $ 399 $ 18,057 
2001 333 14,602 

2002 333 12,242 
2003 329 9,402 
2004 328 4,538 

2005 and after 13,164 2,111 

Total ............. $ 14,886 $ 60,952 

NOTE 10: BONDS, NOTES, AND 
CERTIFICATES OF 
PARTICIPATION 
PAYABLE 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are backed by the full 
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State. General 
obligation bonds texpressed in thousands) 
outstanding at June 30, 1999, were: 

State of South Carolina 

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group 
cap~al irrprovement bonds, 3.50% to 6.50%............... $ 806,237 
State highway bonds, 3.50% to 6.50%....................... 333,545 
Subtotal-General Long-Term Obligations 

Account Group.................................................... 1,139,782 

Hgher Education Funds 
State inst~ution bonds, 4.25% to 7.00%....................... 78,305 

Total--general obligation bonds payable........... $ 1,218,087 

Of the $806.237 million in outstanding capital 
improvement bonds, $19.880 million are capital 
appreciation (deep-discount} bonds. 

At June 30, 1999, $468.509 million of capital 
improvement bonds were authorized but unissueo. 

At June 30, 1999 future debt service 
req!Jirernents (expressed in thousands) for general 
obligatiOn bonds were: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

2000 $ 101,200 $ 59,867 $ 161,067 
2001 117,548 52,635 170,183 
2002 98,540 47,146 145,686 
2003 115,402 42,221 157,623 
2004 93,210 36,919 130,129 

2005 and after 700,103 182,011 882.114 
Total debt service 
requirements ............ 1,226,003 $ 420,799 $ 1,646,802 

Unamortized discounts ... (7,916) 
Total principal 
outstanding ................ $ 1,218,087 

The Department of Transportation Special 
Revenue Fund pays the debt service for the State 
highway bonds recorded in the General Long-Term 
06ligatwns Account Group. The General Fund pays 
debt service for the other general obligation bonos 
recorded in the General l...,ong-Term Obli~tions 
Account Group. The Hi_gher Education Plant-Funds 
(Retirement or Indebtedness) pay the debt service 
for general obligation bonds recorded in the Higher 
Education Funds. 

Rather than directly limiting the amount of 
outstanding general obligation debt, State law 
imposes a limitation on annual debt service 
exP.enditures. The legal annual debt service margin 
at June 30\ 1999, was $138.765 million in total lor 
all institutiOn bonds1 $38.325 million for highway 
bonds, and $100.55~ million for general obligation 
bonds excluding institution and higllway bonds. 

b. Limited Obligation Bonds 

Limited obligation bonds are not backed by the 
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State. 
Limited obligation bonds (expressed in thousands) 
outstanding a1 June 3 0, 1999, were: 

Internal Service Funds 
Lease revenue bonds, 4.00% to 6.75%.... .................. $ 38,206 
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At June 30, 1999, there were no limited 
obli~ation bonds authorized but unissued. Certificates 

he State issued the lease revenue bonds to of 

finance the cost of capital facilities for use bfe certain Bonds Notes Participation 
Primary Government: 

State agencies. The oonds are secured bY. r edges of E'nterprlse Funds 

lease rental parnlents that the agencies wil pas; from 1-tlusing Authority bonds. 3.50% to 

their Genera Fund appropnations and pecial 9.38% ..... 467.531 $ 

Revenue Funds. Education Assistance Authority 

At June 30, 1999 future debt service bonds. 3.50% to 7.13% ... 385.448 

re~uirements (expressed Ill thousands) for limited Jobs-8::onorric Developrrent 
Authority notes. 9.00% ... 205 

ob igation bonos were: Other Enterprise notes. 6.00% ... 25 

Totals--Enterprise Funds ..................... 852,979 230 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 
Internal Service Funds 

2000 $ 3,050 $ 1,862 $ 4,912 Budget and Control Board notes. 
2001 3,190 1,712 4,902 4.52% to 4.91% ... 1,514 

2002 3,330 1,536 4,866 

2003 3,480 1,365 4,845 General Long-Term Obligations 

2004 3,655 1,206 4,861 
Account Group 

Infrastructure Bank bonds. 4.00% 
2005 and after 21,690 4,520 26,210 to6.00% ... 275,000 

Total debt service Mental Hea~h Departrrent note, 4.59% ... 325 

requirements .............. 38,396 s 12,201 s 60,696 Deaf and Blind School note, 4.59% ..... 460 

Unamortized discounts ..... (189) 
Totals--General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group ................ 275,000 785 

Total principal 

outstanding .................. s 38,206 Hgher Education Funds 
Various bonds and notes. 3.25% to 

11.00% .. 247,707 71,782 
Orect note obligations, 7.09% to 8.79% ... 95,000 

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service Certificates of participation, 5.60% 

Fund, pays all debt service for the lease revenue to 7.50% ... 20,698 

bonds. Totals--Hgher Education Funds .......... 247,707 166,782 20,698 

Totals--Primary Government ............ 1,375,686 169,311 20,698 

Discretely Presented Component !))Its 

c. Revenue and Infrastructure Bank Bonds, Public Service Authority bonds. 
3.80% to 7.00%. ........................... 1.801,660 

Notes, and Certificates of Participation State Fl:lrts Authority bonds, 3.55% to 
5.50% ..... 182,434 

Revenue and Infrastructure Bank bonds notes, 
Connector 2000 Association, nc. 

bonds, 5.25% to 6.30% ... 204.701 
and certificates of participation are not backed bSt the 

Totals-Discretely Presented full faith, credit and taxin~ power of the tate. 
Revenue and Infrastructure ank bonds, notes, and 

Component !))Its .............................. 2,188,795 

certificates of f.artici8ation outstanding (expressed in Totals··revenue bonds, notes, 

thousands) at une 3 , 1999, were: and certificates of partlclpa. 
lion payable ....................................... $ 3,564,481 $ 169,311 $ 20,698 
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Certain revenue bonds require the individual 

enterPrises to P-rovide sufficient revenue to pay debt 
service. and to fund all necessary expenses to run the 
enterrmses. 

University Medical Associates of the Medical 
University otSouth Carolina (UMA) is a component 
unit of the Medical Universicy of South Carohna, an 
institution reported in the Htgher Education Funds. 
During January 1995, UMA tssued $55.000 million 
in Direct Note Obligations, Select Auction Variable 
Rate Securities. During December 1997, UMA 
issued an additional $40.000 million in Direct Note 
Obligations, Select Auction Variable Rate 
Securities. The variable rate of interest is set every 
35 days. UMA entered into thirty-year interest rate 
swap agreements for these obligations. Based on the 
swaP. agreements, UMA owes mterest calculated at a 
fixeo rate of 8.79% on the $55.000 million issue and 
7.09% on the $40.000 million issue. If the actual 
floating variable interest rates exceed these rates~ the 
countei]Jarty pays the differential to UMA. Ir the 
actual tloatmg variable rates are less than these rates, 
UMA pays tlie counterparty. Only the net difference 
in interest payments is acfual]y exchanged with the 
counterparttes. The $55.000 mtllion and 
$40.000 million in note principal are not exchanged; 
they are only the basis on which the interest 
payments are calculated. UMA continues to pay 
mterest to the note holders at the variable rate 
P.rovided by the notes. Howev% during the term of 
the swap agreements, UMA enectively pays fixed 
rates on the debt. The debt service requirements to 
maturity included in this note are based on those 
fixed rates. UMA will be exposed to variable rates 
if the counterparties to the swaps default or if the 
swaps are lerminated. For the year ended 
June 30, 1999, total interest costs incurred were 
$8.141 million. 

The funds that receive the proceeds of revenue 
and Infrastructure Bank bonds, notes, and 
certificates of P.articipation have pledged revenues 
for payment of oebt service as follows: 

Primary Government: 
Enterprise Funds 

State Housing Authority bonds: State Housing Authority 
Fund revenues 

Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments 
and United States Commissioner of Education funds 

Jobs-Economic Development Authority notes: loan 
repayments 

Internal Service Funds 
Budget and Control Board notes: rental payments for 

vehicles and office space 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group 

Infrastructure Bank bonds: Transportation Infrastructure 
Bank revenues 

Mental Health Department notes: rental payments for 
equipment 

Deaf and Blind School notes: client service revenues 
Higher Education Funds 

Various higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of 
participation: various specific higher education revenues 

State of South Carolina 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 
Public Service Authority bonds: Public Service Authority 

Fund revenues 
State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority Fund 

revenues 
Connector 2000 Association, Inc., bonds: investment 

earnings during the development stage and toll revenues 
once toll operations commence 

At June 30, 1999 future debt service 
req_uirements (expressed in thousands) for revenue 
and Infrastructure Bank bonds, notes, and 
certificates of participation were: 
Primary Government: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

2000 $ 98,338 $ 84,272 $ 182,610 
2001 68,264 82,585 150,849 
2002 67,988 78,041 146,029 
2003 69,079 73,989 143,068 
2004 62,635 71,024 133,659 

2005 and after 1,207,911 736,757 1,944,668 
Total debt service 
requirements ........................ 1,574,215 $ 1,126,668 $ 2,700,883 

lklarrortized discounts ............... (7,629) 
Deferred arrount on refunding ... (891) 

Total principal outstanding ... $ 1,565,695 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

2000 $ 83,369 $ 126.485 $ 209,854 
2001 85,285 122,435 207,720 
2002 68,075 118,041 186,116 
2003 68,285 113,934 182,219 
2004 65,870 110,678 176,548 

2005 and after 2,138,651 2,111,155 4,249,806 
Total debt service 

requirements........................ 2,509,535 $ 2,702,728 $ 5,212,263 

lklarrortized discounts............... ( 44,955) 
Deferred arrount on refunding... (275,785) 

Total principal outstanding... $ 2,188,795 

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority 
ends December 31 while the fiscal _year for the State 
Ports Authority ends June 30. Both entities are 
discretely f.resented comP.onent units. At 
December 3 , 1998, the carrying value of the Public 
Service Authority's debt was "$2.156 billion while 
the fair value was approximately $2.660 billion. At 
June 30, 1999, the carrying value of the State Ports 
Authority debt was $181.912 million while the fair 
value was approximately $180.662 million. The fair 
values were estimated usmg current rates available 
to the entities for similar f>orrowing arrangements 
and on the market rate of comparable traded debt. 

d. Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment 
of Debt 

The $7 48 thousand of Extraordinary Loss on the 
Early Extinguishment of Debt in tfi.e Enterprise 
Funds represented a loss on Housing Authority debt 
extinguisllments that resulted from calling bonds. 
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e. Defeased Bonds 

During March 1999, Francis Marion University, 
an institution reported in the State's Higher 
Education Funds, Issued $7.245 million in Revenue 
Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 
4.14% to advance refund $7.450 million in Student 
and Faculty Housing Revenue Bonds with an 
avera_.ge interest rate of 7 .25%. The J?roceeds of 
$7.163 million (after payment of $44 thousand in 
original issue discount and $3 8 thousand in issuance 
cosls) plus an additional $626 thousand in excess 
reserve funds were used to purchase United States 
government securities. Tfie institution advance 
refunded these bonds to reduce its debt service 
payments over the next twelve years bv 
approxirpatelY. $1.700 million and to obtain an 
economic gam (difference between the present 
values of the old and new debt service payments) of 
$720 thousand. 

During June 1999, Coastal Carolina University, 
an institution reported in the State's Higher 
Education Funds, issued $24.545 million in Revenue 
Bonds with an avera_.ge interest rate of 5.05%. Of the 
$24.545 million, $8":815 million was to advance 
refund $8.125 million of the outstanding principal 
amount of the Series 1994 Revenue Bonas with an 
average interest rate of 6. 79%. The proceeds 
!'!QP.licable to the advance refundmg of 
$~.790 million including $70 thousand in accrued 
interest and a bond premium (after payment of 
$95 thousand in issuance costs) were used to 
purchase United States government securities. The 
mstitution advance refunded these bonds to reduce 
its debt service payments over the next twenty-eight 
years by aP,proximately $1.188 million and to obtain 
an economic _gain of $660 thousand. 

During rune 1999, the Education Assistance 
Authority l. an entity reported in the Enterprise Funds, 
issued $o t.300 million in Guaranteed Student Loan 
Revenue and Refunding Bonds with an auction 
interest rate varying up to 12.00% to advance refund 
$43.570 million in Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
with an average interest rate of 6.00% and to provide 
financing for student loans. The net proceeds of 
$43.570 million (after payment of $698 thousand for 
a bond _premiumf insurance and other issuance costs 
and $2:f.032 mil ion for the purchase of new student 
loans) were used to purchase United States 
government securities. The advance refunding 
resulted in a difference between the reacguisition 
Qrice and the net carrying amount of the old debt of 
$446 thousand. This difference, reported in the 
accompanying financial statements as a deduction 
from oonds payable, is being charged to operations 
through the ~ar 2002 using the sfraight-hne basis. 
The Authori completed tlie advance refunding to 
gain flexibi Ities _provided by the 1993 Dond 
resolution. The refunding increases the Authority's 
total debt payments over the next nineteen years b):: 
$10.793 milhon and results in an economic gain of 
$685 thousand. 

During December 1998, the State Ports 
Authority,_ a discretely presented component unit, 
issued $L5 .000 million in revenue bonds with 
variable interest rates capped at 18.00% to refund 
$24.800 million in revenue bonds with variable 
interest rates. The Authoricy completed the current 
refunding to gain flexibilities provided by the new 
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bond resolution. There was a nominal economic 
loss associated with the write-off of the issue costs 
on the refunded bonds with no measurable change in 
debt ~ervice payments due to the variable interest 
rates mvolved. 

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 
the Public Service Authoricy, a discretely }:1resented 
component unit, issued $127.700 million in 
refunding_ revenue bonds with an avera_ge interest 
rate of 4:97% to advance refund $117.37s-million in 
revenue bonds with an averag_e interest rate of 
6.12%. The net P,roceeds of $125.002 million 
including $1.715 million in premiums (after 
paY.ment of $3 80 thousand in origmal issue discount 
ana $4.033 million in issuance costs and reserve 
requirements) plus an additional $4.330 million were 
used to purchase United States government 
securities. The advance refunding resulted in a 
difference between the reacHuisition price and the 
net carrying amount of the old debt of 
$1.970 million. This difference, reported in the 
accompanying financial statements as a deduction 
from oonds payable is being charged to operations 
through the year 2024 using the effective-interest 
method. Tlie AuthoritY. refunded these bonds to 
reduce its total debt service payments over the next 
twenty-six years by $62.548 million and to obtain an 
economic gain of $16.846 million. Additionally, the 
Authority Issued $243.980 million in commercial 
paper notes with an estimated effective interest rate 
of 4.55% to refund $263.075 million in revenue 
bonds with an average interest rate of 5.76%. The 
refunding is expected to result in cash flow savings 
of approximatelY. $38.000 million over the next 
twenty years ana result in an economic gain of 
approximately $23.000 million. 

In additioni during prior years the State defeased 
certain genera obligation and other bonds. For 
those defeasances involving advance refundings, the 
proceeds of the new oonds were placed in 
Irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt 
service payments on the old bonds. At 
June 30, 1999, the following outstanding bonds 
(expressed in thousands) are considered defeased: 

Cap~al irrprovement 
bonds ....... $ 

Education Assistance 
Author~ bonds .. 

1'\Jblic Service Author~y 
bonds ....... 

Other .... 
Totals .......................... s 

Primary Government 

Enterprise 
Funds 

43.570 

43,570 

General 
Long· Term 
Obligations Hgher 

Account Education Component 
Group Funds lklits 

$ 33,000 $ $ 

703,030 
65,365 

s 33,000 $ 65,365 $ 703,030 

Since adequate funds have been placed with a 
trustee to pay fully the principal and interest of these 
bonds, tlie liabilities are not recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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f. Conduit Debt 

State law authorizes issuance of certain bonds 
for which the State assumes no responsibility for 
reP.ayn:tent. These bonds, therefore, do not appear as 
liabilities in the accompaQYing_ financial statements. 

The Jobs-Economtc Develo.Pment Authority, an 
Enter~Jrise Fund, issues industnal revenue bonas to 
develop and benefit business enterprises. The bonds 
are payable solely by revenues of the business 
enterpnse and generally are secured by an 
irrevocable letter of credit. At June 30, 1999, the 
original amount of bonds issued prior to 
June 30

1 
1996, was $757.465 million, and the 

outstanoing balance of bonds issued after 
June 30, 1996, was $534.423 million. 

The State Housing Finance and Development 
Authority, an Enterprise Fund, issues certain 
mortgage loan notes and housing revenue bonds for 
devefopers to construct moderate to low income 
housing projects. The bonds are P.ayable solely from 
housing rental payments receivea by the developer 
and generally are secured by an irrevocable letter of 
credtt or bond insurance. At June 30, 1999, the 
outstanding balance of bonds issued was 
$183.832 million. 

The Educational Facilities Authority~ reported as 
part of the State's primary government, tssues bonds 
to assist nonprofit educatiOnal institutions that do not 
receive ~tate aP.proQriatiqns in the ~~quisition, 
constructiOn ana financmg of facthttes for 
educational programs. The bonds are payable solely 
from_, and secured by, a lease agreement on the 
facihties between the Authority ana the institution. 
When the bonds have been fulfy paid, the Authoricy 
conve_):s the title for the facility to the institution. A:t 
June 30, 1999b the outstanding balance of bonds 
issued was $1 3.508 million. 

g. Resources Authority Debt 

In prior years, the Resources Authorih_r, reported 
as part of the primary government issued bonos and 
used the proceeds to purchase obligations of local 
governmental entities. The locar governmental 
entities used the proceeds receiveo from the 
Authority to fund wafer and sewer projects. Periodic 
principaf and interest payments recetved from the 
local governmental entities are used by the Authority 
to refire its own debt. The debt issued by the 
Authority is not a debt of the State and is not 
recorded in the accompanying Combined Balance 
Sheet. The Authonty's outstanding debt at 
June 30, 1999, was $42.655 million. Effective 
October 1994, the General Assembly enacted 
legislation that prohibits the Authority from issuing 
bonds except to refund bonds previously issued. 

Beginnmg in fiscal year 1993-1994, one local 
govemmentar entity has been unable to meet its 
financial obligation under the terms of a 
$5.025 million revenue bond that was purchased by 
the Authority. In June 1990 when the local 
governmentaf entity issued its debt, it estimated that 
the related sewer project would be completed and 
operational by calendar year 1992. Revenue 
generated by the sewer system is pledged for debt 
retirement. At June 30, 1999, the system was 
partially operating and producing some revenue but 
construction had not been completed. The State paid 
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a total of $1.727 million in the fiscal years 
1993-1994 through 1997-1998, and $420 thousand 
in 1998-1999 to the Authority to offset the loss of 
revenues from the delinguent local entity. The State 
has appropriated $400 tliousand in fiscal year 1999-
2000 fo oe used, if needed, to offset the loss of 
revenues from the delinquent local entity. 

h. Commercial Paper Notes 

The Public Service Authority, a discretely 
Qresented component unit, has recorded a 
$456.100 million liability for Commercial Paper 
Notes at its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 
The paper is issued for valid corp_grate purposes with 
a term not to exceed 270 days. The Authority has a 
$500.000 million revolving credit agreement to 
support the issuance of commercial paper. There 
were no borrowings under the agreement for the 
Authority's fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 

i. Subsequent Events 

Since June30, 1999 the State's primary 
government has issued $75.000 million of general 
obligation bonds and $361.935 million of revenue 
bonos. The Public Service Authority, a discretely 

~
resented comP.onent unit, has issuea 
25.000 million of commercial paper notes and 
323.640 million in revenue bonds. The Ports 

Authority, a discretely presented comP.onent unit.,. 
has executed an in-substance cash defeasance or 
$31.795 million in outstanding revenue bonds. 

. :rhe State primary government plans to issue 
mmt-bonds m an ~gregate amount not to exceed 
$25.000 million in ITecember 1999. 

NOTE 11: CHANGES IN GENERAL 
LONG-TERM OBLIGA
TIONS 

Changes in general long-term obligations 
(expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999, were: 

Balances Balances 
at July 1, 1998 Increases Decreases at June 30, 1999 

Accounts payable 
and accrued lia-
bil~ies .... $ 2,367 $ 2,367 $ (3,342) $ 1,392 

htergovernrrental 
payables ..... 8,675 (1,245) 7,430 

nsurance claims 
incurred but not 
reported .... 2,765 291 3,056 

Notes payable .... 600 419 (234) 785 
General obligation 
bonds payable .... 951,577 275,970 (87,765) 1,139,782 

hfrastructure 
Bank bonds 
payable .............. 275,000 275,000 

Cap~allease and 
instalment debt 
obligations pay-
able ...... 7,856 7,463 (2,837) 12,482 

Compensated ab-
sences payable .. 175,937 85,452 (80,752) 180,637 

Other liabil~ies .... 20,165 9,199 (5,320) 24,044 

Totals ................ $ 1,169,942 $ 656,161 $ (181,495) $ 1,644,608 
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The Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
the Insurance Claims Incurred but not Reported, and 
$10.853 million of the Other Liabilities consist of 
claims and judgments payable. The majority of 
Other Liabilities consists of claims andjudgments 
Qayable and the National Guard Pension System Net 
Pension Obligation. The increase of 
$275.970 million for General Obligation Bonds 
Payable includes $970 thousand in accretion of 
interest on capital appreciation (deep-discount) 
bonds. 

Fund Type/Fund Due From 
General 

General Fund ............................................................... $ 75,963 
Less: eliminations ....................................................... (63,379) 
Adjusted General Fund ............................................ ~2.5s;l 

Special Revenue 
Departmental General Operating Fund ........................ 22,805 
Education Improvement Act Fund ................................ 4,700 
Children's Education Endowment Fund ....................... 
Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund ................ 1,930 
Waste Management Fund ........................................... 1,344 
Department of Transportation Special Revenue Fund. 40,016 
Local Government Infrastructure Fund ......................... 63,036 
Accommodations and Local Option Sales Tax Fund .... 72 
Energy Settlement Fund .............................................. 
Omnibus Crime Fund ................................................... 16 
Medicaid Expansion Fund ............................................ 
Other Special Revenue Funds ..................................... 2,191 
Less: eliminations ....................................................... (102,927) 
Adjusted Special Revenue Funds ........................... 33.~!!3 

Capital Projects 
Capital Projects Fund .................................................. 1,278 
Less: eliminations ....................................................... (131) 
Adjusted Capital Projects Fund .............................. U~7 

Enterprise 
Housing Authority ........................................................ 
Education Assistance Authority ................................... 
Second Injury Fund ...................................................... 3 
Patriots Point Development Authority .......................... 
Other Enterprise Funds ............................................... 22 
Less: eliminations ....................................................... (25) 
Adjusted Enterprise Funds ..................................... 
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NOTE 12: INTERFUND 
BALANCES 

a. lnterfund Assets and Liabilities Within the 
Primary Government 

Interfund assets and liabilities (expressed in 
thousands) for each individual fund within the 
primary government at June 30, 1999, were: 

lntertund lnterlund Advances Advances 
Due To Receivables Payables To From 

82,386 $ 4,778 $ 1,603 $ 8,221 $ 3,573 
(63,379) 
Hl.O!J7 ~.77!! ~.S!J3 !!,22~ 3,573 

60,050 300 3,606 400 102 
2,131 600 200 

17 
29 

283 300 
59,108 1,358 3,509 

2,053 200 200 
90 
68 

446 
28 

267 64 21 136 
(102,927) (900) (900) 
2~.~3 ~.S22 3,227 ~.2~5 ~02 

1,400 
(131) 

~.2S!:l 

25 
212 

1,049 
233 
304 200 16,639 
(25) 

~.7!:1!! 2!J!J ~S.SM 
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Fund Type/Fund Due From 
Internal Serv1ce 

Insurance Reserve Fund .............................................. $ 6,136 
Health and Disability Insurance Fund ........................... 14,645 
State Accident Fund .................................................... 2,243 
General Services Fund ................................................ 7,829 
Central Supplies and Equipment Fund ......................... 886 
Motor Pool Fund .......................................................... 1,812 
Pension Administration Fund ....................................... 
Prison Industries Fund ................................................. 1,185 
Other Internal Service Funds ....................................... 41 
Less: eliminations ....................................................... (1,563) 
Adjusted Internal Service Funds ............................ 33,2,'l 

Trust and Agency 
Expendable Trust: 
Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund .............. 
Other Expendable Trust .............................................. 

Pension Trust: 
South Carolina Retirement System .............................. 14,344 
Police Officers' Retirement System ............................. 2,689 
General Assembly Retirement System ........................ 
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System .................. 73 

Agency Funds: 
Federallnterfund Activity Fund .................................... 
Payroll Clearing Fund .................................................. 45,637 
Other Agency Funds .................................................... 8,793 

Less: eliminations ......................................................... (65,017) 
Adjusted Trust and Agency Funds ••............••......... S,5,9 

Higher Education 
Unrestricted Current Funds .......................................... 16,817 
Restricted Current Funds ............................................. 433 
Endowment and Similar Funds .................................... 
Unexpended Plant Funds ............................................ 1,362 
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds .............................. 
Investment in Plant Funds ........................................... 
Agency Funds .............................................................. 123 
Foundations and Institutes ........................................... 
Less: eliminations ....................................................... (1,514) 
Adjusted Higher Education Funds •...........•.••......... ,7,22, 

Totals-Primary Government .........•••••••.•.•.•..•..•.• $ 103,868 

b. lnterfund Assets and Liabilities Between the 
Primary Government and Discretely 
Presented Component Units 

Interfund assets and liabilities (expressed in 
millions) between discretely presented component 
units and the primary government at June 30, 1999, 
were: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund 
General Fund Pubhc Serv1ce Authonty 

Amount 
(Millions) 

$4.114 

$ 

$ 

State of South Carolina 

lntertund lntertund Advances Advances 
Due To Receivables Payables To From 

8 $ 1,890 $ $ 24,323 $ 
92 
89 

628 2,164 15,057 
50 1,000 
53 

382 
251 
876 1,446 1,304 6,543 6,295 

(1,563) (2,913) (2,913) (14,422) (14,422) 
BSS 'l23 ,,555 ,S,~ S,930 

11,864 
2 

14,284 
498 

27 

858 
9,790 

79,889 
(65,017) 
52,195 

4,153 
4,451 

775 
500 

500 
238 33,326 

30,685 
(1,514) (31 ,960) (31,960) 
7,090 2:38 ,,BSS 

103,868 $ 6,823 $ 6,823 $ 28,910 $ 29,110 

c. Inequality of Due from Component Units and 
Due to Primary Government 

Due From Component Units was $4.114 million, 
but there was no corresponding Due To Primaty 
Government. This situation arose because the Public 
Service Authority, a discretely presented component 
unitj reports usin_g a fiscal year ending December 31. 
At une 30, 199g-, the Authoricy owed the General 
Fund its semi-annual cash distribution, which is 
based primarily on pperating cash flows and 
mandatory reserve reqUirements. 
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d. Inequality of Advances To and Advances From 
Other Funds 

Advances From Other Funds exceed Advances 
To Other Funds by $200 thousand because of an 
interfund loan trom the Local Government 
Infrastructure Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, to the 
Division of Public Railways (nmorted as part of 
Other Enterprise Funds). The Division of Public 
Railways reports using a fiscal year ending 
December 31, while the Local Governmen1 
Infrastructure Fund's fiscal year ends June 30. The 
Division of Public Railways' $200 thousand 
June 1999 loan payment was not reflected in its 
Advances From Other Funds at December 31, 1998, 
but that paYll!ent reduced the Local Gov_ernment 
Infrastructure Fund's Advances To Other Funds as 
of June 30, 1999. 

e. Inequality of Transfers From Component 
Units and Transfers To Primary 
Government 

Transfers From Component Units exceed 
Transfers To Primary Government by $281 thousand 
because the Public Service Authon~, a discretely 
presented component unit, reports using a fiscal year 
ending December 31. The $281 thousand difference 
represents Transfers From Component Units to the 
General Fund for the fiscal _year ended 
June 30, 1999 less Transfers To Primary 
Government from the Public Service Authority for 
its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 

f. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers In and 
Out 

Residual Equity Transfers Out of $31 thousand 
in the Capital Projects Fund were recorded as 
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additions to Contributed CaP.ital in the Enterprise 
Funds. These balances resulted from transfers of 
Capital Improvement Bond proceeds. 

Residual E<mity Transfers Out of $1.336 million 
in the General Fund were recorded as additions to 
Contributed Capital in the Internal Service Funds. 
These balances resulted from payments forgiven on 
long-term interfund loans. 

NOTE 13: RESERVATIONS AND 
DESIGNATIONS OF 
FUND EQUITY 

Reserved components of fund equity represent 
amounts legallY. s~gregated and amounts that cannot 
be appropnateo. Uesignated portions of unreserved 
fund eqmtv reflect tentative plans for future use of 
available financial resources. 

The unreserved component of fund equity is 
computed as total fund equity less reserved amounts. 

a. Primary Government-Reserved Retained 
Earnings 

At June 30~ 1999, the $257.925 million balance 
of Reserved Ketained Earnings in the primary 
government's Entel])rise Funds consisted entirely of 
Retained Earnings Reserved for Debt Requirements. 
The reservations are required by bond indentures 
and other financing agreements. 

b. Primary Government-Reserved and 
Designated Fund Balances 

At June 30, 1999, the following amounts of fund 
bal~nce (expressed in thousands) were reserved or 
designated: 
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Special Trust and Higher 
General Revenue Agency Education 

Fund balances reserved for: 
Pension and other benefits ............ $ $ $ 19,590,921 $ 
External investment pool 
participants ....................................... 894,613 

Restricted fund balance .................. 199,613 
Federal government grants 
refundable ........................................ 46,393 

General fund reserve ....................... 137,650 
Inventories .......................................... 13,704 17,584 
,A{Ivances to other funds .................. 8,221 4,245 
Appropriations to be carried 
forward .............................................. 175,090 

Endowment and similar funds ....... 1,564 58,706 
Long-term loans and notes 
receivable ......................................... 182 255,572 

Debt requirements ............................ 59,408 10,907 
School building aid ........................... 191 13,913 
Encumbrances .................................. 3,303 
Other special purposes ................... 7,174 
Total reserved fund 
balances ......................................... $ 335,038 $ 350,722 $ 20,487,098 $ 326,096 

Special Capital Higher 
General Revenue Projects Education 

Unreserved fund balances 
designated for: 

Future years' expenditures ....... $ 31,360 $ 103,278 $ $ 
Capital expenditures ................. 216,391 91,507 
Loan funds ................................... 2,650 
Scholarships ............................... 17,157 

Endowment and similar funds 50,241 
Plant funds ................................... 58,997 
Special purposes ...................... 12,542 
Total unreserved, desig-

nated fund balances ............. $ 31,360 $ 336,826 $ 91,507 $ 124,430 

93 



State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The following subsections contain further 
descriptive information regarding the above reserved 
and designated componenfs of fund balance. 

Reserved for Pension and Other Benefits 

This account includes $18.790 billion reserved 
for P.ension, group life, and accidental death benefits. 
It also includes $800.919 million of reserves to 
recognize the restricted nature of the fund balances 
in the Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund. 

Reserved for External Investment Pool 
Participants 
Amounts reserved for external investment pool 

P.articipants consist of public monies deposited with 
the State Treasurer bY. local gpvernmenfal units and 
other political subdivisions or the State. The State 
Treasurer invests these monies on the participants' 
behalf in an investment portfolio. 

Reserves in the Higher Education Funds 
Outside sources may restrict certain Higher 

Education Funds' resources. The financial 
statements ~resent restricted fund balances as 
reserves. These reserves include reserves for 
endowments and other higher education restricted 
funds to be used for speciar purposes. 

Grant monies received from the United States 
government under certain student loan programs are 
recorded as Reserved for Federal Government 
Grants Refundable. The purpose of this reserve is to 
indicate that these amounts can neither be 
appropriated nor expended and to reflect the State's 
ongoing responsibility to lend the resources only in 
ac<;ord.ance with applicable Federal program 
gmdehnes. 

General Fund Reserve 
The South Carolina Constitution reguires that 

the State maintain a reserve to _Qrevent deficits in the 
Budgetary General Fund. The reserve is fully 
funcfed whenever it equals three percent of the 
Budgetary General Fund's revenue (oudgetary basis) 
of tlie latest completed fiscal year. 

If the State withdraws funds from the reserve to 
cover a year-end deficit, it must replace the funds 
within tliree years. The Constitution reguires that at 
least one percent of the Budgetary General Fund 
revenue (oudgetary basis) of the latest completed 
fiscal year, if so much is necessary, be restored each 
year following the deficit until full funding is 
achieved. 

At June 30 1998 the Reserve was 

17.270 million below the full-funding amount of 
137.650 million. On SeP.tember 1 1998 
7.270 million of budgetary surplus from 199'7-1998 

was added to the reserve to brin_g its balance to 
$137.650 million. During the remamder of the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1999, the Reserve remained at 
$137.650 million. Accordingly, at June 30, 1999, 
the reserve was $7.721 minion below the full
funding amount of $145.371 million. On 
Septemoer 1h1999, howeverb $7.721 million was 
adoed to t e reserve to ring its balance to 
$145.371 million. 
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Reserved for Inventories 

Governmental Funds reserve a portion of fund 
balance equal to year-end inventory balances to 
indicate that the funds are not available for 
appropriation. 

Reserved for Advances to Other Funds and 
Reserved for Long-Term Loans and Notes 
Receivable 

Advances to Other Funds, Long-Term Loans, 
and Notes Receivable are assets that <fo not represent 
expendable available resources. The Governmental 
Funds, therefore, reserve a corresponding portion of 
fund balance. 

Reserved for Appropriations to be Carried 
Forward 

The General Fund does not use encumbrance 
accountin_g. The Reserve for Appropriations to be 
Carried Forward, however, is used in situations 
where the General Assembly has authorized 
Budget~ General Fund appropnations to be carried 
forward to the next fiscal year. For additional 
information, see Note 2c. 

Reserved for Endowment and Similar Funds 
This reserve recognizes restrictions ~laced on 

donated resources. In the Fiduciary Fund Types, the 
reserve represents amounts donated to State-owned 
secondary schools and to certain other State 
departments. 

Reserved for Debt Requirements 

The amounts recorded as Reserved for Debt 
Requirements in the Higher Education Funds are 
reservations required by financing agreements and 
bond indentures of discretely presenfed com_ponent 
units ofthe Medical Universi!Y of South Carolina. 

The South Carohna Transportation 
Infrastructure Bank, reported within the State's 
Special Revenue Funds, recorded an amount as 
Reserved for Debt Requirements as required by 
certain financing agreements and bond indentures. 

Reserved for School Building Aid 

Amounts in the General Fund and in the 
Education Improvement Act Fund~ a Special 
Revenue Fund, are reserved if committed to State 
school districts to build school buildings or to retire 
debt on such buildings. Such amounts are not 
available for appropriatiOn. 

Reserved for Encumbrances 

Although not required by State law some 
technical colleges reported in the Higher Education 
Funds use encumbrance accounting. These 
institutions also record a reserve for encumbrances. 

Reserved for Other Special Purposes 

Amounts Reserved for Other Special Puwoses 
in the Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds 
consist oT resources that are reserved for various 
operating puwo~es ,sp~cific to certain individual 
higher eoucatton mstttuttons. 
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Designated for Future Years' Expenditures 

At June 30, 1999, the State had tentative plans to 
use $91.766 million of the fund balance in its 
Budget~ General Fund to allow the State to Qa.Y for 
selected recurring and nonrecurring items. Of that 
amount, only $31.360 million m net financial 
resources were available in the General Fund at 
June 30, 1999, to finance these tentative plans. 

Amounts Des~nated for Future Years' 
Expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds relate to 
the Depflrtment of rranspo~tion' s expenditures for 
future highway repau and mamtenance. 

Designated for Capital Expenditures 

The amount reported in the Special Revenue 
Funds represents amounts that the Department of 
Transportation designated for replacement of 
structurally deficient bridges and new road 
construction. State Highway Bonds will finance 
these projects. The Stale reports the entire fund 
balance in the Capital Projects Fund as Designated 
for Capital Expenditures. 

Designated for Loan Funds 

Amounts Des~nated for Loan Funds in the 
Higher Education Funds consist of resources which 
are designated for loans to students, faculty, or staff 
of higher education institutions. 

Designated for Scholarships 

Of the amount reP.orted as Designated for 
ScholarshiP.S in the Special Revenue Funds, 
$16.993 million is to be used for the Teacher Loan 
Program. The program makes loans to students to 
attract talented individuals to teach in areas of 
critical need. For each xear the borrower teaches in 
a critical need area, 20.0% to 33.0% of the loan is 
canceled. If the borrower does not teach, however, 
the loan must be repaid. The remaining 
$164 thousand reQorted as Designated for 
Scholarships in the -special Revenue Funds is being 
accumulated to establish endowments at public and 
private colleges and universities. The purpose of 
these endowments is to provide environmental 
scholarships. 

Designated for Endowment and Similar Funds 

The Designated for Endowment and Similar 
Funds account includes resources that the State's 
higher education institutions intend to use in a 
manner similar to endowments in future years. 

Designated for Plant Funds 

Amounts Designated for Plant Funds in the 
Higher Education Funds consist of resources 
designated to finance the acquisition, constructioni 
improvement, renewal, or replacement of P.hysica 
properties, and . to . pay deBt seryice ana retire 
mdebtedness on mst1tut10nal properties. 

State of South Carolina 

Designated for Special Purposes 

Amounts Designated for Special Purposes in the 
Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds 
consist of resources that are designated for various 
operating pUfPO~es ,sp~cific to certain individual 
higher educatiOn mst1tut10ns. 

NOTE 14: RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS 

These financial statements exclude certain 
related foundations and other o~anizations. (See 
also Note 1a, Scope qfReporting Entity.) . . 

The most si~Ificant of these organizations 
include: the University of South Carolina 
Development Foundation; the Universi!)' of South 
Carolina Educational Foundation; the University of 
South Carolina Business Partnersnip Foundation; the 
South Carolina Universities Research and Education 
Foundation; the South Carolina Research Institute; 
the Greater University of South Carolina Alumm 
Association; the Carolina Piedmont 
Foundation, Inc.; the Lancaster County Educational 
Foundation, Inc.; the Clemson University 
Foundation; the Clemson University Real Estate 
Foundation; the Clemson UniversitY, Research 
Foundation; the Clemson Advancement Foundationi 
the Clemson University Continuing Education ana 
Conference Complex CofP.oration· the Health 
Sciences Foundation of the Medicaf University of 
South Carolina; the Coastal EducatiOnal 
Foundation,... Inc., of Coastal Carolina University,; the 
College or Charleston Foundation; the Wintnrop 
University Foundation; the Francis Marion 
University Foundation; the Citadel Development 
Foundation; the Citadel Alumni Association; the 
Citadel's Brigadier Foundation; South Carolina State 
University educational Founoation; the S.T.A.T.E. 
Club of South Carolina State University; Greenville 
Technical Foundation, Inc.; Tri-Cou~ty Technical 
College Foundation; York Technical College 
Foundation, Inc.; the South Carolina Student Loan 
Corporatio9; the Educational Television Endowment 
of South Larolina, Inc.· the South Carolina State 
Museum Foundation; the South Carolina Research 
Authority; and the Carolina Capital Investment 
CorQ9rafion. 

Those organizations above that are related to 
h!gher education report total assets of 
$728.287 million. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30~ 1999, the State entered into various 
transactiOns with these organizations. Approximate 
amounts within the State's Higher EducatiOn Funds 
that represented transactions with these related 
Qarties include: receivable from foundations
$40.578 million; donations of cash and other assets 
from foundations-$36.502 millioni expenditures 
(rental of foundation-owneo propert).:)
$3.717 million; and reimbursements to the State for 
exP-enses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf 
of foundations-$11.133 million. 

The South Carolina Education Assistance 
Authority (EAA ), an Enterorise Fund, has 
designated the South Carolina Student Loan 
Corporation (SLC) as the entity to administer the 
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EAA student loan program. During the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1999L EAA entered into varwus 
transactions with S C. AQProximate amounts 
within the State's Enterprise Funds that represent 
these transactions include: accounts receivable from 
SLC-$6.470 million; notes receivable from SLC-

1361.539 million; program revenue from SLC-
39.485 million; accounts payable to SLC-
8. 705 million; and reimbursements to SLC for 

administrative costs-$5 .183 million. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the 

Educational TelevisiOn Endowment of South 
Carolina, Inc., disbursed $7.575 million on behalf of 
the State for programs, development, advertising, 
and other costs. 

The Jobs-Economic Development Author
ity (JEDA), an Enterpr!se _Fund, maintains . a 
management and admtmstrative agreement wtth 
Carohna Capital Investment Corporation (CCIC). 
During_ the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, JEDA 
paid CCIC $469 thousand for management and 
administrative expenses and incurred payables to 
CCIC of$118 thousand. 

NOTE 15: SEGMENT INFORMA
TION 

a. Enterprise Funds 

The State groups its Entel)lrise Funds into the 
following segments: the State Housing Finance and 

Education 
Housing Assistance 

Authority Authority 

Operating revenues ................................. $ 47,643 $ 45,159 
Depreciation and arrortization 

expense ................................................. 316 164 
Operating incorre (loss) ........................... 9,206 16,191 
Federal revenue ....................................... 23,776 

Operating transfers in .............................. 
Extraordinary loss .................................... (748) 

Net incorre (loss) ..................................... 15,436 15,698 
Current capital contributions and 
transfers ................................................ 

A"operty, plant, and equiprrent: 
Additions ............................................. 64 276 
Retirerrents ......................................... (49) 

Net working capital .................................. 175,731 186,139 
Total assets ............................................. 664,579 526,384 

Bonds and other long-term liabilities 
payable from operating revenues .......... 438,990 375,678 

Total fund equity (deficit) ......................... 177,185 123,141 
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Development Authority (Housing Authority), the 
South Carolina Education Assistance Authont):, the 
Jobs-Economic DeveloRment Authori!):; ana the 
Patients' ComQ_ensation Fund. In adottion, the 
Patriots Point Development Authority, the Second 
Injury Fund, and Other Enterprise Funds are 
grou_ped into an Other segment. 

The Housing Autnority provides low-cost 
housing to the Stale's citizens by tssuing bonds/notes 
and by administering Federal contracts and grants. 
The South Carolina Education Assistance Authority 
issues revenue bonds for the pufRose of making 
student loans. The Jobs-Economic Development 
Authority acts with others in the promotion of 
development; eM'ecially i~ ar!!as of the Sta~e w!th 
great~st neeo. The Au~honty ts supported Rrtll).anly 
Q)' mterest on _proJect loans. The Patients' 
Coll}pensation Fun<f provides fo~ the p~yment of that 
portwn of any medtcal malpractice cfatm, settlement 
or judgment against a health care provider that is in 
excess of $1 O<J thousand per incident or in excess of 
$300 thousand in the aggre~te for one year. All 
providers licensed in South -carolina are eligible to 
participate in the Fund upon remitting the annual 
assessment fees in amounts determmed by the 
governing board ofthe Fund. 

Financial information (expressed in thousands) 
for these segments for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999, follows: 

Jobs-Economic Patients' 
Development Com pen-

Authority sation Other Totals 

$ 1,148 $ 9,800 $ 25,426 $ 129,176 

3 919 1,402 
(4, 173) (2,466) 527 19,285 

23,776 
125 353 478 

(748) 
(3,954) (2,466) 2,316 27,030 

31 31 

1,353 1,694 
(138) (187) 

8,627 13,533 18,579 402,609 
13,738 20,256 128,540 1,353,497 

172 25,440 17,557 857,837 
11,781 (11,901) 45,644 345,850 
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b. Discretely Presented Component Units 

The segments of the State's discretely presented 
component units are the Public Service Authorityd 
the State Ports Authority, the Connector 200( 
Association, Inc., and the Savannah Lakes Regional 
Loan Fund. 

The Public Service Authority sells electric 
power and wholesale water. The State Ports 
Authority develops and maintains State harbors and 

Public 
Service 

Authority 

Operating re\enues .......................... $ 775,639 
Depreciation and amortization 

expense ....................................... 116,665 
Operating income ............................ 220,266 
Transfers from primary go\ernment. ... 
Transfers to primary go\ernment. ...... (7,605) 
Net income (loss) ............................ 31,740 
Current capital contributions and 

transfers ....................................... 
Property, plant, and equipment: 

Additions ................................... 68,193 
Retirements ............................... (20,256) 

Net working capital .......................... (233,569) 
Total assets .................................... 3,322,310 
Bonds and other long-term liabilities 

payable from operating re\enues ..... 1,842,242 
Total fund equity (deficit) .................. 828,870 

The Public Servi~e Authority's sale o( electric 
power to two maJor customers constitutes a 
concentration of credtt risk. For its fiscal year ended 
December 31, 1998 the Authority's Revenue and 
Accounts Receivable (expressed in thousands) 
attributable to those customers were: 

%of Total %of Total 
Operating Accounta Accounta 

Customer Revenue Revenue Receivable Receivable 

Central Electric Power 
Cooperative, Inc ............. $ 354,000 45.64% $ 49,969 55.23% 

Alumax of South 
Carolina, Inc ................... 87,000 11.22% 7.272 8.04% 

$ 
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seaports and handles the commerce throu_gh these 
ports. The Connector 2000 Association, Inc., is a 
oevelopment sta~ enterprise created to assist the 
Department of 1ransportation in the financing, 
acquisition, construction, and operation of turnpikes 
and other transportation projects. The Savannah 
Lakes Regional Loan Fund maintains a revolving 
loan fund to promote economic development in the 
State's Savannah Lakes Region. 

Financial information (expressed in thousands) 
for these segments for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1999, follows: 

Connector Savannah 
State 2000 Lakes 
Ports Association, Regional 

Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals 

84,801 $ $ 15 $ 860,455 

16,590 133,255 
16,253 5 236,524 
19,182 19,182 

(7,605) 
16,072 (127) 25 47,710 

2,273 2,273 

29,979 98,172 
(1 ,823) (22,079) 
22,185 164,795 456 (46, 133) 

520,502 211,322 462 4,054,596 

181,032 204,701 2,227,975 
322,096 (127) 456 1,151,295 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, two 
customers accounted for approximately 11% and 
13% of the State Ports Authonty's revenues. 

NOTE 16: DEFICIT RETAINED 
EARNINGS 

The Patients' Compensation Fund, reP.orted in 
the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit Retained 
Earnings balance of $11.901 million at 
June 30, 1999. This deficit resulted from losses that 
the Fund has experienced over the last four years. 
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The Fund has increased premiums in recent years, 
and it increased them significantly agam in 
June 1999. This recent P.remium adjustment should 
increase annual fee collections to approximately 
$16.000 million. However~ the liability recorded for 
unpaid claims each year ts based on an actuarial 
~nalysis performed after June.JO. The premium 
mcreases may not be suffictent to P.revent an 
accounting deficit when the actuarial liability is 
recorded. 

The Patriots Point Development AuthoritY., 
reported in the Entel])rise Funds, had a deficit 
Retained EarniQgs bafance of $1.240 million at 
June 30, 1999. This deficit resulted primarily from 
an interrupted development project and the related 
bankruptcv proceedings in the past. The interrupted 
project left the Authority witli an unfinished note! 
and marina. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1997, the Authority entered mto a lease 
with a private companY that plans to develop the 
unfinished assets. The Authority expects that 
revenues from this agreement and private 
contributions eventually wtll eliminate the deficit 
retained earnings. 

The State Accident Fund, reported in the 
Internal Service Funds had a deficit Retained 
Earnings balance of $639 thousand at June 30, 1999. 
This cfeficit resulted from a one-time transfer of 
$3.000 million in investment income to the State's 
General Fund as required by the 1998-1999 
Appropriation Act. 

Tlie Connector 2000 Association, Inc., a 
development stage enterprise reported as a discretelY. 
P.resented com_ponent unit, had an accumulateo 
oeficit of $127thousand for its fiscal year ended 
December 31, 1998. See Note 1r for additional 
information. 

At June 30, 1999, the Savannah Lakes Regional 
Loan Fund, a discretely presented component unitl
reported a deficit Retained Earnings balance or 
$564 thousand. This deficit resulted from the 
default of a loan that is related to the Lake Russell 
develoP-_ment project. The Fund hopes to eliminate 
this delicit when a developer is found to take over 
the Lake Russell project. 

NOTE 17: INSURANCE 
ACTIVITIES 

a. Insurance Reserve Fund 

The State generally does not purchase 
commercial insurance for the risks of losses for 
P.ropertY. damage, including theft qf, da~ag~ to, and 
oestrudion of assets; automobtle habihty; tort 
liability; and medical professional liability. Instead, 
State management beheves it is more economical to 
manage its risks internally and set aside assets for 
claim settlement in its 1nsurance Reserve Fund 
(IRF), an Internal Service Fund. The IRF services 
claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed, 
including the following: property insurance on 
government owned buiiaings, the contents of such 
ouildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile 
liability msurance on government owned vehicles 
and school buses; tort liabilicy insurance for 
government premises and operations; and medical 
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professional liability for hospitals. Although the 
State is the predominant participant in the IRF, 
county and municipal governments, school districts 
and special_purpose _political subdivisions also 
participate. The IRF alfocates the cost of providing 
claims serv!c!ng and claims pay_ment bY. charging 
each parttctpant an actuanally oetermmed 
"premium." 

The IRF reports liabilities when it is probable 
that a loss has occurred and the amount ofthat loss 
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated 
and unallocated claims adjustment expenses have 
been included in the calculation of the unpaid claims 
liability. The liability is reported net of receivables 
for salvage, subrogation, and reinsurance. The 
unpaid c1atms liability of $138.899 million at 
June 30, 1999, includes a provision for claims in the 
process of review and for claims incurred but not 
reported. The liability for claims in the P.rocess of 
review is included in Accounts Payable ana Accrued 
Liabilitie~ while the liability for Insurance Claims 
Incurred tmt Not Reported is reported separately on 
the face of the financial statements. The liability for 
cla~ms incurred but not reported i.s at} actuarial 
estimate based on the most current htstoncal clatms 
experience of previous P.ayments, changes in number 
of members and participants, inflation, and award 
trends. This r.rocess does not necessarily result in an 
exact amoun . Estimates of liabilities for incurred 
claims are continually reviewed and revised as 
changes occur. Revisions are reflected in the current 
year's operatin_g statement. 

Changes m the balances of claims liabilities 
9uring the past two years were as follows (expressed 
m thousands): 

Fiscal Current-Year 
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at 

Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal 
June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End 

1998 $ 157,306 $ 23,970 $ (34,498) $ 146,778 
1999 146,778 21,021 (28,900) 138,899 

The IRF purchases aircraft and ocean marine 
insurance, areas in which the IRF has limited 
expertise. 

The IRF P.Urchases reinsurance to limit losses in 
the areas of P.roperty, boiler and machinery 
automobile lial5ility, and medical professional 
liability. Reinsurance for catastrophic losses in the 
area of property insurance is purchased for losses 
above $2.00"0 million per location and 
$10.000 million P.er occurrence. For medical 
professional liabtlity insurance, reinsurance for 
catastrophic losses is acquired for losses exceeding 
$250 thousand per occurrence. Reinsurance permits 
partial recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the 
IRF as direct msurer of the risks, remains P.rimarily 
liable. The unpaid claims liabilities were reouced bY. 
$5.600 milhon and $5.000 million as of 
June 30, 1999, and 1998, respectivelY., for amounts 
relating_ to unpaid claims estimated to be recoverable 
from remsurers. 
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b. Health and Disability Insurance Fund 

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund, an 
Internal Service Fund, was established to provide 
health and dental insurance coverage for eligible 
employees and retirees. of State agencies am~ scl}qol 
districts and group hfe '!n9 long-~erm dtsabthty 
insurance coverage to ehgtble active State ano 
public school ~rpployees. . The . State the 
predominant participant, retams the nsk Qf. loss. 
Under the health insurance program, participants 
elect coverage through either a health maintenance 
organization or the "State's self-insured plan. All 
dental group life, and lon_g-term disability coverage 
is through the State's selt=insured plan. State funos 
and payroll deductions pay health and dental 
premmms for eligible State and public school 
employees. Agencies and school districts paY. the 
employer share of premiums for retirees, and retir~es 
directly pay their own share of premiums. Agencies 
and schoof districts pay the premiums for group life 
and long term disabilicy. 

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund 
establishes claims liabilities ~hen informat~on_prior 
to the issuance of the financial statements mdtcates 
that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at 
the date of the financial statements and the amount 
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated 
and unallocated claims adjJ.Istment expen~es h11ve 
been included in the calculatiOn of the unP.atd claims 
liability. The unpaid claims liability of 
$128$06 million at June 30, 1999, ipcluoes a 
provision for claims in the process of revt~w. ~nd for 
claims incurred but not reporte9. T.he .habthty f9r 
claims in the process of review IS mcluded m 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the 
liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But Not 
Reported is reported separately_ oq ~he face of .the 
financial statements. The -habthty for clatms 
incurred but not reported is estimated actuarially 
based on the most current historical claims 
experience of previol!s.paymeptk c)langes in number 
of members and participants, mnatwn, award trends, 
and estimates o health care trend changes (cost, 
utilization, and intensity of services). Thts process 
does not necessarily result in an exact amount. 
Estimates of liabilities for incurred claims are 
continually reviewed and revised as changes occur. 
Revisions are reflected in the current year's 
operating statement. 

c_l~im costs for group . life and long-te.rm 
disabthty coverage are actuanally calculated usmg 
the one-year term cost method; tlie cost of coverage 
is the present value of all benefit payrpents that will 
be mane on expected claims incurred during the year 
following the valuation date. Claim liabllities are 
equal to the present value, as of the valuation date1 of all future payrpents to be made for disabilities ana 
deaths up to that date. Actuarial assumP.tions 
include an interest rate of 5.50% for 1999 and 1998, 
compounded annually. Of the total claims liability 
reported for the Health and Disability Insurance 
Fund at June 30, 1999, $22.463 million relates to 
group life and long-term disability insurance 
coverage. Claims lia6ilities for health and dental 
insurance coverage are not discounted to present 
value. 

State of South Carolina 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities 
during the past two years were as follows (expressed 
in thousands): 

Fiscal 
Year Beginning-of 

Ended Fiscal-Year 
June 30 Liability 

Current-Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

Claim 
Payments 

Balance at 
Fiscal 

Year-End 

1998 $ 97,560 $ 553,566 $ (549,482) $ 101 ,644 
1999 101,644 642,148 (614,986) 128,806 

c. State Accident Fund 

State law established the State Accident 
Fund (the Fund), an Internal Service Fund, to 
provide workers compensation insurance coverage 
to State entities. .Altliough the .State is t.h~ Ft!qd's 
predominant participant, counties, mumctpahttes, 
and other political subdivisions of the State maY. a!so 
elect to participate. The State assumes the full nsk 
for workers' compensation claims. 

The Fund investigates, adjusts, and pays 
workers' compensation claims as awarded bY. the 
Workers' Compensation Commission for job-related 
accidental in_illry, disease, or de11th to . c~>Vered 
individuals. The Fund annually bills parttctp~tm~ 
entities for estimated premiums based on the entitY. s 
estimated payroll. . After th.e policy period en(;ls, 
policyholders submit the. details of the ~.ctual ~alartes 
paid. The Fund then adjusts the premmm usmg the 
actJ.Ial payro!l data and a rating modifier basea on 
clatms e~enence. 

The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have 
been reported but not settled, and of clajms t)lat. q~ve 
been incurred .but n9t reported. The ~latms l!abthties 
include specific mcremental clatms aQ]ustment 
expenses out not administrative expenses. Estimated 
amounts of salvage and subrogation and reinsurance 
recoverable, if any, on both se~le~. and unsettl~d 
claims are deducted from the habthty for unpaid 
claims to the extent theY. can be reasonablY. 
estimated. Claims liabilities are recomputeo 
periodically using a variety of actuari'!l and 
statistical techniques to produce current estimates. 
Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or 
creoited to expense in the period in which tliey are 
made. At June 30 1999, the claims liabili!Y for the 
Fund was $51.189 million. The liability for claims 
reported but not yet Qaid is included m Accounts 
Payable and Accrued Liabilitie~ while the liability 
for Insurance Claims Incurred nut Not ReQorted IS 
reported separately on the face of the financial 
statements. Because actual claims costs depend on 
such complex factors as inflation, chang~s in legal 
doctrines and damage awards, computatiOn qf the 
claims liability does not necessarily result m an 
exact amount. . 

1
. b"l" . 

Changes in the balances of clatms Ia 1 1t1es 
during the past two years were as follows (expressed 
in thousands): 
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Fiscal Current-Year 
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at 

Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal 
June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End 

1998 $ 58,443 $ 25,227 $ (32,344) $ 51,326 
1999 51,326 30,874 (31 ,011) 51,189 

The Fund has entered into a reinsurance 
agreement. to reduce its exposure to catastrophic 
losses on msured events. Losses are covered up to 
$45.000 million ]?er event and $2.000 million P.er 
individual;. wit)l .the Fund retaining the risk for the 
first $5.0u0 mtlhon of loss. Remsurance permits 
Qartial recov~ry of. losses from reinsJ.Irers; but the 
F~nd, . as . direct msurer of the nsks, remains 
pnmartly hable. There were no amounts estimated 
to be recoverable from reinsurers at June 30 1999 
or at June 30, 1998. ' ' 

d. Patients' Compensation Fund 

Tpe State's EJ).ten>rise Funds i11clude the South 
Carohna Medical M~rachce Patients' 
Compensation Fund (PCF). The PCF is accounted 
for as an insurance enterprise because it is primarily 
composed of non-governmental entities. 
Accordingly, the PCF follows the guidance ofF ASB 
Statemenf 60, A_ccounting ana Reporting by 
Insurance Enterprzses. 

State law created the PCF to pay that portion of 
any medical malpractice claim settlement, or 
judgment against a licensed heafth care J?rovider 
which exceeds $100 thousand per inciaent or 
$300 thousand in the aggregate for one year. In the 
event the PCF incurs a liability exceeding 
$1 00 thousand to any person under a single 
occurrence, the PCF may not pax more tlian 
$1 00 thousand per year until the claim has been paid 
in full. However, the Board of Governors of the 
PCF may authorize payments in excess of 
$100 thousand per year so as to avoid payment of 
mterest. 

Licensed health care providers include 
physicians and surgeons, directors, officers and 
trustees of hosP.itals, nurses, oral surgeons, dentists, 
pharmacists, cliiropractors, hosP.itals, nursing homes, 
and any similar category of licensed health care 
providers. All providers licensed in South Carolina 
are eligible to participate upon remittance of the 
annual assessment fees. 

The PCF actuarially establishes claims liabilities 
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that 
have been reported but not settled, and of claims that 
have been incurred but not reported. At 
June 3q_, 1999, the claims liability for the PCF was 
$25 .44u million. The liabilicy for claims re_ported 
but not settled is included in Accrued Liaoilities 
while the liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But 
Not Reported is reported separatelY on the face of 
the financial statements. The PCF does not incur 
claim adjustment expenses because it _provides only 
excess liability coverage. The lengt;li of time for 
which claims costs must be estimated varies 
deP.ending on the coverage involved. Because actual 
claims costs depend on such complex factors as 
medical technology, changes in doctrines of legal 
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liability~ and gamag~ a~!lrds, the process used in 
computmg claims habiiihes does not necessarily 
result m an exact amount. Claims liabilities are 
recqmputed annlJally using a variety of actuarial and 
statistical techmques to produce current estimates 
that reflect rec:ent settlen:tents, claims frequency, and 
9ther. eco_nom1c and so~1al factors. A Qrovision for 
mflat19n _In t11e .calculatiOn o( estimftted li.Iture claims 
costs IS _lmpJicit because rehance IS placed both on 
actual h1stoncal data that reflect P.ast mflation anq on 
other factors that are ~ons1dereo to be appropnate 
IJ).O<Mi~rs of past expenence. Adjustments to claims 
ha~Ihtle.s are .charged or credited to expense in the 
penods m which tliey are made. 

e. Public Service Authority-A Discretely 
Presented Component Unit 

The Public Service Authority, a discretelY. 
presented component unit with a December 31 fiscal 
year-end, is exposed to various risks of loss related 
to torts; the_ft of, ~amage . to, and destruction of 
ass€?ts; busmess mterr4ptlon; and errors and 
9m1SSions. The Authonty purchases commercial 
msurance to cover these nsks. Settled claims 
resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurapc:e coverage .in any of the past 
three_ years. Pohc1es are subject to deductibles 
ran_gmg from $1 thousand to approximately 
$85U tliou.sand with the exception of named storm 
losses which carry ~~ductibles up to $3.000 million. 
Also a $1.000 mtlhon self-insured layer exists 
be~€?en the Authority's primary and excess liability 
pohc1es. 

The Authority self-insures its risks related to 
auto, denta,!, and environmental incidents that do not 
arise out or an insured event. Automotive exposure 
is up to $2.000 million per incident. Risk exposure 
for the dental plan is limited by plan provisions. 
There have not been any third-party claims for 
environmental damages for calendar years 1998 or 
1997. 

The State reports all of the Authority's risk 
management activities within the Public Service 
Authority's accounts. Claims expenditures and 
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss 
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonablY estimated. 

At December 31 1998 the amount of these 
liabilities was $1.5'62 miflion. Changes in the 
reported liability in each of the past two years were 
as follows (expressed in thousands): 

Fiscal Current-Year 
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at 

Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal 
December31 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End 

1997 $ 1,649 $ 402 $ (758) $ 1,293 
1998 1,293 1,260 (991) 1,562 
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NOTE 18: JOINT VENTURES AND 
JOINT OPERATION 

a. Joint Ventures 

In May 1997, the Public Service Authority (the 
Authority)~ a discretely presented component unit, 
along witb. two unrelateo publicly owned electric 
utilities formed a wholesale power marketing joint 
venture (the. Venture). 1he Authority has a one-lh~rd 
9wnership mterest,, which It re~oros as .an eqm,ty 
mvestment. The v eptute provides services to I~s 
three member orgamzat10ns, as well as to certam 
non-member organizations, and allocates transaction 
savings and operating expenses to its member 
orgamzations pursuant to a Settlement Agreement. 

During its fiscal year ended Decemoer 31, 1998;. 
the Aulhority received distributions 01 
$13.263 million from the Venture and recognized 
$15.531 million in reductions to power costs, 
Qartially offset by $171 thousand in eguity losses. 
Regulatory acc9unting practices allow tlie Autho~ity 
to decrease or mcrease power costs for rate-makmg 
J?UrQQses rather than record net income or loss from 
the Venture's activities. 

In addition, the Authority provides certain 
guarantees and has pledged certain collateral to 
support the Venture's transactions. The Authority's 
Board of Directors has approved the use of 
$15.000 million to support tlie Venture's trading 
activities in the form of corporate guarantees, letters 
of credit and/or cash as determinedoy management. 

Interested parties may obtain a copy of the 
Venture's financial statements by writing to: 

The Energy Authority 
76 South Laura Stree~ Suite 1500 
Jacksonville, Florida ,;2202 

In M_ay 1998, a blended component unit of the 
Medical Vniversi!)' of South Carolina entered into a 
joint venture witli several physicians and medical 
practices by purchasiQg_ a thi~-five percent interest 
m the Lowcountry Medical Group, LLC. The 
State's Higher Education Funds record the 
investment using the eguity method. At 
June 30, 1999, the State's Higher Education Funds 
had invested $3.936 million m the _ioint venture, 
including an initial investment of $3 .600 million;. 
lezal fees of $75 thousand\ and net income or 
$JU8 thousand less a distributiOn of$47 thousand. 

Interested. parties may obtain a copy of the 
Lowcountry Medical Group's financial statements 
by writing to: 

Bates Legnard & Trask 
1215 48 Avenue, North 
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 29577 
Attention: Deborah Leonard 

State of South Carolina 

b. Joint Operation 

The Summer Nuclear Station is a joint 
operation owned bY. the Public Service Authority 
(tbe Authority), a oiscretely presented component 
unit and regulated electric utility, and the South 
Carolina Electric and Gas Company (SCE&G), a 
non-governmental electric utility. The Authority 
owns an undivided one-third interest in the Station 
while SCE&G owns an undivided two-thirds 
interest. SCE&G is solely responsible for the 
Station:s design, . constructior, management1 budgetmg, . . operatiOn, mairteqance . ana 
decommiSSIOning; and the Authonty IS obfigated to 
Qay its ownership share of all costs relating thereto. 
Tile Authority receives one-third of the net 
electricity generated. 

In accordance with regulatory accounting 
practices, the Authority reported Property, Plant, ana 
Equipment of $506.000 million and expenses of 
$44.051 million which represent its interest in this 
joint operation. The Authority has financed its 
mterest in th~ joint OR_eration with long-term debt. 
The Summer Nuclear -station is not a separate legal 
entity and does not prepare separate financial 
statements. 

Nuclear fuel costs are being amortized based on 
energy expended, which includes a comQonent for 
estimated oisposal costs of spent nuclear luel. This 
amortization is included in fuel expense and is 
recovered through the Authority's rates. 

SCE&G has on-site spent fuel storage capability 
until at least 2009 and expects to be able to expano 
its storage capacity to accommodate the spent fuel 
ou!Qut for the life of the plant. In addition, there is 
sutlicient on-site storage capacity over the life of 
Summer Nuclear Station to permit storage of the 
entire reactor core in the event that complete 
unloading ~hould become desirable or necessary; 

The ~uclear Regulatory Commission {NRC) 
reguires a licensee of a nuclear reactor to provide 
minimum financial assurance of its ability to 
decommission its nuclear facilities. A site-specific 
decommissioning study completed in 1991 estimated 
the Authority's Share of decommissioning costs for 
the Summer Nuclear Station as $76.266-million in 
1990 dollars. The Authority accrues its share of the 
estimated decommissioning costs over the remaining 
life of the facilicy. These costs are being recovered 
thro!,!gh the Authority's rates. 

ro complY. with the NRC regulations, the 
Authority esfaolished an external trusf fund and has 
been making deposits into this fund since 
September 1990. In addition, the Authority 
esfablished an internal decommissioning account. 
The Authority makes deposits into this fund in the 
amount necess~ to fund the difference between the 
1~9~ site-specifi~ study and the NRC's imposed 
mmimum re~mrement. Based on current 
decommissioning cost estimates developed by 
SCE&G\ these tunds, which totaled $59.665 million 
(adjusteo to market) at December 31, 1998, along 
with future deposits into both the external ana 
internal decommissioning accounts and investment 
earnings, are exP.ected to provide sufficient funds for 
the Authoricy's share of the estimated 
decommissioning costs. 
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The Price-Anderson Indemnification Act has 
established the maximum liability for _.Qublic claims 
arising from any nuclear incident as ~'9.900 billion. 
This amount would be covered b_y nuclear liability 
iQsuran.ce of approximately. $200.000 million per 
sttez,., with 8otenttal retrospective assessments of up 
to ~88.1 0 million per licensee for each nuclear 
incident occurring at any reactor in the United States 
{payable at a rate not to exceed $10.000 million per 
mctdent per year). Based on its one-third interest in 
the Summer Nuclear Station, the Authority would be 
responsible for a maximum assessment of 
$29.400 million, not to exceed ~pproximately 
$3.300 million per incident per year. This amount IS 
subject to further increases to reflect (i) inflationJ. 
(ii) mcreases in the licensing for operation or 
additional nuclear reactorsi and (iii) any increase in 
the amount of commercial iability insurance that the 
Authority must maintain to compTy with the NRC. 

SCE&G and the Authority maintain, with 
American Nuclear Insurers (ANI) and Nuclear 
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), $500.000 million 
P.rimary ~nd. $1.?00 billion excess property and 
oecontammatwn msurance to cover the costs of 
facility cleanup in the event of an accident. In 
addition to the premiums paid on the excess policy, 
SCE&G and the Authority also could be assessed a 
retroactive premiumh not to exceed five times the 
annual premium, in t e event of property dam~~ to 
any nuclear generating facility cover~a by NEIL. 
Based on tlie current annual premmm and the 
Authority's one-third interest, the Authoritx's 
maximum retroactive premium would be 
$2.000 million. 

The Autl).ority do~s not purchase insura~Jce f9r 
any retroactive premmm assessments, claims m 
excess of stated coverage, or cost increases due to 
the purchase of replacement power. 

NOTE 19: CONTINGENCIES AND 
COMMITMENTS 

a. Litigation 

Among the unresolved lawsuits in which the 
State was mvolved at June 30, 1999, were several 
that challenge the legalitY. of certain taxes. The 
challenged revenues mcluoe the sales tax on gross 
business proceeds and the license tax on vtdeo 
gaming machines. Another suit challenges the 
regality of the State's enforcement of a referendum 
provicfed by State law, which allows each county to 
ban video poker operations. State losses in tfiese 
cases could have an adverse impact on future 
revenues. In the event of unfavorable outcomes for 
these cases, the ultimate liability is not expected to 
exceed $211.000 million. This estimate does not 
include the impact on future revenues. 

The South Carolina Retirement Systems are 
involved in a lawsuit filed by four retired members. 
The plaintiffs challenge the SY.stems' treatment of 
unused annual leave in the calculation of 
participants' retirement payments. The State's 
liability in the event of an unfavorable outcome 
would be approximately $340.000 million for 
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current retirees and $800.000 million for current 
active members of the South Carolina Retirement 
System and the Police Officers' Retirement System. 
Although the Circuit Court determined that the State 
has been providing retirement benefits in accordance 
with the law, the plaintiffs aQPealed the decision to 
the South Carolina Supreme Court. The ap_peal was 
argued before the Supreme Court, but the "Court has 
nol y_et rendered a decision. 

Two class action lawsuits relating to the taxation 
of retirement benefits are pending against the State. 
One challenges the taxation ol :federal retirees' 
income, and the other challenges the State's law 
imposing income taxes upon benefits paid to retired 
government employees bY. the South Carolina 
Retirement Systems. The State filed a motion to 
dismiss in both cases. The State prevailed on the 
motions, however the plaintiff in tne Federal retiree 
suit has filed a motion to reconsider, and the plaintiff 
in the State retiree suit has filed a notice of appeal 
with the South Carolina Supreme Court. In the 
event of an unfavorable outcome in both cases, the 
State's liability is not expected to exceed 
$475.000 million for retroactive relief with an 
estimated unfavorable im_pact on future year 
revenues of an additional $47.500 million per year. 

While the State is uncertain as to tne ultimate 
outcome of any of the above-described lawsuits, it is 
vigorously defending its position in each case. 

The State is involved in a number of cases in 
which the amounts of potential losses, if any, are not 
presently determinable. These cases inc1ude one 
contendmg that the funding of public education in 
South Carolina is inequitaDie and inadequate. The 
State moved to dismiss the case and the Circuit 
Court granted that motion. The Qiaintiffs appealed, 
and the State Supreme Court atlirmed parl of the 
Circuit Court's order but remanded the case to the 
Circuit Court for further proceedings as to the issue 
of alleged inadeguate educational opportunity. The 
case is m the preliminary stages in tlie Circuit Court. 

The Medical University of South Carolina 
(MUSC). an institution reported in the State's 
Higher 'Education Funds, and Universi!Y. Medical 
Associates (UMA), a component unit of MUSC, are 
involved in litig_atwn filed under the False Claims 
Act for alleged lalse or fraudulent filed claims. The 
amount of such damages is unspecified, and the case 
currentlY. is in the discovery phase. MUSC and 
UMA also may be liable for additional related 
amounts incluoing treble damages and civil 
Qenalties. The amounts of potential losses to the 
State, if any, as a result of an unfavorable outcome 
are not presently determinable. While the State and 
its component unit are uncertain as to the ultimate 
out~om~ of this case, they are vigorously defending 
their actiOns. 

The State is involved in other legal proceedings 
pertaining to matters incidental to tiie performance 
of routine governmental operations. Such litigation 
includes cases involving c1aims asserted against the 
State arising from alleged torts and possible 
violations ot-State and Federal Laws. Unfavorable 
outcomes in these matters could result in the State 
incurring losses. However, these losses are not 
expected to have a material, adverse effect on the 
State's financial statements. 

Due to the uncertainty involving the ultimate 
outcome of the previously discussed unresolved 
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lawsuit~ no provision for potential liability has been 
made ror them in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

The South Carolina Supreme Court has 
concluded that the statutory government liability cap 
provided in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act does 
not apply to tort cases filed against the State P.rior to 
July 1, r994. The State has recorded liabilities for 
the uninsured judgments against the State in cases 
filed prior to July 1, 1994. These uninsured 
liabilities at June 30, 1999, consist of $650 thousand 
recorded in the State's Department of Transportation 
Special Revenue Fund ana $3.681 million recorded 
in the State's General Long-Term Obligations 
Account Group. 

A unanimous South Carolina Supreme Court 
decision on October 14, 1999d canceled a statewide 
video poker referendum sche uled to have occurred 
in November 1999 and banned video poker payouts 
after July 1, 2000. Some video gaming machine 
operators have publicly indicated that they are 
considerin..g legal actions related to the impending 
ban on vicfeo poker P.ayouts. Although it is possible 
that actions may be brought against 1he State, there 
currently are significant uncertainties regarding the 
exact nature and extent of such potential claims. 
Accordingly, the amounts of potential losses, if any, 
that might result from such unasserted challenges are 
not presently determinable, and no provision for 
such poteqttal liabiJitv has been made in the 
accompanymg financtaf statements. 

b. Gain from Tobacco Settlement 

As a party to a successful multi-state legal 
settlement with the tobacco industry, the State of 
South Carolina stands to receive settlement 
payments through 2025. The settlement moneY. is 
mtended to compensate the State for costs it has 
incurred in rroviding health and other services to its 
citizens tha were necessitated by the use of tobacco 
products. The State's 1999-2000 Appropriation Act 
provides that any funds received from the settlement 
must be deposited into the General Fund of the State 
to be appropriated by the General Assembly. 

On June 4 1999, South Carolina's first paxment 
under the settlement a..greement was transferred to a 
state-s_P.ecific interest-6earing escrow account. The 
$28.6J8 million balance m that account at 
June 30, 1999, is presented as Cash on Deposit With 
Fiscal Agents and as Deferred Revenue in the 
accompanY.ing financial statements. An amount of 
$29.046 million is expected to be transferred out of 
escrow and into the State's treasury in 
December 1999. 

The State is scheduled to receive a second 
settlement pa)'!l!ent of $75.425 million during 
calendar year 2000. This payment as well as all 
other future settlement payments are subject to 
several adjustments, the amounts of whtch are 
presently not determinable. These adjustments 
mclude a "volume adjustment," which would reflect 
any decreasing cigarette production under a formula 
that also takes mto account increased qperating 
income from sales. Other factors that migfit affecl 
the amounts of future payments include ongoin..g and 
potential future litigation against the to6acco 
mdustry and the future financial health of the 
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tobacco manufacturers. Because the net realizable 
value of the future settlement P.ayments is not 
measurable, the State did not recora a receivable for 
the future payments at June 30, 1999. 

c. Federal Grants 

The State receives significant Federal g_rant and 
entitlement revenues. Compliance audits oT Federal 
programs may identify disallowed ~~enditures. 
Disallowances by Federal program oflicials as a 
result of these audits may become liabilities of the 
State. The State records a liability for pending 
disallowances if settlement is pro6able and the 
settlem~nt am<;mn,t. i~ reasonablY. estimable. 
Otherwise, the habthty 1s recorded when the State 
and the Federal government agree upon 
reimbursement terms. It is presently not possible for 
management to determine the outcome of pending_ 
audit disallowances. Based on an anafysis ol 
historical data, however, the State believes that any 
such reimbursements relating to the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1999, or earlier years will not have a 
material impact on tlie State's financial statements. 

d. Education Assistance Loan Guarantees 

The South Carolina Education Assistance 
Authority within the State's EnterPrise Funds 
guarantees student loans. At June 30 1999, these 
roans totaled $1.187 billion. The United States 
Department of Education reinsures 1 00% of losses 
under these guarantees for loans made P.rior to 
October 1, 19g3; 98% of losses for loans maae on or 
after October 1, 1993d but before October 1, 1998; 
and 95% for loans rna eon or after October 1, 1998. 
lfthe loan default rate exceeds 5.0% ofthe loans in 
repayment status, however, the United States 
Department of Education decreases the reinsurance 
rate. The State's default rate during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1999, was approximately 1.0%. 

e. Federal Housing and Urban Development 
Loan Guarantee Program 

Durin_g 1994, Lexington County entered into a 
contract tor fart:!fU2ation in the Housing and Urban 
Developmen (HUD) Section 108 loan guarantee 
program. Under tliis program, HUD arranges a 
public offering of notes guaranteed by federalli.mds 
and lends tfie note proceeds to the program 
p~r_ticipant. The particiPant guarantees the loan with 
HUD Commum!)' Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds. Because the county did not receive 
CDBG funds directly from HUD the State cosigned 
the HUD contract and pledged its future federal 
CDBG funds on behalf of tlie county. The countr 
lent its loan proceeds to fund an economic 
development prQJect. 

During 1997, the funded project declared 
bankruP.tcy. Because the project will not make anY. 
further loan pa)1llents to the county, the county will 
not receive the funds it would have used to make the 
correspondin..g loan payments to HUD. Under the 
~eement, tlierefore, the State must use its federal 
CTIBG funds to make the loan payments on behalf 
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of the county to the extent that such funds are 
available. If the State does not receive CDBG funds 
in future _years, the Federal government is 
responsible tor the ~l!Yffients to the note holders. 

At June 30, 1"9g9, $7.430 million remained 
outstanding on the Lexington County loan. The 
payment terms require the State to repay this amount 
m five years at 8.0% interest. Accordingly; the State 
has recorded an Intergovernmental Payable liability 
in the General LQM-Term Obligations Group for the 
amount it owes HOD on this roan to be paid from 
federal CDBG funds. 

f. Purchase Commitments 

At December 31, 1998, the Public Service 
Authority, a discretely presented component unit and 
electric utility company, had outstanding minimum 
obligations under existing purchase contracts 
totaling $401.3 86 million tor coal. In addition, 
outstanding minimum obligations were 
approximately $94.000 million ana $40.000 million 
unoer purchased power contracts having remaining 
terms of thiw-six and five years, respeclively. The 
Authority has commitments for nuclear fuel 
enrichment and fabrication contracts that are 
contingent upon the operatiQg life of its nucle~r unit. 
As of December 3 1998": these commitments 
totaled approximately $91.300 million over the next 
eleven years. 

g. Transportation Infrastructure Bank Loan 
Commitments 

The South Carolina Transportation 
Infrastructure Bank.,.,. r~ported within the State's 
Special Revenue runcfs, has entered into two 
intergovernmental agreements with Hol!Y. County to 
fund mterest-bearing loans totaling $547.578 million 
for road and bricfge constructiOn prQjects. At 
June 30 1999~ the undrawn loan 5alance is 
$448.64'1 milhon. The Bank also has agreements 
with various counties to provide financial assistance 
totaling $906.500 million for certain road projects. 
At June 30, 1999, the remaining_ commitments for 
these agreements totaled $822.565 million. 

h. Clean Air Act 

The Public Service Authority, a discretely 
presented component unit and electric utility 
company, endeavors to ensure that its facilities 
comply with applicable environmental regulations 
and standards. Congress has promulgated 
comprehensive amendments to the Clean Air Act, 
including the addition of a new federal_program 
relating to acid precipitation. Most of the Clean Air 
Act Amendment re~ulations and the Environmental 
Protection Agency s (EPA) regulations related to 
ozone transport are now final, and costs have been 
quantified. The Authority has installed continuous 
emissions monitoring equipment at a cost of 
$5.200 million and estimates that it will spend 
approximately $8.200 million more to comQ_lete 
necessw combustion upgrades. Although the EPA 
regulations are currently m litigation, pofential costs 
to the Public Service Autliority could exceed 
$170.000 million in capital expenditures by 2004 
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and annual recurring costs could exceed 
$30.000 million. 

i. Deregulation of Electric Utilities 

The Public Service Authoricy, a discretelY. 
presented component unit, currently is a regulateo 
electric utility. The electnc industry is increasingly 
competitive oue to regulatory changes and market 
developments. As utilities move to a dereg_ulated 
environment where rates are based on market lorces, 
there may be costs that cannot be recovered bY. 
charging the market rate. Some proposeo 
deregulation measures allow for recovery of some 
portiOn of these costs, but the ultimate regulatory 
treatment of such costs cannot be predicted. 

Bills have been introduced in the United States 
Congress and the South Carolina General Assembly 
to provide for retail customer choice. The outcome 
of these initiatives and the impact on the Authority 
cannot be determined at this time. 

Th~ Authority is implemc;:11ting_ a long-term 
strategic plan destgned to position It to compete 
effectively in the changing competitive environment. 
Although the Authority is preparing for a 
deregufated market, the effects of increased 
competition on the Authority's operations and 
financial condition cannot be predicted. 

NOTE 20: PLEDGES OF GIFTS
HIGHER EDUCATION 
FUNDS 

The State's Higher Education Funds exJ?ect to 
collect pledges (expressed in thousands) as follows: 

Fiscal Higher Education Funds 

Year Current 
Ending Unre- Current 
June 30 stricted Restricted Totals 

2000 $ 1,608 $ 249 $ 1,857 
2001 276 276 
2002 226 226 
2003 76 76 
2004 

Thereafter 20,149 1,538 21,687 
Totals $ 21,757 $ 2,365 $ 24,122 

It is not practicable to estimate the net realizable 
value of such pledges; accordinglY, they are not 
recorded as pledges receivable at June 30, 1999, in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
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National Guard Pension System 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Fiscal Actuarial 
Year Ended Valuation 

June 30 Date 

1994 July 1, 1993 

1995 July 1, 1994 

1996 July 1, 1995 

1997 June 30, 19968 

1998 June 30, 19968 

1999 June 30, 19988 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability 
Valuation (AAL) 
of Assets Entry Age 

(a) (b) 

$ 2,499 $ 26,200 

3.760 26,996 

3,760 26,996 

6,259 36,756 

6,259 36,756 

8,640 41,478 

UAAL 
As a 

Unfunded Annual Percentage 
AAL Funded Covered of Covered 

(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
(b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc) 

$ 23,701 9.5% $ 48,385 49.0% 

23,236 13.9% 50.766 45.8% 

23,236 13.9% 50,766 45.8% 

30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4% 

30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4% 

32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4% 

a The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan's administrator 
implemented a biennial valuation schedule. 

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll is a 
measure of the significance of the unfunded 
actuarial liability relative to the State's capacity to 
pay it. The funded ratio represents tlie assets 
expressed as a percentage of tlie actuarial accrued 
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liability. The trend in those two ratios provides 
information about whether the financial strength of 
the plan is imP.roving or deteriorating over time. An 
improvement is indtcated when the funded ratio is 
increasing and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial 
liability to active covered payroll is decreasing. 



National Guard Pension System 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

State of South Carolina 

Employer Contributions 
Fiscal Year Annual 

Ended Required Percentage 
June 30 Contribution Contributed 

1994 $ 2,499 100.0% 
1995 2,499 100.0% 
19968 2,499 100.0% 
19978 3,085 81.0% 
19988 3,085 81.0% 
19998 3,200 78.1% 

a The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan's administrator 
implemented a biennial valuation schedule. 

The schedule of employer contributions 
provides information about the required 
contributions of the State and the extent to which 
those contributions are bein_g made. The schedule 
gives an indication of tlie progress made in 

accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when 
due. 

The information J1resented above was 
determined as part of the actuarial valuations. 
Additional information as of the latest actuarial 
valuation follows: 

Actuarial valuation date ................................ . 
Actuarial cost method .................................. . 
Amortization method ................................... . 
Remaining amortization period ...................... . 
Asset valuation method ................................ . 
Actuarial assumptions: 

lm.estment rate of return ............................ . 
Projected salary increases ........................ . 
Assumed inflation rate ............................. . 
Assumed cost-of-living adjustments ........... . 

June 30, 1998 
Entry age 

Le\el percent, open 
30 years 

Market 

7.25% 
Not applicable 

4.25% 
Not applicable 
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The Year 2000 Issue (Unaudited) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

The year 2000 issue arises because most 
computer software programs allocate two digits to 
the year date field on the assumption that tlie first 
two digits will be 19. Without reprogramming, such 
programs will interpret, for example, the year 2000 
as the year 1900. Also, some programs may be 
unable to recognize that the year 2000 is a leap year. 

The year 2000 issue may affect electronic 
equip111e.nt containing computer chips that. have date 
recogmtton features-such as environmental 
systems, elevators, and vehicles- -as well as 
comP.uter software 12rograms. In addition, the 
year 2000 issue alfects not only computer 
applications and equipment under the "State's direct 
control but also the systems of other entities with 
which the State transacts business. Some of the 
State's systems/equipment affected bY. the year 2000 
issue are critical to the continued ana uninterrupted 
operations of State government. 

Because of the unprecedented nature of the 
year 2000 issu~ its effects and the success of related 
remediation errorts will not be fully determinable 
until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management 
cannot assure that the State is or will be year 2000 
ready, that the State's remediation efforts will be 
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with 
whom the State does busmess will be year 2000 
ready. 

In 1997, the South Carolina General Assembly 
charged the State's Budget and Control Board with 
the responsibility of coordinating a continuing 
assessment of the _year 2000 issue and its effects on 
the operations ot- State government. While the 
Budget and Control Boardnas assumed a leadership 
role, individual State agencies are wholly 
responsible for making programming changes 
needed to address the year 2000 Issue witfi respecf to 
systems under their control. On a quarterly basis, 
tfie Budget and Control Board is monitonng the 
need for, and progress of, agency remediation elforts 
and the status of agency-developed contingency 
12lans to address the possibility that year 2000 
lailures might adversely affect systems critical to 
agency operations. State employees have performed 
!UOSt of the work of addressing the State's year 2000 
ISSUe. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the 
State contracted with external vendors for assistance 
in addressing_ such issues. Unpaid commitments as 
of June 30, f999 amounted to $1.842 million for the 
P.rimary government. The State Ports Authority, a 
oiscretely presented component unit, had mmaid 
commitments of$199 thousand as of June 30, 1999. 

As a part of the State Budget and Control 
Board's continuing assessment ol the Y.ear 2000 
issue, State agencies have identified I ,24o systems 
deemed critical to their agency operations. 
Management believes that 365 of these systems are 
critical to conducting the State's operations. Some 
of these systems affect most State agencies ("central 
State government") whereas others tespeciafly those 
related to colleges and universities) affect only a 
single agency. Systems critical to conducting the 
State's operations include, but are not necessarily 
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limited to, those that would affect the State's ability 
to provide primary government services, meet its 
obligations, and generally carry on other essential 
operattons. 

At any given time, work to address the 
year 2000 Issue with respect to each system deemed 
mission-critical (i.e., critical to conducting the 
State's operations) may fall within one or more of 
the following stages of work: 

(i)Awareness stage-Establishing a budget 
and pro_iect plan for dealing wtth the 
year 20DO Issue. 

(ii)Assessment stage-Identifving t~e 
systems and components f'or whtch 
year 2000 work is needed. 

(iii)Remediation.stage-Making changes to 
.systems/eqmpment. 

(iv)Vali{iationltesting stage-Validating and 
testmg ch~nges that were made dunng 
the remedtatton stage. 

At June 30, 1999, the State had completed all 
stages of work for all mission-critical 
systems/equipment except as disclosed below. The 
~stems/equipment listed below were in the 
following stages of work: C means complete, P 
means in process, and A means still needs to be 
addressed. Systems having similar functions that are 
in the same stages of work have been combined for 
purposes of this disclosure. 

~ s 
m ~ s 
j 1 ~ 

Description ~ ~ ~ 
--------~~~--------
PRIMARY GOVERNM 8IIT 

Medicallklivers~y-federal reporting ..... 

Medicallklivers~y-laboratory inforrration and 

clinical data systems .... 

Departrrent of Social Services-Medicare billing ... 

Local Governrrent hvestrrent Pool... 

V~al records-billing ... 

Departrrent of Agricukure-<tetection of pesticides and 

chemicals n food .... 

Tracking sexually transmitted diseases ... 

Departrrent of Heakh and Environrrental Centro~ 

laboratory billing and inforrration.... .. .. 

Tracking contaminated waste and water ... 

Jobs-Economic Developrrent Authorrty--<Jperations ... 

Low Country Technical College-energy managerrent 

p p A 

p p p 

p p p 

C A A 

C A A 

C A A 

C P A 

C P A 

C P A 

C P A 

system....... C P A 

South Carolina State Ulivers~y-student inforrration system C P P 

Medicallkliversrty-student inforrration and hurran 

resources... C P P 

Medicallklivers~y-financial aid and accounting systems... C P P 

Vocational Rehabil~ation centers... C P P 

Vrtal records-infant deaths... C P P 

Departrrent of Social Services-child w aWare case 

rranagerrent C P P 

Departrrent of hsurance-licensng, taxation, complaints... . C P P 

Licensng41urses, residential horrebuilders, and engineers.. C P P 

Pyrotechnic and fire rrarshallicenses and inspections. . . C P P 

hspections....amuserrent rides and elevators... C P P 

Ulion mediation.... C P P 



The Year 2000 Issue (Unaudited) 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 

c c 
0 

~ i 
c 
0 .. "' .. " : :s! 

Description :.! ii 
> 

PRIMARY GOVEH.IMBIT (Continued) 

Departmant of Revenue-individual i'lcoma tax ... c p p 

lkleflllloymant claims-payroll history ... c p p 

Trident Technical College-acaderric cofllluting ... c p p 

Williamsburg Technical College-human resources system ... c p p 

Education Assistance Authority-operations ... c p p 

Medicallkliversity-<adiology information ... c c A 

Departmant of Social Services--<:hild support financial 

systems ... c c A 

Appellate case managemant and county docketing ... c c p 

Law Enforcemant--fingerprint identtication ... c c p 

Stataw ide tracking of receipts and revenue .... c c p 

Attorney Generars Office-opinions; trusts and 

foundations c c p 

Clemson lklivers~y-accounting .... c c p 

lkliversity of South Caroline-physical facil~ies .... c c p 

Medicallklivers~y-patient information, admissions, 

records, and billing ... c c p 

Medicallklivers~y-inpatient and outpatient 

pharmacy records. c c p 

Medicallklivers~y--<:ardiology uKrasound systems. c c p 

Medicallklivers~y--<:hild abuse and negiect tracking 

systems ······················· .................... c c p 

Departmant of Education-teacher certtication ...... c c p 

Drug manufacturer rebate records ... c c p 

Medica~rocessing, paymant, eligibil~y ... c c p 

1-teaKh departmants-trecking and billing for child 

heaKh services .... c c p 

Mental heaKh patient information ...................•.... c c p 

Driver and vehicle registration ........ c c p 

Departmant of Social Services~ligibil~y determination ... c c p 

Forest fire manegemant... .................... c c p 

Central State governmant risk manegemant.... c c p 

Departmant of hsurance-licensing, taxation, cofllllants ... c c p 

Departmant of Revenue--<:oliections and tax receivables c c p 

Departmant of Revenue-property and sales tax ... c c p 

Departmant of Revenue-tax accounting and records 

managerrent... ................................. c c p 

Departmant of Revenue--<:orporate ncoma tax ... c c p 

Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical College-student records 

and finance ... c c p 

Williamsburg Technical College-all operations except 

human resources system ... c c p 

DISCRETa. Y PRESBITED COM PONBIT liNTS 
State Ports Authority-financial applications c p p 

PUblic Service Author~y--<~11 operations (basad on 

December 31, 1998 information) ... c p p 

All mission-critical systems are scheduled to be 
co.mplete (or all stages by December .31d 1999. All 
mtsston-cnttcal systems are reqmre to have 
business continuity Qlans in the event of a failure. 
As of SeP.tember r999, more than half of the 
systems baa such plans in place. 

State of South Carolina 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific 
revenue sources (other than for Capital Projects, 
Trust, and Higher 'Education Funds) that are legally 
restricted for SP,ecified purposes. The State uses the 
following Special Revenue Funds: 

Departmental General Operating Fund. This 
fund accounts for resources that are part of a 
particular State agency's General Fund but are not 
part of the State's General Fund. These resources 
mcl1Jde significant amounts of Federal grant 
receipts. 

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund 
accounts for the special additional one-percent sales 
tax levied to be used exclusively for improvements 
in elementary and secondary education, including 
academic loans for future teachers. 

Children's Education Endowment Fund. This 
fund accounts for low-level radioactive waste fees 
collected from the Barnwell waste facility that are 
not required to be dep_osited to the General Fund or 
remitted to Barnwell County. These funds are to be 
used for public school facilities assistance and 
higher education scholarship grants. 

Repair, Maintenance and Renovation Fund. 
This fund accounts for State bond proceeds and 
other permanent improvement projecf resources to 
be exp~nded for approved. repair, maintenance, 
renovation, and alteratiOn proJects. 

Waste Management Fund. This fund accounts 
for fees collectea from consumers., generators of 
solid and hazardous wastes, ana owners and 
operators of solid waste and hazardous waste 
storage facilities. These fees must be used for the 
pul])oses set forth in the State's Solid Waste Policy 
and Management Act of 1991 and to cover the 
State's costs in governmental actions involving 
uncontrolled hazardous waste sites. 

Department of Transportation Special 
Revenue Fund. This fund accounts for the various 
gasoline taxes fees, fines, and Federal grant 
resources used by the Department of Transportation 
for its general operations. These operations include 
highway maintenance and repair. 

State of South Carolina 

Local Government Infrastructure Fund. This 
fund accounts for grants, loans, and other financial 
assistance to locar governments for infrastructure 
Qurposes. It is funded by certain motor fuel taxes, 
Federal funds, and transfers from other funds. The 
South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank 
is accounted for within this fund. 

Accommodations and Local Option Sales 
Tax Fund. This fund accounts for: (I) a special 
additional two-percent sales tax on the gross 
proceeds on the rental of transient accommodations 
and (2) a special one-percent sales tax applicable in 
some focahties within the State. The State allocates 
these revenues to counties and municipalities in 
accordance with State law. 

Energy Settlement Fund. Revenues received 
from court-ordered settlements resulting from oil 
overcharges by various oil companies are accounted 
for in this fund. These resources must be used for 
energy-related programs designed to benefit all 
categories of the State's petroleum product 
consumers. 

Omnibus Crime Fund. This fund accounts for 
court fees remitted to the State by local court 
~stems under the Omnibus Crime Act of 1985. 
These fees must be used for certain _programs 
administered by the Department of Prol:iation, 
Parole & Pardon Services. 

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this 
fund include county assessments for indi~nt 
medical care and a tax on licensed hospitals. The 
fund was established to provide Medicaid coverage 
to persons formerly ineligible for such coverage and 
to provide additiOnal State matching funds for 
Medicaid. 

Other SP-ecial Revenue Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for 
vanous other revenues which must be used for 
spe~ific purposes. These. include operations. of 
vanous employment services, water recreation, 
agricultural boards, forest renewal programs, certain 
housing programs, and medical and dental 
scholarships. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Repair, Department 
Depart- Education Mainte- of 
mental Improve- Children's nance, Waste Transportation 
General ment Education and Manage- Special 

Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment Revenue 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................ $ 156,746 $ 74,794 $ 72,493 $ 19,882 $ 68,575 $ 393,812 
Investments ................................................... 384 
Invested securities lending collateral.. ........... 15 22 163 5 131 892 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ...................................................... 62,490 2,252 2,741 95 2,202 23,248 
Taxes ........................................................... 2,493 51,519 16,975 33,204 
Student loans ............................................... 15,510 
Loans and notes .......................................... 250 

Due from Federal government 
and other grantors ....................................... 341,906 61,450 

Due from other funds ..................................... 22,805 4,700 1,930 1,344 40,016 
lnterfund receivables ..................................... 300 600 1,358 
Advances to other funds ................................ 400 3,509 
Inventories ..................................................... 8,942 24 8,617 
Other assets .................................................. 54 1,070 

Total assets ............................................. $ 596,785 $ 149,397 $ 92,372 $ 21,912 $ 72,276 $ 567,176 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities ..................................................... $ 237,405 $ 3,124 $ 2,755 $ 1,107 $ 6,662 $ 96,723 
Retainages payable ..................................... 463 15,790 
Tax refunds payable .................................... 3 130 380 
Intergovernmental payables ......................... 78,588 4,941 2,030 657 
Due to other funds ....................................... 60,050 2,131 17 29 283 59.108 
lnterfund payables ....................................... 3,606 200 300 
Advances from other funds .......................... 102 
Deferred revenues ....................................... 28,439 5,343 27,400 
Securities lending collateral ......................... 15 22 163 5 131 892 
Other liabilities ............................................ 3 10 784 

Total liabilities ...................................... 408,211 15,901 4,965 1,604 8,033 201,077 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Inventories ................................................. 8,942 24 8,6H 
Advances to other funds ............................ 400 3,509 
Long-term loans and notes 

receivable ................................................ 249 11,745 
Debt requirements ..................................... 
School building aid ..................................... 13,913 

Unreserved: 
Designated for future years' 
expenditures ............................................ 103,278 

Designated for capital expenditures ........... 216,391 
Designated for scholarships ....................... 16,993 164 
Undesignated ............................................ 178,983 90,845 87,407 20,308 64,055 34,304 

Total fund balances ............................. 188,574 133,496 87,407 20,308 64,243 366,099 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances ...................................... $ 596,785 $ 149,397 $ 92,372 $ 21,912 $ 72,276 $ 567,176 
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State of South Carolina 

Accommoda-
Local lions and Other 

Government Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Infrastructure Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue lions Totals 

$ 418,641 $ 33,141 $ 18,921 $ 3,085 $ 5,564 $ 69,110 $ $ 1,334,764 
384 

842 39 4 42 2.155 

14,903 644 190 777 109,542 
23,267 1,715 129,173 

15,510 
246,518 3,941 250,709 

403,356 
63,036 72 16 2,191 (102,927) 33,183 

200 64 (900) 1,622 
200 136 4,245 

17,584 
1,124 

$ 744,340 $ 56,480 $ 19,605 $ 3,101 $ 5,758 $ 77,976 $ (103,827) $ 2,303,351 

$ 18,239 $ $ 774 $ 665 $ 73 $ 3,953 $ $ 371,480 
16,253 

42 556 
806 30,093 50 3,604 120,769 

2,053 90 68 446 28 267 (102,927) 21,643 
21 (900) 3,227 

102 
2,477 12 63,671 

842 39 4 42 2,155 
25 822 

21,940 32,702 931 1,111 105 7,925 (103,827) 600,678 

17,584 
200 136 4,245 

239,715 3,863 255,572 
59,408 59,408 

13,913 

103,278 
216,391 

17,157 
423,077 23,778 18,673 1,990 5,653 66,052 1 ,015,125 

722,400 23,778 18,674 1,990 5,653 70,051 1,702,673 

$ 744,340 $ 56,480 $ 19,605 $ 3,101 $ 5,758 $ 77,976 $ (103,827) $ 2,303,351 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Depart
mental 

General 
Operating 

Individual income ................................................................... $ 
Retail sales and use.............................................................. 643 
Other...................................................................................... 46,307 

Licenses, fees, and permits..................................................... 58,697 
Interest and other investment income...................................... 718 
Federal..................................................................................... 3,019,097 
Departmental services............................................................. 156,485 
Contributions............................................................................ 107,078 
Fines and penalties.................................................................. 23,642 
Other........................................................................................ 52,734 ----'---

Total revenues ................................................................... __ 3;:;.:•....;.46;;.;5;..:.,4..;.;0;....;1_ 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government. ............................................................ . 
Education .............................................................................. . 
Health and environment. ....................................................... . 
Social services ...................................................................... . 
Administration of justice ........................................................ . 
Resources and economic development. .............................. . 
Transportation ....................................................................... . 

Capital outlay .......................................................................... . 
Debt service: 

72,311 
119,103 

2,260,874 
533,559 

64,268 
81,805 

Principal retirement................................................................ 739 
Interest and fiscal charges..................................................... 39 

Intergovernmental .................................................................... __ 4_1_6...:..,3_9_3_ 

Total expenditures ............................................................. __ 3"--''..;...54.....;9...:..,0;....;9.....;1_ 

Revenues over (under) expenditures .................................... ___ (~..;;8....;.3.:...;,6....;.9....;.0L..) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from bonds and notes ............................................. . 
Lease and installment debt proceeds...................................... 36 
Operating transfers in.............................................................. 1 01 , 065 
Operating transfers out. ........................................................... ___ (l-.;1.;;;2.:...;,6....;.6...:.4L..) 

Total other financing sources (uses) ............................... __ ___;;8..;:;.8.:...;,4;.;;3..;..7_ 

Revenues and other sources over (under) 

$ 

Education 
Improve

ment 
Act 

472,220 

6,162 
61 

146 

1,449 

480,038 

12,126 
21,940 

793 
4,360 
1,722 

410,318 

451,259 

28,779 

257 
(10,090) 

(9,833) 

Repair, 
Mainte-

Children's nance, 
Education and 

Endowment Renovation 

$ 

51,816 

4,795 
1 

56,612 

2,803 

39,375 

42,178 

14,434 

17 
(19,732) 

(19,715) 

$ 

131 
1,508 

970 
26 

1,384 
105 

4,124 

4,000 
1,595 
5,544 

17 
5,597 
3,482 

20,235 

(16,111) 

20,300 
(1 ,354) 

18,946 

$ 

Waste 
Manage

ment 

1,796 

24,557 
2,346 

207 

4,263 
364 

33,533 

4 

35,427 

4,174 

39,605 

(6,072) 

11 
(661) 

(650) 

expenditures and other uses................................................ 4,747 18,946 (5,281) 2,835 (6,722) 
Fund balances at beginning of year..................................... 185,698 114,550 92,688 17,473 70,987 
Increases (decreases) in reserve for inventories ................. __ __,_(1;..:.,8;....;7.....;1.L..) (22) 

Fund balances at end of year ................................................. $ 188,57 4 $ 133,496 $ 87,407 $ 20,308 =$==64='=24=3= 
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State of South Carolina 

Department 
of Accommoda-

Transportation Local tions and Energy Omni- Other 
Special Government Local Option Settle- bus Medicaid Special Elimina-

Revenue Infrastructure Sales Tax ment Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals 

$ $ 260 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 260 
181,849 656,508 

364,377 18,000 20,549 22,607 523,656 
24,007 4,635 111,896 

14,606 21,215 (1) 1,046 307 1,947 53,272 
318,399 22,162 3,361,228 

55,242 788 303 2,392 216,533 
74,901 7,524 2,949 192,478 

13,161 10,831 53,281 
3,975 37 4 878 59,546 

756,599 161,370 181,848 1,349 13,165 28,380 46,239 5,228,658 

539 50 968 19,054 109,052 
145,441 

29,087 144 2,331,869 
1,789 539,725 

12,150 157 83,894 
194 2,842 88,323 

303,824 303,824 
453,708 453,708 

4,320 105 5,164 
7,155 5,934 13,128 
9,500 90,020 173,132 219 12,649 1,155,780 

778,507 96,687 173,182 1,187 12,150 29,087 36,740 5,229,908 

{21,908) 64,683 8,666 162 1,015 {707) 9,499 {1 ,250) 

199,008 285,068 484,076 
36 

688 11,040 3,029 (57,507) 78,900 
~4,769~ ~2,012~ (1 ,250~ (270) (5, 195) 57,507 (490) 

194,927 294,096 {1,250) {270) {2,166) 562,522 

173,019 358,779 7,416 {108) 1,015 {707) 7,333 561,272 
195,099 363,621 16,362 18,781 975 6,360 62,718 1,145,312 
~2,019} 1 {3,911) 

$ 366,099 $ 722,400 $ 23,778 $ 18,674 $ 1,990 $ 5,653 $ 70,051 $ $ 1,702,673 
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Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise Funds account for business-like State 
activities that provide goods and/or services to the 
public. These funds are financed primarily through 
user charges. The State's primary government 
maintains the following Enterprise Funds: 

Housing Authority. The State Housing Finance 
and Development Authority facilitates medium
income and low-income housing opportunities b>-' 
providing reasonable financing fo the States 
citizens. To provide such financing, the Authority 
issues bonds and notes and admmisters Federal 
gqmts .and contracts. . The Authority is supported 
pnmanly by mortgage mterest. 

Education Assistance Authority. The South 
Carolina Education Assistance Authority issues 
bonds for the purpose of making loans to students of 
the State to enable them to attend higher education 
institutions. Resources include interest chargesl
subsidies from the United States Department or 
Education, and investment earnings. 

Jobs-Economic Development Authority. The 
Jobs-Economic Development Authority acts in 
conjunction with other organizations in the 
promotion and advancement of industrial 
commercial, agricultural and recreational 
development in tlie State. The Authority's emphasis 

State of South Carolina 

is on those areas of the State with the greatest 
economic need and to those pro~cts providing the 
greatest economic benefit. The Authority is 
supported primarily by interest charges on project 
loans. 

Patients' Compensation Fund. This fund 
provides medical malpractice insurance to any 
public or _private health care provider within the 
State. . This fund is reporteo as an insurance 
enterpnse. 

Second Injury Fund. This fund serves as a 
claims processor for insurance carriers, self
insurers, and the State Accident Fund. The fund 
processes claims of employees with existing 
permanent physical impairment who are further 
mjured in the course of their subsequent 
employment. 

Patriots Point Development Authority. The 
Patriots Point Development Authority is responsible 
for developing and operating the Patriots Point area 
near Charleston, including a naval museum. The 
Authority is supported by user fees. 

Other Enterprise Funds. Other enterPrise 
activities of the State include: the Savannah Vall ex 
Development an~ the Public Raihyays Divisions of 
the South Carolma Department ot Commerce, and 
the Canteens Fund. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Housing 
Authority 

Cash and cash equivalents................................................. $ 5,077 
Investments ........................................................................ . 
Invested securities lending collateral. ................................. . 728 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts .......................................................................... . 144 
Student loans ................................................................... . 
Loans and notes ............................................................... . 37 

Due from Federal government and other grantors .............. . 499 
Due from other funds .......................................................... . 
Inventories .......................................................................... . 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents .............................................. . 200,969 
Loans receivable .............................................................. . 11 ,218 
Other ................................................................................ . 5,463 

Other current assets ............................................................ ------

224,135 Total current assets ......................................................... ____ .;.:_;_~ 

Long-term assets: 
Investments ........................................................................ . 710 
Receivables, net: 

Student loans ................................................................... . 
Loans and notes ............................................................... . 13,865 

Servicing rights, net. ........................................................... . 
Restricted assets: 

Investments ...................................................................... . 12,520 
Loans receivable .............................................................. . 410,357 
Other ................................................................................ . 2,300 

Other long-term assets ....................................................... . 
Deferred charges ................................................................. ------

439,752 Total long-term assets ..................................................... -----'--

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ..................................................... . 
Buildings and improvements ............................................... . 
Machinery, equipment, and other........................................ 1 ,070 
Less: accumulated depreciation ......................................... ____ ....:.(3_7_8.._) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net. ....................... _____ 6_9_2_ 

Total assets •......................................•.•...................... $ 664,579 ======= 
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$ 

$ 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

107,387 

70 

13,352 
4 

69,544 

23,091 

256 

213,704 

2,732 

9 
291,996 

16,653 

1,059 

312,449 

276 
(45} 

231 

526,384 

Jobs
Economic 

Development 
Authority 

$ 10,332 

47 

33 

10,412 

710 

2,416 

200 

3,326 

$ 13,738 

Patients' 
Compensation 

$ 

$ 

19,580 

39 

631 

20,250 

32 
(26) 

6 

20,256 



$ 

$ 

Second 
Injury 

668 

110 

1,342 

3 

52,379 

516 

55,018 

221 
(136) 

85 

55,103 

Patriots 
Point 

Development 
Authority 

$ 2,383 

215 

380 

190 

9 

3,178 

5,954 
1,641 
8,058 

(6,800) 

8,853 

$ 12,031 

Other 
Enterprise 

$ 17,674 
80 
18 

2,827 

22 
1,834 

3,242 

25 

25,722 

738 

16,239 
1,840 

319 

19,136 

12,746 
2,289 
5,353 

(3,840) 

16,548 

$ 61,406 

State of South Carolina 

Eliminations Totals 

$ $ 163,101 
80 

966 

18,558 
4 

69,614 
499 

(25) 
2,214 

279,871 
11,218 
5,979 

290 

(25) 552,394 

4,890 

9 
324,516 

1,840 

29,173 
410,357 

2,300 
519 

1,059 

774,663 

18,700 
3,930 

15,010 
(11 ,225) 

26,415 

$ (25) $ 1,353,472 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................... $ 
Due to other funds ............................................................ . 
lnterfund payables ............................................................ . 
Deferred revenues ............................................................ . 
Deposits ........................................................................... . 
Securities lending collateral.. ............................................ . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .......................... . 
Notes payable .................................................................. . 
Revenue bonds payable ................................................... . 
Compensated absences payable ...................................... . 

Housing 
Authority 

923 
25 

728 
17,782 

28,541 
405 

Other current liabilities ...................................................... ------

48,404 Total current liabilities ...................................................... ____ -'---

Long-term liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities .............................................................. . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ....................... . 
Advances from other funds ............................................... . 
Notes payable .................................................................. . 
Revenue bonds payable .................................................... ___ ...;.43;;.;8;.:.,9;;.;9;..;0;_ 

Total long-term liabilities .................................................. ___ ...;.43;;.;8;.:,,9;;.;9;..;0;_ 

Total liabilities ..•.•.•.•.•.•....................................•..........• ____ 48_7....:.,3_9_4_ 

Fund Equity (Deficit): 
Contributed capital. ............................................................ . 
Retained earnings (deficit): 

Reserved for debt requirements........................................ 157,514 
Unreserved ........................................................................ ____ 19....:.,6_7_1_ 

Total fund equity (deficit) ............................................ ___ ...;.17;,.;7;...:.,1,;,;8;..;5;_ 

Total liabilities and fund equity ................................ ='$=====66=4=,5=7=9= 
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$ 

$ 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

16,491 
212 

70 

9,770 
75 

947 

27,565 

375,678 

375,678 

403,243 

98,232 
24,909 

123,141 

526,384 

Jobs
Economic 

Development 
Authority 

$ 167 

1,564 

33 

21 

1,785 

172 

172 

1,957 

260 

11 ,521 

11,781 

$ 13,738 

Patients' 
Compensation 

$ 

$ 

675 

5,975 

39 

28 

6,717 

16,000 
9,440 

25,440 

32,157 

(11,901) 

(11,901) 

20,256 



$ 

$ 

Second 
Injury 

1,924 
1,049 

110 
51,853 

82 

55,018 

55,018 

85 

85 

55,103 

Patriots 
Point 

Development 
Authority 

$ 386 
233 

651 

191 

1,462 

1,462 

11,809 

(1,240) 

10,569 

$ 12,031 

Other 
Enterprise 

$ 6,609 
304 
200 

37 

18 
1 '111 

2 

402 
176 

8,859 

895 

16,639 
23 

17,557 

26,416 

8,241 

2,179 
24,570 

34,990 

$ 61,406 

State of South Carolina 

Eliminations Totals 

$ $ 27,175 
(25) 1,798 

200 
6,663 
1,564 

966 
70,746 

35 
38,311 

1,204 
1,123 

(25) 149,785 

16,895 
9,440 

16,639 
195 

814,668 

857,837 

(25) 1,007,622 

20,310 

257,925 
67,615 

345,850 

$ (25) $ 1,353,472 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ......................................................................... 
Interest and other investment income ............................................... 

Total operating revenues ............................................................. 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ............................................. 
Benefits and claims .......................................................................... 
Interest.. ........................................................................................... 
Depreciation and amortization .......................................................... 
Other operating expenses ................................................................. 

Total operating expenses ............................................................. 

Operating income (loss) ............................................................. 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income ................................................................................. 
Federal revenue ................................................................................ 
Interest expense ............................................................................... 
Other nonoperating expenses ........................................................... 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ................................... 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 
and extraordinary items ........................................................... 

Operating transfers in ......................................................................... 

Income (loss) before extraordinary items ................................. 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt... .......................... 

Net income (loss) ........................................................................ 

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year ........................... 

Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year ....................................... 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ......................................... 
Additions to contributed capital ...................................................... 

Fund equity (deficit) at end of year .................................................. 
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$ 

$ 

Education 
Housing Assistance 
Authori~ Authority 

3.462 $ 38,038 
44,181 7,121 

47,643 45,159 

5,486 8,832 

31,258 18,350 
316 164 

1,377 1,622 

38,437 28,968 

9,206 16,191 

23,776 

(16,798) (493) 

6,978 (493) 

16,184 15,698 

16,184 15,698 

(748) 

15,436 15,698 

161,749 107,443 

177,185 123,141 

177,185 $ 123,141 

Jobs-
Economic Patients' 

Development Com pen-
Authori~ sation 

$ 628 $ 8,742 
520 1,058 

1,148 9,800 

5,262 291 
11,972 

3 
59 

5,321 12,266 

(4,173) (2,466) 

54 

(17) 
57 

94 

(4,079) (2,466) 

125 

(3,954) (2,466) 

(3,954) {2,466) 

15,475 (9,435) 

11,521 (11,901) 

260 

$ 11,781 $ (11 ,901) 



State of South Carolina 

Patriots 
Point 

Develop-
Second ment Other 
lnJu!1 Authori~ Enter!:! rise Totals 

$ 1,281 $ 5,917 $ 18,228 $ 76,296 
52,880 

1,281 5,917 18,228 129,176 

1,207 4,946 17,690 43,714 
11,972 
49,608 

28 437 454 1,402 
51 83 3 3,195 

1,286 5,466 18,147 109,891 

(5)- 451 81 19,285 

9 1,998 2,061 
23,776 

(1 ,231) (1,248) 
6 654 (16,574) 

6 9 1,421 8,015 

1 460 1,502 27,300 

353 478 

1 460 1,855 27,778 

(748) 

1 460 1,855 27,030 

84 (1,700) 24,894 298,510 

85 {1,240) 26,749 325,540 

11,809 8,210 20,279 
31 31 

$ 85 $ 10,569 $ 34,990 $ 345,850 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) .................................................................... . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization .................................................... . 
Change in the fair value of investments ........................................ . 
Issuance of loans and notes ......................................................... . 
Collection of loans and notes ...................................................... . 
Interest payments ......................................................................... . 
Interest on investments ................................................................ . 
Amounts received for payment of claims ...................................... . 
Payment of claims ........................................................................ . 
Other nonoperating revenues ....................................................... . 
Other. ........................................................................................... . 

Change In assets-decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. ............................................................. . 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ........................ . 
Due from other funds .................................................................... . 
Inventories .................................................................................... . 
Other current assets .................................................................... . 

Change in liabilities-increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................................... . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................................... . 
Due to other funds ........................................................................ . 
Deferred revenues ....................................................................... . 
Deposits ....................................................................................... . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets ...................................... . 
Compensated absences payable ................................................ . 
Other current liabilities .................................................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities ................................................................. . 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Proceeds from loans made by other funds ................................... . 
Principal payments made to other funds ....................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ........................................... . 
Principal payments on notes payable ........................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds .......................................... . 
Principal payments on revenue bonds .......................................... . 
Interest payments ......................................................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .................................................. . 
Federal revenue ........................................................................... . 
Payments from Federal grants ..................................................... . 
Operating transfers in .................................................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities .............................................. . 
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$ 

Housing 
Authori!l 

9,206 

316 
750 

(36,376) 
68,045 
31,119 

(11 ,463) 

(4) 

1,170 

486 

(619) 

(15) 

62,615 

175,035 
(179,580) 

(32,824) 
(1,701) 
23,776 

(21,397) 

(36,691) 

Education 
Assistance 

$ 

Authori!l 

16,191 

164 
666 

(125,202) 
89,242 
18,349 
(7,787) 

(148) 

593 
(341) 

(50) 

2,378 

15 

(5,930) 

67,300 
(44,840) 
(18,269) 

(698) 

3,493 

Jobs
Economic 

Development 
Authoriey 

$ (4,173) 

100 
(110) 

1,570 

(367) 

(8) 

(33) 

35 

966 

4 

(2,016) 

26 
(26) 

(17) 
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State of South Carolina 

Patriots 
Point 

Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Comeensation lnJu!I Authori~ Enterprise tions Totals 

$ (2,466) $ (5) $ 451 $ 81 $ $ 19,285 

3 28 437 454 1,402 
1,516 

(161,688) 
158,857 
49,468 

(1,058) (20,675) 
55,994 55,994 

(58,359) (58,359) 
710 710 
(73) (232) 

(230) (1,342) 423 (498) 83 
(341) 

(22) 25 3 
(52) (281) (333) 

(9) (59) 

119 347 115 2,110 5,590 
189 189 

24 (185) (25) (186) 
1,925 (97) 1,828 

966 
(619) 

8 30 5 62 
(15) 

{1,518) (3,328) 1,331 2,292 53,446 

2,424 2,424 
(201) (201) 

26 
(26) 

242,335 
(224,420) 

(1,156) (52,266) 
(2,399) 
23,776 

(21,397) 
353 478 

1,420 (31,670) 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ............................ . $ 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets ...................................... . 

Net cash used in capital and 
related financing activities ................... ,, ................................. . 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Proceeds from sale of investments ............................................... . 

Purchase of investments ............................................................. . 

Interest on investments ................................................................ . 

Issuance of loans ........................................................................ . 

Collection of loans ...................................................................... . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
Investing activities .................................................................. . 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .................. . 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......................... . 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...................................... . $ 
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Housing 
Authority 

(64) 

(64) 

31,821 

(670) 

11 ,661 

42,812 

68,672 

137,374 

206,046 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

$ (276) 

(276) 

9,960 

(8,416) 

7,166 

8,710 

5,997 

124,481 

$ 130,478 

Jobs-
Economic 

Development 

$ 

$ 

Authority 

536 

214 

750 

(1,158) 

11,490 

10,332 



State of South Carolina 

Patriots 
Point 

Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals 

$ (1) $ (30) $ (222) $ (1,101) $ $ (1 ,694) 

7 7 

(1} (23) (222) (1,101) (1,687) 

41,781 
(9,086) 

1,049 3,754 9 2,162 26,337 
(2,354) {2,354) 

214 

1,049 3,754 9 (192) 56,892 

(470) 403 1,118 2,419 76,981 

20,050 52,644 1,455 18,497 365,991 

$ 19,580 $ 53,047 $ 2,573 $ 20,916 $ $ 442,972 
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Internal Service Funds 

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services 
to other funqs, other agencies, or other governments 
on a cost-retmbursement basts. The State uses the 
following Internal Service Funds: 

Insurance Reserve Fund. This is a risk 
tnanagement(reinsurance fund. . )t underwrites 
msurance nsks on _pubhc butldmgs and their 
contents and tort liabifity, medical malpractice and 
ll;Ut<?mobile liab,ility for public employees. State law 
hmtts the F_upd s cu~t~mers to certain governmental 
persors/entttte~ wtthm the State and certain 
assoctated parttes. 

. Health and Disabilicy Insurance Fund. This is 
a nsk management fund that underwrites the grouP. 
health, denfal, long-term disability and relateo 
benefits provtded to State and public school 
employees and retirees. 

State Accident Fund. This is a risk 
management fund that provides workers' 
compensation benefits predominantly to State 
employees. Premiums are collected from State 
agenctes. 

General Services Fund. This fund accounts 
for various services provided to State and local 
government~! unit~ for which user fees are charged. 
These servtces mclude telecommunication and 
computer services, rental of office buildings 
janitorial servic~s, building maintenance, and 
procurement servtces. 

State of South Carolina 

Central Supplies and Eguipment Fund. This 
fund sells office supplies and equipment~ food, and 
paper Qroducts to ollier governmental umts. It also 
stores lood and paper products for State agencies. 

Motor Pool Fund. This fund provides daily and 
perm11;nent lease assignm.ent~ of vehicles to State 
agenctes_. It also mat_ntams an inventory of 
autqmottve parts to provtde maintenance of these 
vehtcles. 

~?epartment o~ Transportation Internal 
Se~1ce Fun~ .. . Thts fund accounts for various 
servtce a~ttvtttes of the. Department of 
Transp_ort;atwn. The fund. provtdes data processing 
and pnn~mg s_ervtces, egutpment rentals and office 
and engmeermg suQPlies to other divisions and 
county offices ol the Department. 

~~nsion Admi~istration Fund. This fund 
admtmsters the pubhc employee retirement SY.Stems. 
Revenues of the fund primarilY consist of 
assessments charged to the Pension Trust Funds. 

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts 
for goods produced by inmate labor. These goods 
are sold pnmarily to State agencies. 

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds 
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for other 
mtscellaneous activities that meet the definition of 
Internal Service Funds. Such activities include 
provision of ~raining programs for State employees 
work actlvtty centers of the VocatiOnal 
Rehabilitation Department, and the Governor's 
School for t~e Arts Foundation, Inc., a blended 
component umt. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Central 
HeaHh and State Supplies 

Insurance Disability Accident General and Motor 
ASSETS Reserve Insurance Fund Services Egui~ment Pool 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................ $ 83,373 $ 101,861 $ 39,099 $ 34,480 $ 1,290 $ 5,630 
Invested securities lending collateral. ............................ 30,227 196 76 8 
Accounts receivable, net.. .............................................. 16,487 4,532 16,460 445 12 174 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 6,136 14,645 2,243 7,829 886 1,812 
lnterfund receivables ...................................................... 1,890 
Inventories ...................................................................... 1,753 1,812 11 
Other current assets ...................................................... 2,271 2 

Total current assets ..................................................... 140,384 121,236 57,878 44,515 4,000 7,627 

Long-term assets: 
Investments .................................................................... 212,065 21,704 1,245 
Advances to other funds ................................................ 24,323 

Total long-term assets ................................................. 236,388 21,704 1,245 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................ 5,334 328 
Buildings and improvements ......................................... 144,993 1,127 
Machinery, equipment, and other. ................................. 938 1,248 10,188 65,749 27,845 
Construction in progress ................................................ 6,796 
Less: accumulated depreciation .................................... (571) (701) (2,161) (94,450) (16,625) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net.. .................. 367 547 8,027 128,422 12,675 

Total assets ............................................................. $ 377,139 $ 143,487 $ 67,150 $ 172,937 $ 4,000 $ 20,302 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..................... $ 93,205 $ 30,784 $ 18,722 $ 9,096 $ 468 $ 917 
Retainages payable ..................................................... 344 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................. 51,018 101,480 9,628 
Due to other funds ....................................................... 8 92 89 628 50 53 
lnterfund payables ........................................................ 2,164 1,000 
Deferred revenues ....................................................... 39,018 762 12,762 
Securities lending collateral ......................................... 30,227 196 76 8 
Notes payable .............................................................. 99 291 
Limited obligation bonds payable ................................ 3,050 
Capital lease and installment debt 
obligations payable .................................................... 278 

Compensated absences payable ................................ 245 359 340 2,594 117 
Other current liabilities ................................................. 768 

Total current liabilities ............................................... 213,721 133,673 42,385 18,261 1,518 1,378 

Long-term liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities ......................................................... 16,041 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................. 9,363 
Advances from other funds .......................................... 15,057 
Notes payable .............................................................. 572 552 
Limited obligation bonds payable ................................ 35,156 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable .................................................... 2,833 

Total long-term liabilities ........................................... 25,404 53,618 552 

Total liabilities ........................................................ 213,721 133,673 67,789 71,879 1,518 1,930 

Fund Equity: 
Contributed capital ......................................................... 41 64,055 242 
Retained earnings (deficit) ............................................. 163,418 9,773 (639) 37,003 2,482 18,130 

Total fund equity (deficit) ..................................... 163,418 9,814 (639) 101,058 2,482 18,372 

Total liabilities and fund equity .......................... $ 377,139 $ 143,487 $ 67,150 $ 172,937 $ 4,000 $ 20,302 
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State of South Carolina 

Department of 
Transportation Pension other 

Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 19,129 $ 1,149 $ 4,465 $ 1,285 $ $ 291,761 
2 30,509 

48 1,426 4,573 44,157 
1,185 41 (1,563) 33,214 

1,446 (2,913) 423 
3,067 6,643 

7 2,280 

19,129 1,199 10,143 7,352 (4,476) 408,987 

7,857 242,871 
6,543 ~14,422) 16,444 

14,400 (14,422) 259,315 

5,662 
1,436 147,556 

12,210 3,666 9,075 76 130,995 
6,796 

~6,400) (1,654) (6,123) (44) (128,729) 

5,810 2,012 4,388 32 162,280 

$ 24,939 $ 3,211 $ 14,531 $ 21,784 $ !18,898) $ 830,582 

$ $ 948 $ 810 $ 56 $ $ 155,006 
344 

162,126 
382 251 876 (1 ,563) 866 

1,304 (2,913) 1,555 
52,542 

2 30,509 
390 

3,050 

278 
845 506 24 5,030 

768 

2,177 1,567 2,260 (4,476) 412,464 

16,041 
9,363 

6,295 (14,422) 6,930 
1,124 

35,156 

2,833 

6,295 ~14,422) 71,447 

2,177 1,567 8,555 p8,898) 483,911 

12,210 5,280 133 81,961 
12,729 1,034 7,684 13,096 264,710 

24,939 1,034 12,964 13,229 346,671 

$ 24,939 $ 3,211 $ 14,531 $ 21,784 $ (18,898) $ 830,582 

133 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes 

. 
Fund Equity In 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Health Central 
and State Supplies 

Insurance Disability Accident General and 
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Egui~ment 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ................................................................. $ 70,946 $ 686,620 $ 35,120 $ 80,670 $ 10,210 
Contributions ............................................................................. 
Interest and other investment income ........................................ 16,075 9,868 
Licenses, fees, and permits ...................................................... 

Total operating revenues ..................................................... 87,021 696,488 35,120 80,671 10,210 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ...................................... 38,380 126,197 5,148 65,606 10,308 
Benefits and claims ................................................................... 21,021 643,211 36,648 
Depreciation ............................................................................. 143 201 1,047 7,141 
Other operating expenses ......................................................... 113 3,758 

Total operating expenses .................................................... 59,544 769,609 42,956 76,505 10,308 

Operating income (loss) ..................................................... 27,477 (73,121) (7,836) 4,166 (98) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income .......................................................................... 2,416 489 
Interest expense ........................................................................ (3,345) 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) ................................. (1) (7) 78 (1 ,236) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) .......................... (1) (7) 2,494 (4,092) 

Income (loss) before operating transfers ........................ 27,476 (73,128) (5,342) 74 (98) 

Operating transfers in ................................................................. 3,150 
Operating transfers out. .............................................................. (399) (298) (3,000) (1,396) 

Net income (loss) ................................................................ 27,077 (73,426) (8,342) 1,828 (98) 

Retained earnings at beginning of year ................................ 136,341 83,199 7,703· 35,175 2,580 

Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year .............................. 163,418 9,773 (639) 37,003 2,482 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ............................... 46 62,536 
Additions to contributed capital ............................................. 2,348 
Deductions from contributed capital.. .................................... !5! !829) 

Fund equity (deficit) at end of year ......................................... $ 163,418 $ 9,814 $ !639) $ 101,058 $ 2,482 
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State of South Carolina 

Department of 
Transportation Pension other 

Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 15,374 $ 2,209 $ 13,155 $ 21,336 $ 778 $ $ 936,418 
15 2,959 2,974 

383 26,326 
1 

16,374 2,209 13,170 21,336 4,120 965,719 

7,237 553 12,266 17,184 2,056 284,935 
700,880 

4,649 567 549 477 11 14,785 
7 2 114 20 8 4,022 

11,893 1,122 12,929 17,681 2,075 1,004,622 

3,481 1,087 241 3,655 2,045 p8,903) 

24 129 1,875 4,933 
(70) (1,493) (4,908) 

(111) (100) (181) 2 (1,556) 

j157) 29 {181) 384 {1,531) 

3,324 1,087 270 3,474 2,429 (40,434) 

(2,725) 425 

(187) (2,470) 2,725 (5,025) 

3,137 1,087 270 3,474 (41) (45,034) 

14,993 11,642 764 4,210 13,137 309,744 

18,130 12,729 1,034 7,684 13,096 264,710 

305 10,041 6,211 133 78,272 
4,144 69 6,561 

{63) j1,976) {2,872) 

$ 18,372 $ 24,939 $ 1,034 $ 12,964 $ 13,229 $ $ 346,671 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) ............................................................... . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation ............................................................................ . 
Change in the fair value of investments .................................... . 
Provision for loan losses and bad debts ................................... . 
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback ....... . 
Interest on investments and interfund loans ............................. . 
Other nonoperating revenues ................................................... . 
Other nonoperating expenses .................................................. . 
Other. ....................................................................................... . 

Change in assets-decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. ......................................................... . 
Due from other funds .............................................................. . 
Inventories ............................................................................... . 
Other current assets ................................................................. . 

Change in liabilities-increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .................................. . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ............................... . 
Due to other funds .................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues .................................................................. . 
Compensated absences payable ............................................. . 
Other current liabilities ............................................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities ............................................................ . 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Principal payments received from other funds .......................... . 
Principal payments made to other funds .................................. . 
Receipt of interest from other funds ......................................... . 
Interest payments made to other funds .................................... . 
Loans made to other funds ....................................................... . 
Operating transfers in ............................................................... . 
Operating transfers out. ............................................................ . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities ......................................... .. 
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$ 

Insurance 
Reserve 

27,477 

143 
4,057 

(16,075) 

2,646 
{5,208) 

123 

(5,733) 
(2,215) 

(9) 
524 

(3) 

5,727 

10,727 

2,452 

(2,423) 

(399) 

10,357 

$ 

Health 
and 

Disability 
Insurance 

(73, 121) 

201 
1,268 

(9,868) 

(1) 

{2,528) 
(787) 

1,103 
25,200 

(19) 
(1 ,423) 

108 

(59,867) 

(298) 

(298) 

$ 

State 
Accident 

Fund 

{7,836) 

1,047 

58 

8 

2,595 
(194) 

10,033 
(11,071) 

47 
(5,000) 

35 
223 

(10,055) 

(3,000) 

(3,000) 

$ 

General 
Services 

4,166 

7,141 

(163) 

(2) 
(79) 

(88) 
(2,883) 

(124) 

1,440 

8 

207 
(43) 

9,580 

(1 ,503) 

(844) 

3,150 
(1 ,396) 

(593) 



State of South Carolina 

Central Department of 
Supplies Transportation Pension Other 

and Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ (98) $ 3,481 $ 1,087 $ 241 $ 3,655 $ 2,045 $ $ (38,903) 

4,649 567 549 477 11 14,785 
5,325 

189 247 
(163) 

(25,943) 
146 17 2 165 

(10) (12) 
(1) (72) 

(6) (96) (32) (278) 1 '148 3,361 
138 (103) 37 671 38 (676) (8,967) 
481 (556) (199) 

(2) 121 

(250) 372 219 (638) (22) 6,524 
11,914 

(29) (45) (21) 27 231 676 866 
(5,899) 

3 51 48 6 455 
180 

236 8,408 1,653 1,061 3,396 3,646 (36,215) 

9,837 20,564 
(9,671) (11,174) 
1,875 4,327 

(1 ,493) (2,337) 
(2,423) 

(2,725) 425 
(187) (2,470) 2,725 (5,025) 

(187) (1 ,922) 4,357 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Insurance 
Reserve 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ........................ . $ (88) 
Principal payments on notes payable ....................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds ........................ . 
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds ........................ . 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ........................................ . 
Principal payments on capital leases and 

installment debt obligations payable ....................................... . 

Net cash used in capital and 
related financing activities ................................................ . (88) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments .......................................... . 65,899 
Purchase of investments .......................................................... . (105,880) 
Interest on investments ............................................................ . 13,307 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities ............................................................. . (26,674) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. . (10,678) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..................... .. 94,051 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ................................. . $ 83,373 

Noncash capital and financing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment through 

transfers from other funds ...................................................... . $ 
Long-term interfund Joan payments forgiven ............................ . 

Total noncash capital and financing activities ................ . $ 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Health 
and State 

Disability Accident General 
Insurance Fund Services 

(172) $ (606) $ (16,284) 
(94) 

4,789 
(2,170) 
(2,483) 

12 

(6,792) 

(172) (594) (23,034) 

1,865 
(1 ,976) (1 ,282) 
10,388 2,262 489 

10,277 980 489 

(50,060) (12,669) (13,558) 

151,921 51,768 48,038 

101,861 $ 39,099 $ 34,480 

$ $ 
1,336 

$ $ 1,336 



Central Department of 
Supplies Transportation Pension 

and Motor Internal Adminis-
Equipment Pool Service tration 

$ $ (6,180) $ $ (1 ,023) 
(657) 

(70) 

(6,907) (1,023) 

24 129 

24 129 

236 1,338 1,653 167 

1,054 4,292 17,476 982 

$ 1,290 $ 5,630 $ 19,129 $ 1,149 

$ $ $ 2,168 $ 

$ $ $ 2,168 $ 

Prison 
Industries 

$ (1,653) $ 

(1,653) 

1,743 

2,722 

$ 4,465 $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

State of South Carolina 

Other 
Internal 
Service 

$ 

(2,267) 

(2,267) 

(543) 

1,828 

1,285 $ 

$ 

$ 

Elimina-
tions Totals 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(26,006) 
(751) 

4,789 
(2, 170) 
(2,553) 

12 

(6,792) 

(33,471) 

67,764 
(111 ,405) 

26,599 

(17,042) 

(82,371) 

374,132 

291,761 

2,168 
1,336 
3,504 
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Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private 
organizations, or other governmental units. 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Expendable Trust Funds account for resources 
the State holds as trustee. Both the princtpal and 
earnings of ExP.endable Trust Funds may f>e used 
for purposes allowed under the trust agreements. 
The State uses the following Expendable Trust 
Funds: 

Radioactive Waste ContingencY. Fund. A 
private company o_perates a low-level radioactive 
waste disposal facifity within the State. The State 
and the company have entered into a trust agreement 
with the State Treasurer as trustee. The company 
has deposited monies into the trust fund to provide 
for site cleanl!P in the event that there is seepage 
into the groun<.fwater or the site is abandoned. 

Unem~loyment Compensation Benefits 
Fund. Th1s fund accounts for the State's 
unemployment compensation benefits. Revenues 
consist of taxes assessed on employers to pay 
benefits to qualified unemployed persons. 

Tuition Pre~ayment Program Fund. The 
South Carolina Tmtion Prepayment Program, also 
known as the PACE (Prepaid Affordable College 
Education) Program, allows contributors to maRe 
affordable fayments, under the terms of a tuition 
prepaymen contract, to cover future undergraduate 
tuitwn expenses of a designated beneficiary at a 
South Carolina public college or university. 

Other Expendable Trust Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for presentation P.Urposes, account for 
offier miscellaneous expendaole trust funds. These 
are generally resources given to the State through 
trust agreements and provide for such items as 
scholarship funds, mamtenance and operation of 
specific properties, and construction of monuments. 

NONEXPENDABLETRUSTFUNDS 

These funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee. The principal of these funds must 
be preserved and only the earnings may be used for 
the rurposes allowed under the trust agreement. 
Mos of the resources in these funos were 
bequeathed to the State via wills of deceased 
persons. 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

Pension Trust Funds account for the following 
five publi.c . employee retirement systems that the 
State adm1msters: 

State of South Carolina 

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a 
multiple-emP.loyer pension system that benefits 
employees of tlie State, public schools, and political 
suodivisions of the State. 

Police Officers' Retirement System. This is a 
multiple-employer P.ension system that benefits 
police officer~ .and fire. flgpters employed by the 
State or 1ts poht1cal subdiVISIOns. 

General Assembly Retirement System. This 
is a single-employer pension system that benefits 
members of the South Carolina General Assembly. 

Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System. 
This is a single-employer pension system that 
benefits the judges of tlie State's Supreme Court 
Court of AP.peals, circuit courts, family courts, and 
the State's circuit solicitors. 

National Guard Pension System. The State 
administers this single-employer pension system 
that provides a supplemental retirement benefit to 
members of the South Carolina Nationai Guard. 
The State is a nonemployer contributor to the 
system. 

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 

Local Government Investment Pool. Excess 
public monies are deposited into this fund by 
various local governmental units and other_political 
subdivisions of the State. The State Treasurer 
invests these monies in order to allow these 
participating go'-:ernp1ental units to realize. a high~r 
!ncome on fhetr mvestments by pooling tbe1r 
mvestments. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds are custodial in nature. They 
generally represent amounts held by the State on 
5ehalf oi third parties. The State uses the following 
Agency Funds: 

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This 
fund accounts for deposits wh1ch are required to be 
made by insurance companies in lieu of surety 
bonds. 

Federal lnterfund Activity Fund. This fund 
accounts for Federal grants and entitlements that are 
first received by one State ~ency and eventually 
will be distributed to another ~late agency. 

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for 
employee deductions and contributions for the short 
penod of time between the issuance of payroll 
checks and payment to the proper recipient. 

Other Ag_ency Funds. Balances in these funds, 
aggregated Tor pres~ntation purpo~es, represent 
amounts held for pnsoners and pat1ents or State 
institutions, cash bonds1 miscellaneous clearing 
accounts, and other depos1ts. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................... 
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ........................... 
Investments .............................................................. 
Invested securities lending collateral ...................... 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ................................................................ 
Taxes ..................................................................... 
Loans and notes ..................................................... 

Due from Federal government ................................. 
Due from other funds ................................................ 
Property, plant, and equipment: 

Land and improvements ......................................... 
Buildings and improvements .................................. 
Machinery, equipment, and other ........................... 
Less: accumulated depreciation ............................ 

Total assets ........................................................ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... 
Tax refunds payable ............................................... 
Intergovernmental payables ................................... 
Due to other funds .................................................. 
Deferred revenues ................................................. 
Deposits ................................................................. 
Amounts held in custody for others ........................ 
Securities lending collateral ................................... 

Total liabilities ................................................ 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits .................................. 
External investment pool participants .................. 
Endowment and similar funds .............................. 

Unreserved, undesignated ..................................... 

Total fund balances ........................................ 

Total liabilities and fund balances .................... 
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Radioactive 
Waste 

Contin9encx 

$ 94,243 

191 

3,164 

$ 97,598 

$ 3,228 

191 

3,419 

94,179 

94,179 

$ 97,598 

EXPENDABLE TRUST 

Unemployment Tuition Other 
Compensation Prepayment Expendable 

Benefits Pro9ram Trust 

$ 19,577 $ 8,198 $ 20,724 
763,293 

35 17 119 

1,237 259 308 
36,938 

1,298 

$ 822,378 $ 8,474 $ 21 '151 

$ 5,865 $ 282 $ 127 
3,039 

11,864 2 
656 

35 17 119 

21,459 299 248 

800,919 

8,175 20,903 

800,919 8,175 20,903 

$ 822,378 $ 8,474 $ 21,151 



State of South Carolina 

PENSION TRUST 

Judges' 
South Police General and National 

Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard 
NON EXPENDABLE Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension 

TRUST System System System System System 

$ 1,702 $ 691,033 $ 200,563 $ 6,180 $ 19,611 $ 7,375 

15,814,628 1,687,654 33,260 63,588 
12 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 

22 269,711 31,090 457 1,197 117 

14,344 2,689 73 

524 54 1 3 
4,279 437 13 20 

5 
(724) (74) (2) (4) (4) 

$ 1,736 $ 18,070,467 $ 2,074,257 $ 47,104 $ 87,637 $ 7,493 

$ $ 42,968 $ 316 $ $ 2 $ 

14,284 498 27 

12 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 

12 1,333,924 152,658 7,223 3,151 

16,736,543 1,921,599 39,881 84,486 7,493 

1,564 
160 

1,724 16,736,543 1,921,599 39,881 84,486 7,493 

$ 1,736 $ 18,070,467 $ 2,074,257 $ 47,104 $ 87,637 $ 7,493 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................. . 
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents .................................... ., ............ . 
Investments ..................................................................................... . 
Invested securities lending collateral .............................................. . 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ........................................................................................ . 
Taxes ............................................................................................. . 
Loans and notes ............................................................................ . 

Due from Federal government... ...................................................... . 
Due from other funds ....................................................................... . 
Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................................ . 
Buildings and improvements ......................................................... . 
Machinery, equipment, and other .................................................. . 
Less: accumulated depreciation ................................................... . 

Total assets ................................................................................ . 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................................... .. 
Tax refunds payable ...................................................................... . 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................................... . 
Due to other funds ......................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues ......................................................................... . 
Deposits ......................................................................................... . 
Amounts held in custody for others .............................................. .. 
Securities lending collateral. ......................................................... .. 

Total liabilities ........................................................................ . 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits .......................................................... . 
External investment pool participants .......................................... . 
Endowment and similar funds ...................................................... . 

Unreserved, undesignated ............................................................ . 

Total fund balances .............................................................. .. 

Total liabilities and fund balances .......................................... .. 
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INVESTMENT 

TRUST 

Local 
Government 
Investment 

Pool 

$ 894,429 

5,046 

43 

$ 899,518 

$ 4,905 

4,905 

894,613 

894,613 

$ 899,518 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Insurance 
Company 
Deposits 

322,988 

322,988 

322,988 

322,988 

322,988 



State of South Carolina 

AGENCY 

Federal 
lnterfund Payroll Other 
Activi~ Clearin~ Agenc~ Eliminations Totals 

$ 46 $ 9,926 $ 168,734 $ $ 2,142,341 
763,293 

19,706 17,946,870 
20 1,439,254 

3,158 310,763 
5,841 42,779 

95 95 
863 2,161 

45,637 8,793 (65,017) 6,519 

582 
4,749 

5 
(808) 

$ 909 $ 55,563 $ 206,347 $ (65,017) $ 22,658,603 

$ $ 464 $ 4,440 $ $ 62,598 
143 3,182 
243 243 

858 9,790 79,889 (65,017) 52,195 
656 

728 728 
51 45,309 120,884 489,232 

20 1,439,254 

909 55,563 206,347 (65,017) 2,048,088 

19,590,921 
894,613 

1,564 
123,417 

20,610,515 

$ 909 $ 55,563 $ 206,347 $ (65,017) $ 22,658,603 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Judges' 

South Police General and National 

Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard 

Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension 

System System System System System Totals 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents .......................... $ 691,033 $ 200,563 $ 6,180 $ 19,611 $ 7,375 $ 924,762 

Receivables: 

Contributions .............................................. 81,813 9,825 17 285 91,940 

Employer long-term .................................... 2,327 999 3,326 

Accrued interest. ......................................... 185,571 20,266 440 912 117 207.306 

Due from other funds .................................. 14,344 2,689 73 17,106 

Total receivables ...................................... 284,055 33,779 457 1,270 117 319,678 

Investments, at fair value: 

United States government securities .......... 2,613,373 260,078 8,541 3,973 2,885,965 

United States government agencies and 

government-insured securities .................. 4,789,356 457,613 8,228 22,851 5,278,048 

Corporate bonds ......................................... 4,604,890 521,121 9,963 23,102 5,159,076 

Financial and other ..................................... 2,968,751 354,679 4,583 9,568 3,337,581 

Mutual funds--equities ................................ 838,258 94,163 1,945 4,094 938,460 

Total investments ..................................... 15,814,628 1,687,654 33,260 63,588 17,599,130 

Invested securities lending collateral.. ........ 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 1,438,860 

Property and equipment, net of 

accumulated depreciation ............................ 4,079 417 12 19 4,528 

Total assets ........................................ 18,070,467 2,074,257 47,104 87,637 7,493 20,286,958 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable-unsettled investment 

purchases .................................................... 40,884 40,884 

Due to other funds ........................................ 14,284 498 27 14,809 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...... 2,084 316 2 2,403 

Securities lending collateral.. ........................ 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 1,438,860 

Total liabilities .................................... 1,333,924 152,658 7,223 3,151 1,496,956 

Net assets held in trust 

for pension benefits ..................... $ 16,736,543 $ 1,921,599 $ 39,881 $ 84,486 $ 7,493 $ 18,790,002 
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Statement of Net Assets 
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 

June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents .................................................. . 

Accrued interest receivable .................................................. . 

Investments .......................................................................... . 

Total assets ............................................................... . 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............................. . 

Total liabilities ........................................................... . 

Net assets held in trust 

for pool participants .................................... . 

Local Government 

Investment Pool 

$ 894,429 

43 

5,046 

899,518 

4,905 

4,905 

$ 894,613 

State of South Carolina 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Radioactive Unemployment Tuition Other 
Waste Compensation Prepayment Expendable 

Contingency Benefits Program Trust 

Revenues: 
Taxes, other ........................................... $ $ 171,854 $ $ 
Licenses, fees, and permits .................... 487 
Interest and other investment income ..... 5,041 49,967 110 1,048 
Federal. .................................................. 7,467 
Contributions .......................................... 3 8,065 642 
Other ...................................................... 1 547 

Total revenues .................................. 5,528 230,838 8,175 1,690 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government. ............................ 194,842 1,045 
Health and environment. ....................... 141 
Social services ..................................... 7 
Administration of justice ....................... 11 

Intergovernmental. .................................. 4 

Total expenditures ............................ 194,842 1,208 

Revenues over expenditures ................. 5,528 35,996 8,175 482 

Other financing sources {uses): 
Operating transfers in ............................. 2 
Operating transfers out ........................... (12,606) (109) 

Total other financing uses ............... (12,604} (109} 

Revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses ............... 5,528 23,392 8,175 373 

Fund balances at beginning of year ..... 88,651 777,527 20,530 

Fund balances at end of year ................. $ 94,179 $ 800,919 $ 8,175 $ 20,903 
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Elimina-
tions Totals 

$ $ 171,854 
487 

56,166 
7,467 
8,710 
1,547 

246,231 

195,887 
141 

7 
11 
4 

196,050 

50,181 

( 1) 1 
1 (12,714) 

(12,713} 

37,468 
886,708 

$ $ 924,176 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
AGENCY FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents........................................... $ 
Investments .................................................................. . 

Total assets............................................................... $ 

Liabilities: 
Amounts held in custody for others............................... $ 

Totalliabilities........................................................... $ 

FEDERAL INTERFUND ACTIVITY 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 
Due from Federal government... .................................... 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 

Total assets ............................................................... $ 

Liabilities: 
Due to other funds ......................................................... $ 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 

Total liabilities ........................................................... $ 

PAYROLL CLEARING 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 

Total assets ............................................................... $ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ....................... $ 
Due to other funds ......................................................... 
lnterfund payables ......................................................... 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 

Total liabilities ........................................................... $ 

Balance 
July 1, 1998 

347,561 
$ 

347,561 $ 

347,561 $ 

347,561 $ 

41 $ 
205 

5 

251 $ 

136 $ 
115 

251 $ 

9,525 $ 
43,982 

53,507 $ 

221 $ 
9,432 

5 
43,849 

53,507 $ 

Additions 

24,573 $ 
97,691 

122,264 $ 

97,691 $ 

97,691 $ 

28,117 $ 
863 

28,980 $ 

858 $ 
27,049 

27,907 $ 

977,552 $ 
45,637 

1,023,189 $ 

465 $ 
9,800 

833,860 

844,125 $ 

Deductions 
Balance 

June 30, 1999 

24,573 $ 
122,264 322,988 

146,837 $ 322,988 =====:::::::::::= 

122,264 $ 322,988 
-'------'--

122,264 $ 322,988 
========== 

28,112 $ 46 
205 863 

5 

28,322 $ 909 

136 $ 858 
27,113 51 

27,249 $ 909 

977,151 $ 9,926 
43,982 45,637 

1,021,133 $ 55,563 

222 $ 464 
9,442 9,790 

5 
832,400 45,309 

842,069 $ 55,563 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

OTHER AGENCY 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... 
Investments ................................................................... 
Invested securities lending collateral ............................. 
Accounts receivable ...................................................... 
Taxes receivable ........................................................... 
Loans and notes receivable ........................................... 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 

Total assets ............................................................... 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ....................... 
Tax refunds payable ...................................................... 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................... 
Due to other funds ......................................................... 
Deposits ........................................................................ 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 
Securities lending collateral. .......................................... 

Total liabilities ........................................................... 

TOTALS--ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... 
Investments ................................................................... 
Invested securities lending collateral.. ........................... 
Accounts receivable ...................................................... 
Taxes receivable ........................................................... 
Loans and notes receivable ........................................... 
Due from Federal government.. ..................................... 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 

Total assets ............................................................... 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ....................... 
Tax refunds payable ...................................................... 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................... 
Due to other funds ......................................................... 
lnterfund payables ......................................................... 
Deposits ........................................................................ 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 
Securities lending collateral.. ......................................... 

Total liabilities ........................................................... 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
July 1, 1998 

225,734 
19,264 

113 
2,686 
5,373 

95 
5,242 

258,507 

4,410 
158 
130 

85,605 
526 

167,565 
113 

258,507 

235,300 
366,825 

113 
2,686 
5,373 

95 
205 

49,229 

659,826 

4,631 
158 
130 

95,173 
5 

526 
559,090 

113 

659,826 

Additions Deductions 

$ 1,564,815 $ 1,621,815 
502 60 

20 113 
3,879 3,407 
5,865 5,397 

95 95 
8,793 5,242 

$ 1,583,969 $ 1,636,129 

$ 4,816 $ 4,786 
142 157 
243 130 

85,030 90,746 
728 526 

1,232,646 1,279,327 
20 113 

$ 1,323,625 $ 1,375,785 

$ 2,595,057 $ 2,651,651 
98,193 122,324 

20 113 
3,879 3,407 
5,865 5,397 

95 95 
863 205 

54,430 49,229 

$ 2,758,402 $ 2,832,421 

$ 5,281 $ 5,008 
142 157 
243 130 

95,688 100,324 
5 

728 526 
2,191,246 2,261,104 

20 113 

$ 2,293,348 $ 2,367,367 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 1999 

168,734 
19,706 

20 
3,158 
5,841 

95 
8,793 

206,347 

4,440 
143 
243 

79,889 
728 

120,884 
20 

206,347 

178,706 
342,694 

20 
3,158 
5,841 

95 
863 

54,430 

585,807 

4,904 
143 
243 

90,537 

728 
489,232 

20 

585,807 



State of South Carolina 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 

The General Fixed Assets Account GrouP. is 
maintained to account for fixed assets acquirea or 
constructed for use by the State for general 
governmental purposes. These include air fixed 

assets except those accounted for in the Proprietary 
Funds_, Discretely Presented Component Units, 
Fiduciary Funds, and Higher Education Funds. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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State of South Carolina 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Buildings, 
Land and Improvements, 

Function Improvements and Utility Plant 

General government. ............................... $ 12,635 $ 168,232 

Education ................................................. 5,570 107,141 

Health and environment.. ......................... 13,565 210,171 

Social services ......................................... 813 15,258 

Administration of justice ........................... 6,275 486.854 

Resources and economic development. ... 153,279 68,881 

Transportation .......................................... 3 336 65 931 

Total general fixed assets allocated 
to functions ....................................... $ 195,473 $ 1,122,468 

Construction in progress ........................... 

Total general fixed assets ................... 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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Machinery, 
Equipment, 
and Other Totals 

$ 87,609 $ 268,476 

339,824 452,535 

142,929 366,665 

45,683 61,754 

124,704 617,833 

94,576 316,736 

206 939 276,206 

$ 1,042,264 2,360,205 

46 614 

$ 2,406,819 



State of South Carolina 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 
July 1, 1998 

Balance Additions Retirements 

General government... ..................................... $ 249,795 $ 27,501 $ 8,820 

Education ........................................................ 454,780 18,522 

Health and environment... ................................ 356,504 18,071 

Social services ................................................. 60,006 6,204 

Administration of justice ................................... 583,420 46,128 

Resources and economic development.. .......... 321,005 13,479 

Transportation .................................................. 273,571 24,154 

Construction in progress .................................. 57,824 51,383 

Total general fixed assets ........................... $ 2,356,905 $ 205,442 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

20,767 

7,910 

4,456 

11 '715 

17,748 

21,519 

62,593 

$ 155,528 

June 30, 1999 
Balance 

$ 268,476 

452,535 

366,665 

61,754 

617,833 

316,736 

276,206 

46,614 

$ 2,406,819 
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Higher Education Funds 

Financial activities of the State's higher 
education institutions are reported in the Higher 
Education Funds. The four-year institutions are: 

The Citadel 
Clemson University 
Coastal Carolina University 
The College of Charleston (including an 

Undergraduate School, known as tlie 
College of CharlestonUand a Graduate 
School, known as the niversity of 
Charleston) 

Francis Manon University 
Lander Universicy 
The Medical University of South Carolina 
South Carolina State Universicy 
The Universicy of South Carohna 
Winthrop University 

Area technical colleges include: 

Aiken Technical College 
Central Carolina Techmcal Colle~ 
Chesterfield-Marlboro Technical-college 
Denmark Technical College 
Florence-Darlingtpn Technical College 
Greenville Technical College 
Hor:ry-Georgetown Technical College 
Midlands Technical Colle_ge 
Orangebur_g-Calhoun Teclinical College 
Piedmont Technical College 
fu>artanburg Technical College 
Technical Colle_ge of the Lowcountry 
Tri-Councy Tecnnical College 
Trident Technical College 
Williamsburg TechnicarCollege 
York Technical College 

Higher Education Funds include the following 
indivicfual funds: 

CURRENT FUNDS 

Current Funds account for resources that higher 
educl:!tion instit!JtiOI)S may l.!Se .for any purpose in 
carrymg out thetr pnmary objectives. 

Unrestricted Current Funds. These funds 
account for currently expendable resources. The 
majority of these funds are completely unrestricted. 
Certain institutions, however, have reserved or 
designated small portions of available resources for 
yaripus. operating purposes specific to the individual 
mstltutwn. 

Restricted Current Funds. These funds 
account for resources that donors or other outside 
agenci~s have restricted for specific current 
operatmg purposes. 

State of South Carolina 

LOAN FUNDS 

Loan Funds account for resources available for 
loans . to . stu~en_ts, faculty, or staff of higher 
educatwn mstltutwns. 

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS 

These funds account for endowments and quasi
endowments. These funds are similar to trust funds. 
The State must comply with the terms of any 
applicable agreements. 

PLANT FUNDS 

Plant Funds account for transactions involving 
phy~icl:!l properties of the higher education 
mstltuttons. 

Unexpended Plant Funds. The Unexpended 
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that 
institutions have avairable to finance the acquisition, 
construction, or ~mprov~ment of physical. proQerties. 
Resources tnat mstttutwns have set astde lor the 
renewal and replacement of institutional properties 
are also recorded in this fund. Assets under 
construction may be accounted for in this fund or in 
the Investment in Plant Funds. 

Retirement of Indebtedness Funds. The 
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds subgroup 
includes amounts to pay debt service and to retire 
indebtedness on institutiOnal properties. 

Investment in Plant Funds. The Investment in 
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that 
the institution lias expended for (and thus has 
invested. in) its properties and any related 
outstandmg debt. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds account for amounts that higher 
educafion mstitutions hold as custodians or fiscal 
agents for others. 

FOUNDATIONS AND INSTITUTES FUNDS 

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for 
certain component units of the State's colleges and 
universities. All component units meet the criteria 
for blending but are presented in a separate column 
because they use a basis of accounting different 
fro.m tqe_ one followed by the State's colleges and 
umversttles. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) CURRENT FUNDS 

ENDOWMENT 
LOAN AND SIMILAR 

Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents ................................................ $ 212,983 $ 7,660 $ 5,366 $ 12,084 
Investments ....................................................................... 12,799 6,097 686 46,919 
Invested securities lending collateral. ................................. 82 24 11 70 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts .......................................................................... 1,347 4,433 165 457 
Patient and student. ......................................................... 94,126 
Student loans ................................................................... 47,414 
Loans and notes .............................................................. 5,450 114 47,009 

Due from Federal government and other grantors ............. 966 50,198 88 
Due from other Higher Education Funds ........................... 60,277 9,424 49 4 
Due from other funds ........................................................ 16,817 433 
Advances to other funds .................................................... 775 
Inventories ......................................................................... 24,531 
Prepaid long-term operating lease ..................................... 
Other assets ...................................................................... 19,944 139 107 2,186 
Investment in joint venture ................................................. 
Property, plant, and equipment, net... ................................ 

Total assets .............................................................. $ 449,322 $ 78,522 $ 53,886 $ 109,504 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............................ $ 61,844 $ 2,131 $ 194 $ 201 
Retainages payable ............................................................ 4 
Due to other Higher Education Funds ................................ 43,154 18,188 4 268 
Due to other funds ............................................................. 4,153 4,451 
lnterfund payables ............................................................. 
Advances from other funds ................................................ 
Deferred revenues ............................................................. 39,244 490 
Deposits ............................................................................. 3,675 
Amounts held in custody for others .................................... 
Securities lending collateral.. ............................................. 82 24 11 69 
Notes payable .................................................................... 3,781 
General obligation bonds payable ...................................... 
Revenue bonds payable ..................................................... 
Certificates of participation payable ................................... 
Capital lease and installment debt obligations payable ....... 
Compensated absences payable ....................................... 86,844 38 
Other liabilities ................................................................... 3,847 12 19 

Totalliabilities .............................................................. 246,628 25,322 221 557 
Fund Balances: 

Investment in plant. ............................................................ 
Reserved for: 
Restricted fund balance ................................................... 53,200 4,622 
Federal government grants refundable ............................ 46,393 
Endowment and similar funds .......................................... 58,706 
Debt requirements ........................................................... 
Encumbrances ................................................................. 3,303 
Other special purposes .................................................... 5,164 

Unreserved: 
Designated for loan funds ................................................ 2,650 
Designated for endowment and similar funds .................. 50,241 
Designated for plant funds ............................................... 
Designated for special purposes ...................................... 7,288 
Undesignated ................................................................... 186,939 
Total fund balances ...................................................... 202,694 53,200 53,665 108,947 

Total liabilities and fund balances ......................... $ 449,322 $ 78,522 $ 53,886 $ 109,504 
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State of South Carolina 

PLANT FUNDS 
Retirement Investment FOUNDATIONS 

of in AGENCY AND 
Unex~ended Indebtedness Plant FUNDS INSTITUTES Eliminations Totals 

$ 129,809 $ 40,273 $ $ 3,789 $ 41,934 $ $ 453,898 
5,506 36,778 108,785 

151 2,631 12 2,981 

2,645 1,229 1,795 1,952 14,023 
24,074 118,200 

20 47,434 
52,573 

1,504 1,079 53,835 
22,280 1,085 91 (93,210) 

1,362 123 {1,514) 17,221 
500 30,685 (31,960) 

418 24,949 
16,314 16,314 

61 248 168 11,530 34,383 
3,936 3,936 

39,313 2,994,964 79,390 3,113,667 

$ 202,631 $ 45,966 $ 2,995,132 $ 5,810 $ 248,110 $ (126,684) $ 4,062,199 

$ 13,740 $ 5,877 $ $ 1,643 $ 13,135 $ $ 98,765 
6,730 6,734 
3,302 717 86 27,491 (93,210) 

(1 ,514) 7,090 
238 238 

500 33,326 (31 ,960) 1,866 
935 759 41,428 

3,675 
4,069 4,069 

151 2,632 12 2,981 
213 38,875 123,913 166,782 

7,745 70,560 78,305 
18,233 347 215,831 13,296 247,707 

20,698 20,698 
23,643 9,558 33,201 

4,946 91,828 
87 23 2,743 6,731 

50,614 10,595 382,496 5,810 216,539 j126,684! 812,098 

2,612,636 2,612,636 

103,218 25,033 13,540 199,613 
46,393 
58,706 

10,907 10,907 
3,303 

140 1,870 7,174 

2,650 
50,241 

48,659 10,338 58,997 
5,254 12,542 

186,939 
152,017 35,371 2,612,636 31,571 3,250,101 

$ 202,631 $ 45,966 $ 2,995,132 $ 5,810 $ 248,110 $ j126,684! $ 4,062,199 
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State of South Carolina 

Schedules--Budgetary General Fund 

The Budgetary General Fund, which 
corresponds to the General Funds column in the 
ApP.ropriation Act, is the State's general operating 
fund. The Budgetary General Fund differs 
significantly from tlie GAAP-basis General Fund. 

The schedules in this section have been 
prepared using the budgetary basis of accounting. 
In South Carolina, the budgetary basis of accounting 
is the cash basis with certam exceptions. The Notes 
to the Financial Statements include a more detailed 
description of the budgetary basis of accounting. 

Photograph is not available 
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State of South Carolina 

Appropriation Activity 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 

Legislative ................................................................................. . 
Judicial. .................................................................................... . 
Executive and administrative ..................................................... . 
Educational. .............................................................................. . 
Health ...................................................................................... . 
Social rehabilitation services ..................................................... . 
Correctional and public safety ............................................. . 
Conservation, natural resources, and development. ................... . 
Regulatory ................................................................................ . 
Transportation ........................................................................... . 
Debt service .............................................................................. . 
Miscellaneous ........................................................................... . 
Enterprise agencies ................................................................... . 

Totals-appropriations for expenditures ........................... . 

Transfer to designation for capital and nonrecurring .................. . 

Totals--appropriations for expenditures and 
intrafund transfers ............................................................ . 

Original 
Appropriations 

$ 28,643 
39,815 

169,342 
2,315,762 

817,012 
120,195 
494,850 
117,580 
55,042 

579 
152,392 
185,693 

4,496,905 

91 766 

$ 4,588,671 

Note: See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for information on budgetary accounting and reporting. 

3 The adjustments shown above (expressed in thousands) may be summarized as follows: 

Appropriations brought forward from 1997-98 ...................... . 
Open-ended appropriations ................................................. . 
Supplemental appropriations .............................................. .. 

Total adjustments ........................................................ . 

160 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Adjustments a 

5,014 
4,619 
6,208 

96,466 
63,094 
12,481 
48,164 
19,943 
3,721 

47,511 
16,000 

323,221 

323,221 

131,227 
30,986 

161 008 

323,221 



Adjusted 
A(:!(:!rO(:!riations Exf:!enditures 

$ 33,657 $ 29,823 
44,434 39,532 

175,550 140,334 
2,412,228 2,371,366 

880,106 846,468 
132,676 124,930 
543,014 510,513 
137,523 121,143 
58,763 56,245 

579 571 
152,392 147,283 
233,204 233,004 

16 000 16,000 

4,820,126 4,637,212 

91,766 

$ 4,911,892 $ 4,637,212 

Appropriations 
lntrafund To Be 
Transfer Carried Forward 

$ $ 3,834 
4,510 

33,097 
40,862 
33,638 

7,746 
32,501 
16,176 
2,518 

8 

200 

175,090 

91,766 

$ 91,766 $ 175,090 

Photograph is not available 
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State of South Carolina 

Lapsed 
A(:!(:!rO(:!riations 

$ 
392 

2,119 

204 

5,109 

7,824 

$ 7,824 
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State of South Carolina 

General Fund Reserve Activity 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Article III, Section 36, of the South Carolina 
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the 
General Fund Reserve, a reserve primarily designed 
to prevent Budgetary General Fund deficits. On 
November 4, 1988, a Constitutional amendment was 
passed, which permanently changed the funding 
requirement for the Reserve to three percent of the 
Budgetary General Fund revenue of the latest 
completed fiscal year. 

Start-of-
Fiscal Year Ended Year 

If amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the 
State Constitution establishes a schedule for 
restoring the Reserve to full funding within three 
years. 

Key amounts (dollars in thousands) for the 
General Fund Reserve for the last ten fiscal years 
are: 

End-of-Year Full-Funding Year% 
June 30 Balance Deposits Withdrawals Balance Amount• Fundedb 

1990 $ 87,999 $ $ $ 87,999 $ 
1991 87,999 6,115 (60,687) 33,427 

1992 33,427 4,729 (38, 156) 

1993 66,832 66,832 

1994 66,832 43,346 110,178 

1995 110,178 10,557 120,735 

1996 120,735 6,271 127,006 

1997 127,006 3,374 130,380 

1998 130,380 130,380 

1999 130,380 7,270 137,650 

aEquals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year. 
hEquals (End-of-Year Balance/Full Funding Amount) x 100. 

94,114 94% 
98,843 34% 
99,163 0% 

100,248 67% 
110,178 100% 
120,735 100% 
127,006 100% 
130,380 100% 
137,650 95% 
145,371 95% c 

cAs required by Part IV ofthe 1999-2000 Supplemental Appropriations Act, $7.721 million was transferred to 
the Reserve on September 1, 1999, to provide full funding. 
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State of South Carolina 

Funds Earmarked for Public Education 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Part I, Section 72, of the 1998-1999 
Appropriation Act and Sections 12-21-1130, 
12-33-30, 12-33-50, 61-4-250, 61-6-4260, and 
61-6-4270 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
require that the State's portion of those Budgetary 
General Fund revenues shown below be expended 
only to support the specific public education 
agencies listed below (including debt service on 

capital improvement bonds applicable to those 
agencies) and for other school purposes. These 
legal requirements are considered to be satisfied if 
the expenditures from Budgetary General Funds and 
Capital Reserve Funds for these particular agencies 
and for other school purposes exceed the State's 
portion of the specified revenues. 

Gross budgetary-basis revenues: 
Retail sales tax (4%) and excise tax-casual sales.................................... $ 1,889,615 
Alcoholic liquors tax--60% portion............................................................. 20,850 
Beer and wine tax--penalties and fines...................................................... 321 
Soft drinks tax........................................................................................ 15,508 

------
Budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation......................... 1,926,294 ------

Total budgetary-basis revenues earmarked for public 
education (95.5% of budgetary-basis revenues 

available for appropriation) ................................................................. . 1,839,611 3 

Budgetary-basis expenditures: 
Department of Education ........................................................................ . 1,570,958 
State Board of Technical and Comprehensive Education ............................ . 164,492 
Educational Tele\'ision Commission ......................................................... . 19,939 
Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School. ........................................................... . 3,341 
School for the Deaf and Blind .................................................................. . 12,144 
John De La Howe School. ....................................................................... . 4,131 
Debt service on capital improvement bonds applicable to 

above agencies .................................................................................... . 22,585 

Other school purposes ........................................................................... . 18,445 b 

Total budgetary-basis expenditures for public education ....................... . 1,816,035 

Excess (deficiency) of budgetary-basis expenditures over 
revenues earmarked for public education ........................................... . $ (23,576) 

===== 

"Title 6, Chapter 27 of the South Carolina Code of Laws is known as the State Aid to Subdivisions Act. That Act requires the 
State to appropriate not less than four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the latest completed fiscal year's total budgetary 
General Fund revenues to local governments. Accordingly, the State's portion of the above revenues is ninety-five and one
half percent (95.5%) of the budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriationi 

bThe Other School Purposes expenditure category includes: (1) a State supplement to school districts to help pay the district 
contribution toward public school employee benefits, (2) State expenditures for the Palmetto Unified School District, 
(3) State expenditures for the Department of Juvenile Justice's education program, (4) State expenditures for the Governor's 
Office Division of Education and (5) Capital Reserve Appropriations for the Budget and Control Board Office of 
Information Resources to expend on school technology. 
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State of South Carolina 

Expenditures by Function 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPESa 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 1990 

b General government .................................. $ 314,764 

Education .................................................. 270,237 

Individual and family services c .................... 1,811,417 

Health and environmenf· d .......................... 

Social servicesc ........................................... 

Administration of justice .............................. 282,580 

Resources and economic development. ..... 128,101 

Transportation ............................................ 265,443 

Miscellaneous ............................................. 30 

Capital outlay8 
••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 25,854 

Debt service: 

Principal retirement. .................................. 62,482 

Interest and fiscal charges ........................ 47,902 

Intergovernmental. ...................................... 1,969,425 

Total expenditures .................................. $ 5,178,235 

a General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds. 

$ 

$ 

1991 1992 1993 

251,692 $ 234,092 $ 247,452 

262,697 241,230 254,464 

2,097,614 2,489,321 2,682,162 

300,250 304,488 312,961 

132,970 128,059 131,021 

274,895 274,957 290,740 

25,166 22,819 24,572 

66,715 94,538 104,316 

50,825 53,911 53,316 

2,007,557 2,033,486 2,096,679 

5,470,381 $ 5,876,901 $ 6,197,683 

b Until July 1, 1990, General Government expenditures included premiums for retiree health and dental insurance for all functional areas. Since July 1, 
1990, the total premium cost has been allocated among the various functional areas. This resulted in a decrease in General Government expenditures 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991. 

c Beginning July 1, 1993, Individual and Family Services expenditures were divided into two new functional expenditure categories--Health and 
Environment expenditures and Social Services expenditures. Prior years were not restated for this change. 

d 

e 

Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human 
Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external transactions in the 
Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change. 

Until July 1, 1993, all highway construction projects were included as Capital Project expenditures. Since July 1, 1993, these projects have been 
recorded in the Special Revenue Funds. 
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

1994 1995 1996 1997 

$ 399,456 $ 352,015 $ 330,519 $ 351 I 156 $ 

293,158 322,219 379,984 326,103 

2,166,088 2,320,642 2,946,457 3,032,995 

678,772 697,958 709,747 700,442 

405,503 457,008 488,425 543,456 

138,937 139,635 155,302 150,131 

214,574 203,837 218,366 230,384 

391,848 385,698 398,776 436,798 

82,602 88,765 82,997 97,728 

49,107 48,796 50,574 53,493 

2,157,866 2,358,823 2,636,440 2,805,584 

$ 6,977,911 $ 7,375,396 $ 8,397,587 $ 8,728,270 $ 

State of South Carolina 

1998 

352,065 $ 

318,558 

3,121,887 

662,912 

592,556 

160,242 

281,021 

396,801 

110,076 

51 I 132 

3,032,018 

9,079,268 $ 

1999 

355,558 

355,927 

3,443,809 

648,689 

632,872 

159,546 

303,824 

453,708 

90,786 

55,193 

3,262,640 

9,762,552 
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State of South Carolina 

Revenues by Source 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPESa 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Sources 1990 

Taxes: 

Individual income .................................... $ 1,361,839 

Retail sales and use ............................... 1,464,989 

Other ...................................................... 918,270 

Licenses, fees, and permits ...................... 163,202 

Interest and other investment 

income .................................................... 82,954 

Federal. .................................................... 1,650,917 

Departmental services b ...•........................ 111,985 

Contributions ........................................... 31,812 

Fines and penalties ................................... 31,034 

Other ........................................................ 37,775 

Total revenues ...................................... $ 5,854,777 

8 
General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds. 

$ 

$ 

1991 1992 1993 

1,377,825 $ 1,386,724 $ 1,481,592 

1,463,941 1,515,223 1,628,766 

914,729 911,036 983,546 

198,235 218,726 300,699 

77,602 55,634 44,702 

1,821,552 2,140,272 2,228,180 

118,209 137,112 153,781 

54,337 81,232 101,242 

31,643 43,610 44,182 

32,045 43,552 52,796 

6,090,118 $ 6,533,121 $ 7,019,486 

b 
Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and 
Human Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasr-external 
transactions in the Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change. 
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State of South Carolina 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 

$ 1,519,030 $ 1,646,375 $ 1,809,287 $ 1,927,600 $ 2,103,799 $ 2,282,509 

1,756,157 1,892,801 2,034,484 2,141,864 2,304,004 2,521,264 

999,077 1,059,846 1 '149,342 1 '163,889 1,190,605 1,274,366 

307,939 255,570 243,502 258,960 281,242 290,530 

48,596 82,412 98,728 113,199 130,155 122,002 

2,582,498 2,787,132 2,907,661 3,087,312 3,213,004 3,445,858 

161,375 215,485 535,117 533,395 540,047 539,863 

82,507 89,797 106,606 115,739 155,137 192,852 

51,926 54,881 55,340 58,170 61,744 69,862 

53,195 59,716 73,639 70,424 81,067 80,220 

$ 7,562,300 $ 8,144,015 $ 9,013,706 $ 9,470,552 $ 10,060,804 $ 10,819,326 
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State of South Carolina 

Income and Sales Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
Year Individual Corporate 

Ended Income Income 
June 30 Tax Tax 

1990 3-7% 5% 

1991 2.75-7% 5% 

1992 2.50-7% 5% 

1993 2.50-7% 5% 

1994 2.50-7% 5% 

1995 2.50-7% 5% 

1996 2.50-7% 5% 

1997 2.50-7% 5% 

1998 2.50-7% 5% 

1999 2.50-7% 5% 

8 Excludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax. 

Source: Department of Revenue. 
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State of South Carolina 

Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Debt Payable Net General 
Gross From Higher Net General Bonded 

Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Debt 
Year Ended Population• Debtb Funds Debtc Per 

June 30 (Thousands} (Thousands} (Thousands} (Thousands} Capita 

1990 3,499 $ 807,911 $ 28,071 $ 779,840 $ 222.88 

1991 3,559 828,650 28,560 800,090 224.81 

1992 3,599 876,305 44,570 831,735 231.10 

1993 3,635 884,025 43,230 840,795 231.31 

1994 3,667 929,571 40,420 889,151 242.47 

1995 3,699 898,047 44,345 853,702 230.79 

1996 3,737 1,007,394 41,900 965,494 258.36 

1997 3,788 1,052,173 85,365 966,808 255.23 

1998 3,836 1,036,642 84,465 952,177 248.22 

1999 3,887 1,218,872 78,305 1,140,567 293.43 

a Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board. 

b Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes of both the General Long
Term Obligations Account Group and the Higher Education Funds and notes payable in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group. 

c 
Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable not expected to 
be repaid through general governmental resources (e.g., the debt payable from Higher Education Funds). 

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive property tax 
revenue. 
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State of South Carolina 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Section 59-107-90 of the South Carolina Code 
of Laws states that the maximum amount of annual 
debt service on institution bonds for each institution 
shall not exceed ninety percent of the sums received 
from tuition fees for die preceding fiscal year. 

Section 57-11-240 of the South Carolina Code 
of Laws and Article X, Section 13 of the South 
Carolina Constitution state that highway bonds may 
be issued if such bonds are additionally secured by a 
pledge of revenues designated by the General 
Assembly for State highway purposes from taxes or 
licenses Imposed for using the public highways of 
the State. The maximum annuaf debt service on all 
highway bonds shall not exceed fifteen percent of 

the proceeds received from the designated revenues 
for the fiscal year next preceding. 

Furthermore, SectiOn 11-11-430 states: "The 
issuance of general obligation bonds of the State 
must be limited so that the maximum annual debt 
service on all general obligation bonds of the State 
(excluding highway bonds, State institution bonds, 
tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes) 
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues 
of the State for the fiscal year next preceding 
(excluding revenues which are authorized to be 
pledged for State highway bonds and State 
mstitution bonds)." 

INSTITUTION BONDS 

Prior Year 90% Maximum 
Institution Revenues Computation Debt Service 

The Citadel ..................................... $ 488 $ 439 $ 206 
Clemson Uni-.ersity .......................... 86,641 77,977 1,542 
Coastal Carolina Uni-.ersity ............... 21,368 19,231 343 
Uni-.ersity of South Carolina .............. 6,597 5,937 4,361 
Winthrop Uni-.ersity .......................... 660 594 406 
Medical Uni-.ersity of South Carolina .. 7,603 6,843 1,453 
Green\111e Technical College ............. 14,401 12,961 124 
Midlands Technical College .............. 13,353 12,018 832 
Central Carolina Technical College .... 3,426 3,083 202 
Tri-County Technical College ............ 835 752 735 
Trident Technical College ................. 10,608 9,547 413 

Totals. ........................................ $ 165,980 $ 149,382 $ 10,617 

HIGHWAY BONDS 

1997-1998 Budgetary General Fund re\enues pledged for highway bonds.......................................... $ 
1997-1998 other re\enues pledged for highway bonds ..................................................................... . 

1997-1998 re\enues pledged for highway bonds .............................................................................. . 

15% of 1997-1998 re\enues pledged for highway bonds ................................................................... . 

Less: maximum annual debt sen.1ce for highway bonds a ............................................................... . 

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1999-highway bonds..................................................... $ 

$ 

$ 

Margin 

233 
76,435 
18,888 
1,576 

188 
5,390 

12,837 
11,186 
2,881 

17 
9,134 

138,765 

79,147 
393,623 

472,770 

70,915 

32,590 

38,325 

a As of June 30, 1999, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin (Continued) 
June 30, 1999 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (EXCLUDING INSTITUTION AND HIGHWAY BONDS) 

1997-1998 Budgetary General Fund rewnues ................................................................................ . $ 4,845,701 
Less: 1997-1998 Budgetary General Fund rewnues pledged for 

highway bonds ......................................................................................................................... . 79,147 
Less: 1997-1998 transfers for institution bond debt sei""\Ace recorded as 

Budgetary General Fund rewnues .............................................................................................. . 10,437 

1997-1998 net Budgetary General Fund rewnues ........................................................................... . 4,756,117 

5% of 1997-1998 net Budgetary General Fund rewnues .................................................................. . 237,806 
Less: maximum annual debt sei""\Ace for general obligation bonds 

excluding institution and highway bonds a .................................................................................. . 137,252 

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1999;Jeneral obligation bonds 
excluding institution and highway bonds. ............................................................................. . $ 100,554 

a As of June 30, 1999, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001. 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures 
for General Obligation Debt to Total 
General Governmental Expendituresa 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Fiscal 
Year Total General 

Ended Debt Governmental 
June 30 Principal Interest Service Expenditures 

1990 $ 62,482 $ 47,902 $ 110,384 $ 5,178,235 
1991 66,715 50,825 117,540 5,470,381 
1992 94,538 53,911 148,449 5,876,901 
1993 104,316 53,316 157,632 6,197,683 
1994 82,602 49,107 131,709 6,977,911 
1995 88,765 48,796 137,561 7,375,396 
1996 82,997 50,574 133,571 8,397,587 
1997 97,728 53,493 151,221 8,728,270 
1998 110,076 51' 132 161,208 9,079,268 
1999 90,786 55,193 145,979 9,762,552 

a General Governmental Expenditures include the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

Ratio of 
Debt Service to 

General Governmental 
Expenditures 

2.13% 
2.15% 
2.53% 
2.54% 
1.89% 
1.87% 
1.59% 
1.73% 
1.78% 
1.50% 
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State of South Carolina 

Revenue Bond Coverage-Enterprise Funds a 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY c 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended Gross Principal 
June 30 Revenues Proceeds 

1990 $ 71,017 $ 45,028 $ 
1991 73,984 44,896 
1992 68,431 103,495 
1993 64,465 94,666 
1994 53,871 116,082 
1995 52,576 44,228 
1996 51' 109 55,527 
1997 50,520 47,254 
1998 52,825 62,732 
1999 47,643 68,045 

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY cd 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended Gross Principal 
June 30 Revenues Proceeds 

1990 $ 24,312 $ 15,249 $ 
1991 22,969 18,087 
1992 32,411 23,163 
1993 35,697 28,402 
1994 35,207 32,965 
1995 41,164 36,715 
1996 44,597 47,735 
1997 45,130 43,907 
1998 44,708 43,402 
1999 45,159 70,490 

Direct Net Revenue 
Operating Available for 
Expensesb Debt Service 

5,853 $ 110,192 
5,265 113,615 
5,314 166,612 
5,797 153,334 
5,703 164,250 
6,611 90,193 
6,093 100,543 
6,273 91,501 
6,608 108,949 
6,863 108,825 

Direct Net Revenue 
Operating Available for 
Expensesb Debt Service 

4,663 $ 34,898 
8,320 32,736 
9,025 46,549 

11,299 52,800 
6,450 61,722 
7,641 70,238 
7,108 85,224 
7,479 81,558 
8,252 79,858 

10,454 105,195 

• Computations are based on data provided by the authorities. There may be classification differences between this data and data found elsewhere 
in this report. 

b Excludes depreciation, amortization, and interest expense. 

c These entities use bond proceeds to make loans to non-governmental parties. Accordingly, principal proceeds received are included as a 
revenue in the calculation of the Net Revenue Available for Debt Service. 

dIn years prior to 1994, the South Carolina Education Assistance Authority Fund included the Student Loan Corporation. Previous years have not 
been restated. 
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Principal 

$ 10,010 
10,025 
11,325 
43,103 
81,965 
11,715 
9,880 

11,070 
11,645 
41,330 

Principal 

$ 11,440 
17,665 
21,320 
22,480 
24,895 
34,795 
32,155 
29,395 
47,515 

1,270 

Debt Service Requirements 

Interest Total 

$ 56,661 $ 66,671 
59,359 69,384 
59,468 70,793 
49,503 92,606 
39,405 121,370 
35,307 47,022 
34,492 44,372 
33,588 44,658 
33,629 45,274 
31,258 72,588 

Debt Service Requirements 

$ 

Interest Total 

11,864 $ 23,304 
12,419 30,084 
14,284 35,604 
17,507 39,987 
19,199 44,094 
21,469 56,264 
23,563 55,718 
21,971 51,366 
20,275 67,790 
18,350 19,620 

Photograph is not available 
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Chester County Courthouse 

State of South Carolina 

Coverage 
Ratio 

1.65 
1.64 
2.35 
1.66 
1.35 
1.92 
2.27 
2.05 
2.41 
1.50 

Coverage 
Ratio 

1.50 
1.09 
1.31 
1.32 
1.40 
1.25 
1.53 
1.59 
1.18 
5.36 
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State of South Carolina 

Demographic Statistics 
Last Ten Years 

Median 
Per Capita Age• School Unemployment 

Population• Income• (Years) Enrollmentb Ratec 
at Year Ended at at at 

Year June 30 December31 June 30 June 30 December31 

1989 3,444,000 $ 13,884 31.4 678,050 4.6% 

1990 3,498,982 15,106 31.7 677,356 5.2% 

1991 3,558,707 15,482 32.2 681,717 6.5% 

1992 3,599,351 16,467 32.6 685,744 6.7% 

1993 3,634,842 17,242 32.9 688,513 7.3% 

1994 3,666,760 18,072 33.3 692,515 5.2% 

1995 3,699,305 18,789 33.7 701,140 5.5% 

1996 3,736,947 19,651 34.1 699,058 5.8% 

1997 3,788,119 20,508 34.5 708,751 3.7% 

1998 3,835,962 21,309 35.0 718,969 3.9% 

1999 3,886,500 d 35.4 720,855 d 

Sources: 

•office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board 

bSouth Carolina Department of Education 

csouth Carolina Employment Security Commission 

dNot yet available 
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State of South Carolina 

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Years 

(Dollars in Millions) 

Nonresidential 
Construction 

Thousands of 
Square Feet at 

Year December 31 

1988 23,121 

1989 18,866 

1990 18,525 

1991 17,272 

1992 15,052 

1993 15,840 

1994 20,369 

1995 22,345 

1996 25,816 

'1997 31,397 

1998 23,763 

1999 c 

Residential 
Construction• 

Number of Bank 
Units at Value at Deposits at 

December 31 December 31 December 31 

25,563 $ 1,438 $ 26,022 

20,530 1,252 27,849 

22,454 1,475 29,091 

19,309 1,372 29,528 

20,853 1,585 30,224 

21,186 1,662 31,005 

23,670 1,898 30,475 

22,400 1,826 33,035 

28,281 2,402 30,032 

27,984 2,430 23,515 

31,070 2,821 24,729 

c c c 

• The residential construction statistics exclude mobile home permits. 

b Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State. 

c Not yet available. 

Property Valueb 

Nonresidential Residential 
at at 

June 30 June 30 

$ 34,127 $ 31,241 

34,936 33,869 

37,079 38,852 

39,089 41,220 

41,104 45,926 

43,084 50,963 

44,204 54,118 

45,334 57,987 

46,864 60,977 

48,409 63,905 

d d 

d d 

d 
Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 1998 nor 
1999 information is yet available. 

Sources: Board of Economic Advisors, State Budget and Control Board; Department of Revenue; University of South 
Carolina, College of Business Administration. Division of Research. 
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State of South Carolina 

Largest Manufacturing Companiesa 
December 31, 1998 

Name 

Westinghouse Electric Corporation ............ . 

Springs Industries, Incorporated ................. . 

Milliken & Company ................................... . 

Michelin Tire Corporation ........................... . 

WestPoint Stevens .................................... . 

Robert Bosch GmbH .................................. . 

AB Electrolux Sweden ................................ . 

Sealed Air Corporation ............................... . 

Hoechst AG ............................................... . 

Greenwood Mills, Incorporated ................... . 

KEMET Corporation ................................... . 

Gold Kist Incorporated ............................... . 

Galey & Lord Industries, Incorporated ........ . 

Ryobi North America, Incorporated ............ . 

E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company .... . 

Ingersoll-Rand Company ............................ . 

AlliedSignal, Incorporated .......................... . 

General Electric Company ......................... . 

Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation ........ . 

International Paper ..................................... . 

Number of Plants 
in South Carolina 

3 

13 

26 

7 

7 

6 

2 

4 

4 

7 

4 

3 

6 

2 

3 

4 

6 

2 

4 

8 

Number of Employees 
in South Carolina 

13,036 

6,767 

6,683 

6,327 

4,778 

4,727 

3,200 

3,191 

3,041 

2,686 

2,631 

2,559 

2,451 

2,431 

2,377 

2,338 

2,326 

2,325 

2,225 

2,223 

aBased on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 2,200 or more employees. 

Source: 1999-2000 South Carolina Industrial Directory. 
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Miscellaneous Statistics 
December 31, 1998 (Except as Noted) 

Date of ratification--U. S. Constitution ....................................................................... . 

Form of government. ................................................................................................. . 

Miles of State highways ............................................................................................. . 

Land area (square miles) ........................................................................................... . 

State police protection: 

Police and sheriff agencies .................................................................................... . 

Total number of sworn officers .............................................................................. . 

Higher education (universities, colleges, and 
technical education centers): 

Number of campuses ............................................................................................ . 

Number of students ............................................................................................... . 

Recreation: 

Number of State parks and historical sites ............................................................ . 

Area of State parks ................................................................................................ . 

Area of State forests .............................................................................................. . 

State employees--all funds (at June 30, 1999) ........................................................... . 

Sources: 

8 1999 Legislative Manual 

bDepartment of Transportation 

cOffice of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board 

dState Law Enforcement Division 

8Commission on Higher Education 

1Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism 

9Forestry Commission 

hOffice of State Budget, State Budget and Control Board 

State of South Carolina 

Legislative-Executive-Judicial 

64,896b 

30,111c 

531 

80,902 acres1 

71,922 acres9 

68,972h 
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State of South Carolina 

Courthouses-Additional Information 
(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name) 

Abbeville County Courthouse (page 36) 
The Abbeville County Courthouse was built just 
after the tum of the century~ at roughly the same 
time as the Abbeville Opera House, which is located 
next door on Court Square. 

Aiken County Judicial Center (page 5) 
Originally constructed in 1881, the Aiken County 
Courthouse has undergone two major renovations as 
well as several mmor ones. Recent major 
renovations were required after fires in 1977 and 
1981 damaged the structure. The Aiken County 
Judicial Center was dedicated on January 18, 1987. 

Allendale County Courthouse (page 113) 
This photografh shows the Allendale County 
Courtliouse JUS P.rior to May 18h1998, when a fire 
set by an arsonist destroyed t e interior of the 
buildmg. The building is currently being 
reconstructed. 

Anderson County Courthouse (page 158) 
Construction of the new Anderson County 
Courthouse was completed in SeP.tember 1991. The 
new courthouse is a mixture of historical details 
used in the old courthouse, such as the tile roof, and 
modem features, such as the arched framework 
outside the entrance. 

Bamberg County Courthouse (page 32) 
The Bamber_g County Courthouse was built in 1897. 
The originar courthouse was moved to a different 
site and completely renovated in 1950. 

Barnwell County Courthouse (page 151) 
Construction on the Barnwell County Courthouse 
began in October 1878. The present buildin_g is 
located on the original five-acre site deeded tor a 
courthouse in 1800oy Benjamin Odom. 

Beaufort County Courthouse (page 140) 
Completed in JanuafY. 1991 the Beaufort County 
Courthouse is locateo in the historic downtown 
district of Beaufort. The building is part of the 
Beaufort County multi-government center. 

Berkeley County Courthouse (page 5) 
The Berkeley County Courthouse was built in 1896 
at a cost of approximately $4,500. The plans called 
for a two-story building of good hard, well-burned 
brick, a tin roof, and a portico built of wood with 
galvanized iron columns. The first case was tried in 
General Sessions Court on June 7, 1897, and 
involved a man charged with hog theft. An 
addition that more than doubled the original size of 
the building was completed in 1991. 

Calhoun County Courthouse (page 33) 
The Calhoun Coun!)' Courthouse, a two-story 
Georgian Revival style building, was completed in 
May 1914. The courthouse was listed on the 
Natwnal Register of Historic Places in July 1981. 

Charleston County Courthouse (page 159) 
The Charleston County Courthouse, built in 1792, 
includes some exterior and first floor walls that date 
back to the original 1753 Provincial Statehouse of 
the Colony of Carolina. The building is located at 
what is .Known as the Four Comers of Law in 
downtown Charleston. Today the structure is 
undergoing a multi-million dollar restoration to 
return it to its 1792 period. Pictured is a rendition 
of the building as it will appear after the restoration 
is completed. It will become the cornerstone and 
symbofic center of a new Judicial Center Complex 
that is under construction. The adjacent Judicial 
Center, slated for completion in 2001, will include 
fourteen courtroom sets. 

Cherokee County Courthouse (page 112) 
The Cherokee County Courthouse, located on East 
Floyd Baker Boulevard in Gaffney, South Carolina;. 
was erected in 1927. The buildiQg constructed or 
granite with interior walls and floors of marble, 
liouses a courtroom on its third floor with a seating 
capacity of 300. The stairs leading from floor to 
floor are gray marble. Few renovations have been 
done over tfie years; however, there are plans to 
renovate the first floor and add an elevator to the 
building. A future addition may be added to the rear 
of the ouilding to accommodate offices needed due 
to rapid growth in Cherokee County. 

Chester County Courthouse (page 175) 
Edward Brickell White of Charlest~n_, whose work 
was _greatly influenced by Robert Mills, designed 
the Cllester Councy Courthouse which was built in 
1852. Additions in 1896 and 1928 included a three
story rear wing and a rotunda. An elevator tower 
that was added to the rear wing in 1994 
complements the original design of the ouilding. 

Chesterfield County Courthouse (page 27) 
South Carolina's first secession meeting was held 
on November 19, 1860, at the Chesterfield County 
Courthouse. Sherman and his troops torched the 
county courthouse in March 1865 and all records 
were oestroyed. In 1884 duriQg Reconstruction~ a 
new courthouse was built. The two-story bnck 
building has a large CUQola and a tall mansard roof 
in the then-fashionable EmP.ire mode; this mansard, 
with its iron cresting, still dominates the main 
streetscl!)Je of Chesterfield. This facility, the "Olde 
Chesterfield County Courthouse" is currently closed 
for renovations. When completed, the building will 
once .again house all of Chesterfield County's court 
functions. 
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State of South Carolina 

Courthouses-Additional Information 
(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name) 

Clarendon County Courthouse (page 8) 
The first Clarendon County Courthouse, erected in 
the 1850's for $18J>OO, was destroyed m the Civil 
War by General rotter's Raiders. The present 
Georgian-style courthouse, built in 1908-1909 h is 
situated on an entire city block. After a 1 ':170 
renovation, Hurricane Hugo damaged the buildin_g 
and destroyed the beauliful grounds in 1989": 
Through tlie efforts of the Manning Council of 
Garden Clubs, the grounds were completely 
restored. 

Colleton County Courthouse (page 180) 
The Colleton Councy Courthouse~ completed in the 
fall of 1822 is in tlie Greek Revtval scyle. Robert 
Mills is credited with the design of the Walterboro 
building. The courthouse is bnck, which is stuccoed 
to represent stone. Two curving stairways with 
ironwork railings lead to the second-floor portico, 
which rests on an arched foundation. Four Doric 
columns and two square pilasters support the 
massive, undecorated entablature. In 1939 two 
large wings were added to the original structure. 

Darlington County Courthouse (page 11 0) 
The P.resent Darlington County Courthouse was 
built in 1964. Previously, four other Darlin~on 
Councy Courthouses occupied the site. Two 
courthouses were lost to fires in 1806 and 1866, and 
two subsequent rebuildings were completed in 1873 
and 1904. 

Dillon County Courthouse (page 118) 
The cornerstone for the Dillon County Courthouse 
was laid on October 30, 1911. The two-story brick 
and stone structure was of fireproof construction 
throug)).Out, including the ample vaults adjacent to 
the oflice of each official. Tlie building was heated 
by steam and contained every modern convenience 
available at that time. The total cost of the building 
was $100,000. When completed, the impressive 
structure was one of whicli the county could be 
proud. Shaded by lo:fty trees on the surrounding 
green lawn, this building still serves as Dillon's 
courthouse. (Photo by Benton Henry) 

Dorchester County Courthouse (page 164) 
The Dorchester County Courthouse, located in St. 
George was constructed in 1964 in the Greek 
Revivaf architectural style. The building now 
houses both judicial and county administrative 
offices. The administrative functions will move to a 
different facility in 2001, and the courthouse will be 
refurbished as a state-of-the-art court facility in 
2002. 

Edgefield County Courthouse (page 154) 
The Ed~field County Courthouse was completed in 
1839. Throughout 1ts historY, this courthouse has 
seen numerous Edgefielo County citizens 

182 

distinguish themselves in law and politics. United 
States Senator Strom Thurmondt three sitting 
federal judges, and a resident circmt judge all hail 
from Eogefield County. Ten _governors and five 
lieutenant governors of South Carolina have called 
Edgefield County home. 

Fairfield County Courthouse (page 130) 
Th.e Fairfield Co~nty Courthouse, . located in 
Wmnsboro, was destgned by Robert Mtlls and built 
in 1822 by William McCreight. Alterations and 
additions were made in 1844. The courthouse was 
renovated in 1939 with the addition of two rear 
wings and the flying staircase in front. The building 
houses records dating back as far as the middle 
1700's. 

Florence County City/County Complex 
(page 170) 

The Florence County Cicy/County Complex was 
erected by the joint particiPation of the City of 
Florence and the County ot- Florence in 197'I. It 
represented the realizatiOn of a vision bx leaders 
who believed that the facilities for the 
governmental, financial, judicial, and law 
enforcement functions of the city and county 
government should be brought together in an effort 
fo serye the public good efficiently and 
economically. 

Georgetown County Courthouse (page 161) 
The Georgetown County Courthouse was 
constructed m 1823-1824 to replace the previous 
courthouse, which had been damaged by two 
hurricanes. Robert Mills based his design of the 
courthouse on the style of Palladio, a sixteenth
century Italian architect. A modern Mills scholar 
has described the Georgetown County Courthouse 
as "the most sophisticated of his South Carolina 
courthouses." It was enlarged in 1853, and the first 
and second entrances appear to have been 
embellished at that time. 

Greenville County Courthouse (page 158) 
The interior ofthe Greenville County 1940's courts 
facility was completely renovated while the exterior 
of the original building was preserved. In order to 
Jlreserve the historic environment and atmosphere of 
the original courthouse, the design of a later 
addition was planned to blend with and complement 
the original sfructure. 

Greenwood County Courthouse (page 130) 
The Greenwood Countx Courthouse was completed 
in 1966 and has servea as a combined courthouse 
and county administration buildin_g. The current 
building replaced a brick courtliouse that was 
constructed at the turn of the century, shortly after 
Greenwood County was created from the eastern 
portion of Abbevilfe County. 



State of South Carolina 

Courthouses-Additional Information 
(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name) 

Hampton County Courthouse (page 32) 
The two-story brick structure has served as the 
coun~'s courthouse since 1878 when Hampton 
Coun was established. The courthouse was 
remo eled and e.nl.arged in 1925. During tpat 
renovation, the ongmal double curved statr leadmg 
to the second floor portico was removed as were the 
eight interior chimneys. 

Horry County Courthouse (page 8) 
The Horry County Courthouse was built in 1908 and 
underwent renovations in 1937 and 1964. The 
courthouse is included in Conway's historic district 
and has been outwardly preserved to reflect its 
original appearance. 

Jasper County Courthouse (page 36) 
The Jasper County Courthouse was built in 1915. 
The Georgian Revtval style structure has a hip roof 
and projecting rectangular b~ys on the ~orth . and 
soutli siaes. A .two-story P,edtmented pprttco wtth a 
relief sculpture ts supporteo by four lome columns. 

Kershaw County Courthouse (page 153) 
The Kershaw County Courthouse was dedicated in 
1968 and currently houses most county functions. 
The facility,. the county's fifth such structure, is best 
known by tne Lafaye~e Cedar gracing its courtyard. 
The old red cedar ts so named because tt was 
planted when General Lafayette was a guest on the 
property. 

Lancaster County Courthouse (Inside Front 
Cover) 

Robert Mills designed the Lancaster County 
Courthouse, built in 1828. Mills studieo 
architecture under Thomas Jefferson for two xears, 
and lived in his home, deriving much of his 
knowledge_ from Jefferson's extensive architectl;Jre 
library. l..,t~e Jefferson, .he tendt:d to sh!Jn E_nghsh 
influences, mstead favonng classtcal Itahan hoes
as is evident in the courthouse with its Palladian 
style of architecture. Since the courthouse's 
completion, architecture students have come from 
across the United States to study its Palladian 
window, considered one of the finest in the country. 

Laurens County Courthouse (page 131) 
The Laurens County Courtpo!Jse i~ just one of tpe 
historic Greek Revtval butldmg_s m Laurens Ctty 
Square. The central portion oT the buildin_g was 
constructed between 1838 and 1840. In 18~, the 
courthouse was enlarged and comP-leted as 
originally designed by the architect. In r9ll, when 
the building was remodeled, the two outside wings 
and the <fome were added. The most recent 
renovations took place in the early 1970's. 

Lee County Courthouse (page 112) 
The Lee County Court House, built in 1909, is of 
the Renaissance archite~tural style. The b~ilding 
retained the same architectural style after tt was 
renovated and enlarged in 1974. The Lee County 
Court House, liste<f on the National Register of 
Historic Places, continues to serve the citizens of the 
county. 

Lexington County Courthouse (page 165) 
The P,resent courthouse is Lexington County's sixth 
such building. Constructed in T939 and dedicated 
on January 15, 1940, it replaced an old brick 
courthouse, erected in 1882, which had become 
antiquated and too small for the growing county. 

Marion County Courthouse (Front Cover) 

The Marion County Courthouse is the third such 
structure in Marion (previously Liber:ty) County. 
The building, which eXhibits tlie classical Revival 
architecturar style, is made of brick and stucco and 
has the appearance of stone. The courthouse 
features curving double staircases of intricately 
filigreed iron with the identity of the craftsman 
(Ha~ard Barlette, Baltimor~) woven into the 
scrolls and curlicues decorating each individual 
step. Wroug!lt iron railing edges the porches on 
both levels. The old hitching P,Ost still stands to the 
left of the courthouse. The outlding was completely 
renovated in 1986 to house the county 
administrative offices and offices of the circuit court 
judge. 

Marlboro County Courthouse (page 180) 
Located in Bennettsville, Marlboro County's present 
courthouse is the fourth building erected to house 
the county offices. Built in tl1e late 1800's, the 
Victorian courthouse remains today behind the red 
brick fa9ade, which was added in the 1950's. 

McCormick County Courthouse (page 4) 
The McCormick County Courthouse was designed 
by G. Lloyd Preacher & Company and was erected 
in 1923. Cyrus McCormick, inventor of the reaper, 
donated the land for the courthouse and the 
township of McCormick. 

Newberry County Courthouse (page 26) 
This classical Revival building was completed in 
1908 at a cost of $50,000. Frank Milburn of 
Columbia designed the red brick building to feature 
three massive Q_orticos of Ionic columns with terra 
cotta details. The courthouse is still in use today, 
along with an addition, constructed in 193 8, and a 
new annex across the street. 
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State of South Carolina 

Courthouses-Additional Information 
(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name) 

Oconee County Courthouse (page 154) 
On February 5, 1868, the Walhalla Town Council 
I!J>proved the location of the Oconee County 
Courthouse. The courthouse was demolished in 
1955 and was rebuilt at a cost of $403,000. The 
present Courthouse was dedicated on 
November 5, 1956. 

Orangeburg County Courthouse (page 11 0) 
The present courthouse is the fifth such building in 
Orangeburg County since 1768. The present 
structure was erected in 1927. The following is 
inscribed on two cornerstones on the buildi!l_g: 
"Built 1826-Destroyed 1865-Rebuilt 1875." llie 
second stone reads: "Relocated and erected 1927." 
Extensive renovation to this building was begun in 
January 19781 and the dedication ceremony was 
held on Marcn 9, 1980. 

Pickens County Courthouse (Inside Back 
Cover) 

The ~present Pickens County Courthouse was built in 
196U. The building was completely renovated and 
expanded in 1997. The spactous three-story 
butlding is constructed of oversized brick in the 
Williamsburg architectural design. The structure 
features a roof of Vermont slate and a copper cupola 
that is a replica of the 1894 courthouse dome. 

Richland County Judicial Center (page 152) 

The Richland County Judicial Center was built to 
relieve overcrowding in the old facility. The 
building was dedicatea on October 14, 1980. 

Saluda County Courthouse (page 9) 

The current Saluda County Courthouse is the second 
to serve the county's citizens. This beautiful Greek 
Revival structure was built in 1917 to replace a 
simple wooden building that had been constructed 
shortly after Saluda was created as a county from 
part ol the old Edgefield District in 1895. 

Spartanburg County Judicial Center 
(page 140) 

The present SQartanburg County Courthouse cost 
approximately $1.7 million and was occupied 
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beginning in May 1958. The building was 
renovated from 1990 to 1993, and the courthouse 
was renamed the Judicial Center after those 
renovations were completed. The Judicial Center, 
occupyin_g 115,500 square feet houses all of the 
judictal departments except for the Sheriffs Office. 

Sumter County Courthouse (page 118) 
The Sumter County Courthouse, reflecting a 
Romanesque Revival design~ features large Uoric 
columns. The courthouse ts a historic structure 
reminiscent of the turn of the century. Located on 
Main Street in Sumter, the courthouse was built in 
1907 and remodeled in 1964. 

Union County Courthouse (page 119) 
The present and third courthouse was built of brick 
and stone in 1911 at a cost of $75,000. The 
previous old stone building became part of the new 
building's foundation. The courthouse was 
patterned after one of Robert Mills' designs and was 
built of roug!t native stone blocks, cement, and 
bricks. FourUothic columns, vaulted ceilings, stone 
floors, and overall simplicity make this butlding a 
thing of beauty. 

Williamsburg County Courthouse (Back 
Cover) 

Williamsburg County is the home of one of the most 
beautiful ana historic courthouses designed by 
Robert Mills. The courthouse, originallY. built in 
1823, was one of the first fireproof butldings in 
South Carolina. 

York County Courthouse (page 164) 
The York County Courthouse has occupied its site 
since 1785, when the county was created and York 
was selected as the coun!Y seat. Robert Mills in his 
Statistics of South Carolzm;; published in 1826, has 
the followmg to say of r orkville (as York was 
known until 1916) and the new courthouse: "The 
new courthouse just finished is an elegant structure, 
built of stone ana brick, and offices in the basement 
story are made fireproof-the double flight of 
granite steps ascending to a portico on the Doric 
Order-The building mcluding the portico is 160 
feet long and 43 feet wide." 
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